

LONDON BOROUGH OF SUTTON
ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOOD COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 26TH NOVEMBER, 2015

7.30 pm at the
Civic Offices, St Nicholas Way, Sutton SM1 1EA

To all members of the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee:Chair:
Vice-Chair
Councillors:
Ex Officio
Substitutes:

Councillor Jill Whitehead
Councillor Nighat Piracha
Manuel Abellan, Adrian Davey, Richard Marston, Patrick McManus,
Steve Penneck, Tony Shields, Paul Wingfield and Hanna Zuchowska
Councillor Ruth Dombey
Councillors Jean Crossby, Tim Crowley, Neil Garratt, Miguel Javelot
and Joyce Melican

Note
This is a Council meeting held in public. Additional representations are at the
invitation of the Chair of the Committee. If you are a relevant organisation and you
wish to submit representations on a proposal contained within the reports to this
agenda please submit a request via Committee Services three working days before
the meeting date.
This meeting will be recorded and made available on the Council’s web site.
Niall Bolger
Chief Executive
Civic Offices
St Nicholas Way
SUTTON
SM1 1EA
17 November 2015

Enquiries to: Susanne Wicks, Committee Support Team Leader
Email susanne.wicks@sutton.gov.uk Telephone 020 8770 6540

Copies of reports are available in large print on request

PLEASE NOTE: Any decision taken at this meeting does not become definitive until
10am on the third working day after the day of the meeting. Any four members of the
Council may notify the Chief Executive by then if they require a decision to be
reviewed by the full Council at its next meeting on 18 January 2016. Please contact
the Committee Manager named on the Agenda frontsheet for further information.

AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATIONS OF SUBSTITUTES

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

3.

MINUTES OF LAST MEETING (Pages 3 - 8)
To approve as a correct record of the meeting on 17 September 2015.

4.

PETITION
A petition, signed by 248 people, has been received from Councillor Moira Butt
which reads:
“We the undersigned are deeply worried and concerned about the future of the
London Borough of Sutton’s Mobile Library service, in light of the proposed
closure as set out in the current consultation process. The Mobile Library is of
great benefit to many of our elderly residents, to those with disabilities, to those
without transport, and to young children. Therefore we urge the council to
reconsider its position to ensure that this service continues.”

5.

SUTTON STATION GATEWAY
A presentation on the lessons learnt from the Sutton Station Gateway project.

6.

BEDDINGTON PARK HERITAGE LOTTERY - PARKS FOR PEOPLE FUND
(Pages 9 - 16)
This report provides an update of the Beddington Park project and seeks
agreement to delegate authority to the Strategic Director Environment Housing
and Regeneration, in consultation with the Chair of Environment and
Neighbourhood Committee, to submit the final bid to ensure the project
proceeds to the timetable.

7.

CYCLING STRATEGY (Pages 17 - 118)
This report outlines the purpose and objectives of the Strategy and the results
of the consultation, including a stakeholder workshop held on 23 July, and sets
out proposed changes to the draft Strategy as a result.

2

8.

DEVELOPMENT AND EXTENSION OF RUSSETTINGS (Pages 119 - 130)
This report provides details of proposed options for the future of Russettings,
the Council’s Register Office.

9.

REVIEW OF ENVIRONMENT, HOUSING & REGENERATION FEES &
CHARGES FOR 2016/17 (Pages 131 - 142)
This report seeks to gain approval following a review of fees and charges for
various Environment, Housing and Regeneration services. The report provides
details of the existing charges and proposed increases for these services.

10.

REVIEW OF WASTE & RECYCLING POLICIES (Pages 143 - 160)
Following an efficiency review undertaken by the London Waste and Recycling
Board (LWARB) of the service, a review of the existing waste and recycling
policies has been carried out. LWARB recommended that a review of existing
policies and the development and application of revised policies would lead to
efficiencies in the service, potential savings and contribute to elevating material
up the waste hierarchy. This report details the outcome of the review, the
benefits of adopting revised policies and seeks approval for the introduction of
an amended suite of policies.

11.

ANY URGENT ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD AT THE DIRECTION OF THE
CHAIR

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Annex

CIVIC OFFICES, SUTTON
GROUND FLOOR MEETING ROOMS
FIRE PRECAUTIONS
If there is a FIRE in the building the fire alarm will sound. Leave the building
immediately by the most direct route, either back through reception or the fire exit
into Lower Square. Take your coat and any bags with you. Assemble in the car
park in front of the Holiday Inn.

Toilet

Toilet
Room 1
Toilet

Toilet

Reception

Room
5

Room
4

Fire
Exit

Room
2

Room
3

Entrance
Lower Square

Exit

Holiday Inn
Car Park

Page 2

Agenda Annex

Reminder – Declarations of Interests
Members should consider the following interests and whether they have any they
should declare.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and you have either declared it beforehand in the Register of Members’
Interests or to the Monitoring Officer for entry in the Register you must state at this
meeting that you have such an interest and then withdraw from the room or chamber
where the meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and have not previously declared it you must declare the nature of that
interest at this meeting and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the
meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Other Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
Where you have any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any business at
this meeting you must declare that interest, but may continue to speak and vote on
the matter. However, if the interest is one which a member of the public, with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is
likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest then you should declare the
interest and withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held
whilst that business is considered.
Further information on these matters can be found in the Council's Code of Conduct
and Constitution. If you are in any doubt as to whether you have an interest you
should seek advice before the committee meeting from Alexa Coates.
If, during the course of the committee meeting, you consider you may have an
interest you should always declare it.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
17 September 2015

ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOOD COMMITTEE
17 September 2015 at 7.30 pm
MEMBERS:
(*Absent)

10.

Councillor Jill Whitehead (Chair), Councillor Nighat Piracha (Vice
Chair) and Councillors Manuel Abellan, Adrian Davey, Richard
Marston, Patrick McManus, Steve Penneck, Tony Shields, Paul
Wingfield and Hanna Zuchowska.
Councillor Ruth Dombey (ex-officio).

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATIONS OF SUBSTITUTES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Patrick McManus and
Richard Marston. Councillors Tim Crowley and Jean Crossby attended as
substitutes.
11.

MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 June 2015 be agreed as
an accurate record and signed by the Chair.
12.

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

Councillor Steve Penneck declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 5 on the
agenda.
13.

LOCAL IMPLEMENTATION PLAN - BID

The Committee considered a report on the Council’s Local Implementation Plan
submission to the Transport for London for funding for 2016/17. The submission had
been considered and agreed by all the Local Committees. Transport for London
would consider the submitted proposals before negotiating and agreeing the London
Borough of Sutton’s final allocation.
RESOLVED: That the draft list of proposals, contained within appendix A of the
report, including the statement of need, be agreed as Sutton’s submission to
Transport for London for Local Implementation Plan funding in 2016/17.
14.
INTER AUTHORITY AGREEMENT (IAA) WITH SOUTH LONDON WASTE
PARTNERSHIP
This report was introduced by the Acting Executive Head of Environment
Commissioning. The Committee considered a report on a new Inter Authority
Agreement for the procurement of services currently being conducted by the South
London Waste Partnership, including environmental services, street cleaning, fleet
management and parks, including grounds maintenance and associated services.
RESOLVED:
1.

That the Inter Authority Agreement relating to the environmental services
procurement be agreed.

2.

That the governance arrangements for de-selection of bidders, as set in
paragraph 4.6 of the report, be agreed.
1

Agenda Item 3

Page 4

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
17 September 2015

15.

WALLINGTON PUBLIC HALL - OPTIONS

The report was introduced by the Executive Head of Safer and Stronger
Communities, which proposed retaining 40 parking spaces to meet current and
future demand. It was pointed out that the recommendation was to agree the
closure of the car park, not the disposal of it, which fell within the remit of the
Strategy and Resources Committee. One Councillor was concerned that the
reduction of parking spaces could lead to overspill parking in nearby residential
areas. Data from a parking survey commissioned by the Council showed that this
car park had been underused, and that existing car parks in Wallington had sufficient
capacity to accommodate existing demand.
A vote was taken; 8 were in favour and Councillors Tim Crowley and Tony Shields
abstained from voting. It was therefore:
RESOLVED: That Wallington Public Hall car park be part closed, retaining 40
spaces to meet current and future demand.
16.

PARKING STRATEGY REVIEW

The Committee considered a report on the implementation of a five year parking
strategy and associated programme of works, to incorporate minor parking scheme
requests and the review of existing controlled parking zones and pricing.
The Head of Highways and Transport noted that the aim of introducing the strategy
was to provide a more cohesive, borough wide approach to parking and a more
intelligent approach to enforcement. The revised strategy would also align with the
Local Plan and take into account future developments in the borough. The review
would cover both on street and off street parking arrangements, and examine the
effectiveness of CPZ, looking at a range of possible solutions.
In response to Councillors’ comments on residents’ concerns about parking in their
wards, the Head of Highways and Transport outlined the intention to improve
engagement with residents, in order to gather information on areas of parking stress
in the borough. A key part of the review would be to examine “attractors” and
“generators” of parking and this would include looking at parking “hot spots” such as
areas around High Streets, bus and rail stations, schools, nurseries and colleges,
hospitals, and new developments.
Specific local issues would be discussed as part of the engagement sessions with
councillors for each Local Committee area, and these had already started.
RESOLVED:
1.

That a revised Parking Strategy, including a Pricing Strategy, be developed
and presented to the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee for
consideration on 4 February 2016.

2.

That the Council move to a borough wide approach to minor and major
parking scheme management, based on a five year programme, supported by
an annually reviewed schedule of work.
2

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
17 September 2015

3.

That the current application of Local Implementation Plan funding through
Local Committees be restructured and reallocate to support the new
programme.

4.

To note that additional capital funding will be necessary to support these
recommendations, and that this is to be applied for through the approved
corporate process.

5.

That on and off street parking charges be removed from the annual corporate
inflationary fees and charges review and implement a demand driven pricing
model utilising existing delegated authority.

17.
THE FUTURE OF SUTTON'S LIBRARY SERVICE: OPTIONS FOR
SAVINGS AND PERMISSION TO CONSULT
The report was introduced by the Executive Head of Wellbeing, the Head of
Libraries, Heritage and Arts and the Temporary Executive Head of Communities and
Neighbourhoods.
The Committee considered the options for the library service to achieve a savings
target of circa £1million by 2018/19 from an annual budget of £4.4m, whilst
remaining within the remits of the Public Libraries and Museums Act 1964, delivering
an excellent service and developing a financially sustainable network which is
compliant with the Council’s public sector equality duty.
In response to a question, the former temporary Executive Head of Communities
and Neighbourhoods advised that the 151 Public Library Authorities across the
country had taken a variety of approaches but it was challenging for them to make
the appropriate savings. Whilst some had trialled using volunteers or handed over
libraries to voluntary groups, some were being operated via social enterprises. The
Circle Library was mentioned as an example of a Council run library that involved
the local community. The Council would be looking at volunteer supported
community models, shared services, and commissioned or outsourced library
services as part of its research.
A discussion ensued on some of the issues surrounding future models for libraries.
In regard to volunteers in libraries, the former temporary Executive Head of
Communities and Neighbourhoods explained that any volunteers must be of high
quality and rigorously trained to ensure the quality of service remains consistent.
Members encouraged officers to ensure that young people are consulted as part of
the process, and the importance of the consultation being representative of all
people in the borough. In addition to the recommendations contained within the
report, it was moved by Councillor Adrian Davey and seconded by Councillor Steve
Penneck that: “The Equality and Diversity Forum be included in the programme of
consultation detailed within Appendix A to the report”.
Opposition members expressed concern about the possible loss of the mobile
library, particularly for residents in Clockhouse where public transport links were less
regular than in other part of the borough, and for elderly and vulnerable residents in
3

Agenda Item 3

Page 6

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
17 September 2015

Sutton South ward. They also expressed concerns about the possible closure of
Beddington Library, given the potential closure of the children’s centre in Beddington
as well.
In response, officers explained that the consultation will take into account all libraries
across the borough and will look at what each service delivers to the user. With
regard to Beddington Library, the Executive Head of Wellbeing pointed out that use
had declined by 78% over the last seven years, and the detailed Library Profile
statistics drawn up showed that Beddington library did not score highly compared to
other libraries. Councils were required to provide detailed evidence of usage and
catchment area demographics in support of their proposals. Users of Beddington
Library were more likely to use other libraries also (48% of Beddington Library
members used other libraries).
The mobile library service was expensive and its use had declined by 32% over the
last five years. Also 37% of its users visited other libraries. Only three councils in
London still maintained such provision. In recognition of vulnerable customers, the
existing housebound service will be improved and expanded, and will be offered in
partnership with the Meals on wheels service and Sutton’s Old People’s Welfare
Committee via volunteers.
A vote was taken on all three recommendations. Eight members voted in favour and
two members voted against (Councillors Tim Crowley and Tony Shields). It was
therefore:
RESOLVED:
1.

That a programme for consultation with staff, customers, stakeholders and
partners on the future provision of the library service in Sutton, in line with the
Council’s statutory responsibility under the Public Libraries and Museums Act
1964 be undertaken.

2.

That the consultation methodology and programme, as attached at Appendix
A of the report, be agreed.

3.

The Equality and Diversity Forum be included in the programme of
consultation detailed within Appendix A to the report.

18.
SUTTON LIFE CENTRE: REVIEW BY EXTERNAL CONSULTANTS AND
NEXT STEPS
This report was presented to the Committee by the Executive Head of Safer and
Stronger Communities and the former temporary Executive Head of Communities
and Neighbourhoods. The report outlined the results of a review of the Life Centre
by Red Quadrant and Sports, Leisure and Culture Consultancy, which concluded
that there was no single solution or commercial proposition that could improve the
financial performance and utilisation of the Life Centre. In their view, there was a
number of smaller scale, achievable options which would improve the viability of the
centre.

4

Page 7

Agenda Item 3

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
17 September 2015

The Chair noted that an addendum to the report had been tabled which provided
updated legal advice.
The Committee had an extensive debate on the issues contained within the report
and on the three options presented in paragraphs 7.2 – 7.4 and discussed in depth
the best way forward for the Life Centre.
Option 1 proposed closing down the Life Centre and disposing of the building, but
this would entail paying back the MyPlace grant of £4.1m, with mothballing costs
and constraints about future use of the site.
Option 2 proposed transferring the Life Centre to another provider, retaining the
library. This option had been investigated and discussed with potential providers. But
there would be capital costs of £2m to convert the building, and if the potential future
use did not meet the MyPlace criteria, the grant of £4.1 m would have to be paid
back. This option could be possible in future if a party came forward that met the
MyPlace criteria.
Option 3 proposed continuing the Life Centre but under a revised commercial
operating model, including making staff savings of £100,000 pa., increased
marketing and letting the café. The Centre would be given an income target to
achieve within two years, and be required to generate new income and make bids
for external revenue funding. This would be within the terms of the Cabinet Office’s
MyPlace funding.
The Leader of the Opposition suggested that officers and members should increase
efforts to engage with the Cabinet Office, to change the terms and conditions of the
My Place funding agreement, in order to develop the Life Centre into community
benefit. The Executive Head of Safer and Stronger Communities described the
discussions he had had with the Cabinet Office and advised the Committee on the
formal process to be followed if the Council wished to propose a change of use for
the Life Centre. He outlined the Cabinet Office’s desire to protect services to young
people, and to support the principles underpinning the My Place agreement, but
confirmed that the centre could be used to provide services for other groups, as long
as they do not compromise the provision of services to young people.
It was moved by Councillor Steve Penneck, seconded by Councillor Adrian Davey
and
RESOLVED:
1.

That officers take forward Option 3 as set out in paragraph 7.4 of the report,
to continue operations under a revised operating model, with a view to
reducing cost and increasing income to work towards full cost recovery from
all elements of the Life Centre, except for the library, as far as possible.

2.

That officers and Members continue to lobby the Cabinet Office regarding the
terms and conditions of the My Place funding agreement.

3.

That options for the transfer of the asset also continue to be explored.
5

Page 8

Agenda Item 3

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
17 September 2015

19.
ANY URGENT ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD AT THE DIRECTION OF THE
CHAIR
There were no urgent items.
The meeting ended at 9.35 pm
Chair:
Date:

6

Page 9

Agenda Item 6

Report to:

Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee

Report title:

Beddington Park Heritage Lottery – Parks for People Fund

Report from:

Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director, Environment, Housing and
Regeneration

Ward/Areas affected:

Beddington North and Wallington North, and Borough wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Councillor Jill Whitehead

Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Bill Wyatt, Assistant Parks Manager
020 8770 4674
 An Open Council
 A Green Council
 A Fair Council
 A Smart Council
Open
Date:

Date: 26 November 2016

11 November 2015

1.

Summary

1.1

In January 2013, Full Council agreed to submit eight projects to the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF)
for grant funding and to provide 10% matched funding. The Beddington Park project has five
themes and has been a pilot for citizen led commissioning with a stakeholder steering group
established to assist in the direction of these projects. The works and specifications continue to
be developed based on discussions with a range of consultants and the HLF. This report
provides an update of the Beddington Park project and seeks agreement to delegate authority
to the Strategic Director Environment Housing and Regeneration, in consultation with the Chair
of Environment and Neighbourhood Committee, to submit the final bid to ensure the project
proceeds to the timetable.

2.

Recommendations

That the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee agrees:
2.1

To note the works to Beddington Park as detailed at 4.1 to 4.12 of this report.

2.2

That the final sign off for the application to the HLF and any other minor decisions arising during
the development works, are delegated to Strategic Director, Environment, Housing and
Regeneration, in consultation with the Chair of Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
before the final submission in February 2016, and if successful to commence project
implementation.

Agenda Item 6

Page 10

3.

Background

3.1

The Beddington Park HLF Stage One bid was submitted in February 2014 and was successful
in gaining £251,200 to develop the project. Officers plan to make a Stage Two bid for the
delivery phase at the end of February 2016 for £2,952,700.

3.2

This is a sub-regional project for Sutton and reflects that visitors come to Beddington Park, not
just from the local area, but from across the borough and wider. The HLF bid seeks to address
the needs and expectations of all visitors and to enhance the facilities, activities and
appearance of this key space within the Wandle Valley Regional Park.

3.3

As a pilot for ‘Citizen Led Commissioning’, officers engaged with stakeholders to gain an
understanding and ownership of the project outcomes, as well ensuring that the project is
supported in the long term and is sustainable. This ethos is very much in line with HLF
outcomes for heritage, people and communities.

3.4

This consultation identified five key themes to improve the park: 1) access, safety and
infrastructure, 2) activities and events, 3) wildlife, 4) history, and 5) lakes and waterways. These
have remained at the core of the project and have been developed to meet stakeholder needs
and match the requirements of HLF.

4.

Issues

4.1

Officers have ensured that decisions regarding this project are taken with regard for
sustainability, durability and costs. Officers have looked at long term sustainable solutions, as
well ensuring the retention of existing features where possible. Biodiversity is at the heart of the
proposed works with a number of conservation and wildlife surveys being conducted in
producing the Stage Two bid.

4.2

Access, safety and infrastructure
There are a number of works required at the various entrances to the park to meet the
requirements of users as well as assist with barriers to use, including: works to gates, railings,
planted areas, welcome/visitor information, directional signage and works to paths.

4.3

The work across the park will enhance the park boundary, tree planting, succession planning for
historic trees, and interpretation signs providing information on the history, wildlife and
biodiversity. In addition, repairs to footpaths and park structures including the provision of
volunteer facilities at both the Grange and Beddington pavilions. Ongoing repair costs meant
that provision of additional toilets at the Grange was not possible but this has enabled the
additional volunteer facilities to be included.

4.4

The project will involve the removal of some trees and shrubs in various parts of the park, these
will be removed to allow proper formation of trees currently in close proximity, improve sight
lines for public safety reasons and to allow access to carry out works.

Page 11

Agenda Item 6

4.5

It is proposed to improve traffic flow using passing areas, increasing parking capacity for both
vehicles and cycles. A green travel plan will be produced to encourage sustainable alternatives
to travelling by car to the park.

4.6

The playground will be extended and additional equipment installed, ensuring inclusivity for a
range of parks users with differing abilities. Consideration will be given to ongoing maintenance
and durability of the equipment and no existing equipment will be removed if it has a reasonable
current lifespan. Details of materials for equipment, and reasons for not choosing timber are set
out in 6.2. The pavilion area will be improved with landscaping and tree planting.

4.7

An additional access is proposed for St Mary’s churchyard, with a circular path to create a safer
feeling. A garden to increase visitor interest is proposed to bring this area into wider use with
improved landscaping and removal of some of the hedges to increase visibility.

4.8

4.9

Activities and events
An important element of the project is to build capacity within the local population and park
users to ensure that the project is supported and sustainable into the future.
A project coordinator will be employed for the first three years of the project to support and
develop volunteer activities and deliver the activity plan. There will be a range of ways for
people to interact with the park including training, volunteering and community engagement
opportunities. There will be a horticultural apprentice employed, trained to a nationally
recognised qualification to work within the park for two years during the project, maintaining the
newly planted areas. Both of these posts will be funded from the bid.

Wildlife
4.10 Most of the above works involve improvements to the large amount of wildlife and biodiversity
within the park. The activities organised through the volunteer coordinator and with other
stakeholder groups will link to improving or understanding the biodiversity of the site. In addition,
there will be improvements to the Carew Manor wetland.
History
4.11 There will be repairs to existing footpaths, replacement shrubs and herbaceous planting, and
changes to the Grange garden layout including an orchard with a meadow. This work is aimed
at using some of the plants and schemes that would have originally been in the garden when it
was created in the 1870s.
Lakes and waterways
4.12 Silt will be removed from the stock pond and the main Grange Lake and there will be river
improvements in line with the River Wandle catchment plan, including a newly created separate
river channel through the lake. This will ensure that there would not be a need to de-silt the lake
again for many years. This meets the sustainability requirements of the Council, the HLF and
the Environment Agency. Alternative methods of removing silt and for the ongoing management
of the river were considered and they are set out in 6.1.

Page 12

Agenda Item 6

5.

Process and timeframes

5.1

To comply with the Stage Two application requirements, a number of supporting documents
need to be produced. These include:
1.

2.

3.
4.

A management and maintenance plan setting out the strategy for the management and
maintenance of the park, to support an application for Green Flag Award status (a
requirement of HLF)
A conservation plan which includes a Phase 1 habitat survey of the site and a history of
the site. This provides a strategic vision for the conservation and improvement of the
park and its heritage.
An activity plan to develop learning and participation, and increase visitors to the park
A framework for monitoring and evaluation, to enable accurate reporting against targets
for HLF

5.2

Consent from a number of bodies will be sought prior to commencement of the work, including
the Environment Agency (exemptions and permissions) and the Diocese of Southwark Faculty.

5.3

The current timeline for the project works phase is set out in Table 1 of Appendix A of this
report.

6.

Options Considered

6.1

A number of options were considered regarding the lake:
1.
2.
3.

Do nothing; the lake would eventually become just a river channel through an unpleasant
muddy swamp.
Route the river through the Grange garden which would have been detrimental to the
garden, rockery area and archaeology.
Straight forward de-silting of the lake which is unlikely to be regarded by HLF or EA as
sustainable.

6.2

Options for the playground included use of wood for the play equipment. Experience of
problems with timber equipment in the Council’s parks over the years led officers to recommend
metal and High Pressure Laminate (HPL) equipment which is more durable and in most of the
Council’s parks playgrounds.

6.3

The original application sought to provide additional toilets at The Grange, but due to the cost of
provision and ongoing repair and maintenance costs, this idea has been discounted.

7.

Impacts and Implications

7.1

Financial
In March 2013, the Council approved £300,000 of capital funds to be used as match funding for
an application to the HLF. £30,000 of this was allocated against the successful Stage one bid.

7.2

A further £237,000 was allocated from Section 106 funding relating to two local developments.
An additional in-kind funding of £39,000 has been provided based on volunteer hours linked to

Page 13

Agenda Item 6

the project, as well as a commitment to additional provision for management and maintenance
for the five years of the project of £120,000.
7.3

A breakdown of the draft budget is shown in Table 2 in Appendix A. These costs are estimated
as at October 2015 and it is anticipated that the projected shortfall will be met from potential EA
funding. If this is not forthcoming, costs savings will be found within the project before
submission.

7.4

Once HLF agree the lottery funding for Stage Two in June 2016, the budget for the delivery
stage can be incorporated in the capital programme and revenue budgets through the quarterly
performance and finance report submitted to Strategy and Resources Committee.

7.5

7.6

7.7

Legal
The conditions attached to the HLF Grant will need careful consideration to ensure that the
Council is confident of complying with them and that going forward, the conditions of the Grant
that take effect post receipt on monies will be observed.
Non–compliance with Grant conditions would mean either that monies would not be
forthcoming, or if in receipt of them, some or all would be repayable.
One Planet Living
This proposal for improvements to Beddington Park supports the following One Planet Living
Targets

7.8

Cutting carbon emissions – The creation of a green travel plan as part of this project will aim to
encourage sustainable travel by highlighting public transport connections. This will support the
‘ST 3 Priority’ target which aims To ‘Increase the use of sustainable transport from a 2009/10 2011/12 average baseline of: 1% cycling to 2.2% cycling, 28% walking to 29.6% walking, and
16% public transport to 17.6% by 2017.

7.9

Cutting waste – The works will seek to utilise as much silt from the lake as possible to facilitate
landscaping in the park, and suitable existing pieces of playground equipment will be retained
rather than disposed of needlessly. These actions will support the delivery of ZW 6 Priority
target of ‘4,000 tonnes of Local Authority collected waste sent to landfill by 2017’.

7.10 Valuing our Natural Environment - existing habitats, such as the Carew Manor Wetlands, will be
preserved and enhanced to increase the biodiversity in the park. Extensive flood modelling has
been carried out on new designs for the lake to reduce risk of flooding.
7.11 Supporting Healthy Communities - The activity plan embodies this aim through active
participation and opportunities for the community to engage with, and celebrate, the park’s open
space and rich heritage. Implementation will contribute towards the CH1 Priority measure which
records the ‘number of annual volunteer hours for Sutton Library and Heritage Services.

Page 14

Agenda Item 6

Integrated Impact Assessment
7.12 An impact assessment has been completed with the factors covered having been taken into
consideration as part of the activity plan, and through the work already completed to produce
baseline data for an evaluation and monitoring framework document.
7.13 Work to produce the baseline data and activity plan identified areas where there are barriers to
use as well as discrepancies between local demographics and those found on site during visitor
observation studies and surveys. The activity plan aims to rectify this through targeted
information, training, volunteering and events.
8.

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
A

Title
Timetable and cost for the project

Background Documents
17 January 2013 Heritage Lottery Fund Grant Application Report
4 March 2013 Heritage Lottery Fund Grant Application Report

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal
Environmental
Sustainability

Date: 11 November 2015

Comments Sought
Yes
Yes
Yes

Comments checked by
Tony Cooke
John Cheetham
Katrina Lloyd

Page 15

Agenda Item 6

Appendix A
Table 1
Activity
Final design for consideration and comment by HLF
Application for second round funding HLF Parks for People
fund
Decision from HLF
Sutton and HLF Contract formalities
Re-engagement of consultant’s team
Capital works detailed design
Tender preparation, tender period and evaluation.
Pre construction, mobilisation, method statements etc.
Works on site
Completion of physical works
Commencement of management and maintenance plan

Date
December 2015
End of February 2016
June 2016
June – July 2016
July 2016
July – October 2016
September 2016 –
January 2017
January 2017
January 2017 – May 2018
June 2018
June 2018

Table 2
Breakdown of Costs

£

Capital costs

2,442,851

Professional fees

269,120

Activity costs

265,000

Other costs (recruitment, publicity, evaluation )

32,000

Contingency and inflation

478,682

Sub total

3,487,653
£

Additional gardening, grounds maintenance and
management costs over 5 years

120,000

Volunteer time

39,000

TOTAL COSTS

3,646,653
£

Income - (Delivery) (bidding for this in February 2016)
Council matched funding (LBS capital)

270,000

Council matched funding (LBS S106)

237,000

Additional gardening, grounds maintenance and
management costs over 5 years

120,000

Other matched funding - volunteer hours

39,000

HLF Grant funding

2,952,700

TOTAL INCOME

3,618,700

Shortfall – Proposed to be met by EA Grant

27,953

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 17

Agenda Item 7

Report to:

Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee

Report title:

Cycling Delivery Strategy

Report from:

Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director – Environment, Housing &
Regeneration

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough-wide

Chair of Committee:

Councillor Jill Whitehead

Author(s)/Contact

Alex Forrest – Principal Transport Planner
Tel. 0208 770 6878

Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:



Date: 26 November 2015

A Green Council

Open

Signed:

Date:

13 November 2015

1.

Summary

1.1

A draft Cycling Delivery Strategy [the Strategy] was approved for consultation
purposes by the Sustainable Transport Task and Finish Group on 8th July 2015. The
consultation period for the draft Strategy was open from 21st July to 7th September
2015. This report outlines the purpose and objectives of the Strategy and the results of
the consultation, including a stakeholder workshop held on 23rd July, and sets out
proposed changes to the draft Strategy as a result.

1.2

Once approved, the Strategy will be used to influence the design and implementation
of cycling schemes, and ensure that cycling is considered in all appropriate transport
schemes and projects, to assist in meeting the targets to increase cycling levels.
Progress will be monitored against the implementation of the Action Plan and reported
annually.

2.

Recommendations

That the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee:
2.1

Agree the final Cycling Delivery Strategy in Appendix E, incorporating the proposed
changes as a result of the consultation.

Agenda Item 7

Page 18

2.2

Agree to delegate authority to the Executive Head of Safer and Stronger
Communities, in consultation with the Chair, to approve any final changes to the
Strategy requested by the Committee, and its subsequent publication.

3.

Background

3.1

The new Sustainable Transport Strategy, which was approved at the March 2015
Environment and Neighbourhood Committee meeting, set out the Council’s intention
to commission a Cycling Delivery Strategy. The Sustainable Transport Strategy
report to the March meeting sought approval to commission a draft Cycling Delivery
Strategy for consultation.

3.2

A tendering exercise was undertaken and Steer Davies Gleave consultants were
appointed to prepare the draft Strategy during March and April 2015. Officers then
finalised the draft Strategy for consultation.

3.3

The Cycling Delivery Strategy complements the Sustainable Transport Strategy and
sets out its approach to encouraging cycling in the borough. The Strategy sets out
how the Council is responding to the renewed focus on cycling in London being
promoted by the Mayor in his Vision for Cycling, and by the All Party Parliamentary
Cycling Group’s ‘Get Britain Cycling’ report.

3.4

Over 50% of car journeys in Sutton are less than 3 miles (5km) – a distance that
could easily be undertaken by bicycle by many people. Cycling has benefits for air
quality, climate change, congestion, noise levels, public health and well-being,
productivity, travel cost savings and the local economy.

3.5

The Strategy aims to make cycling the mode of choice for short local journeys by
improving the quality and legibility of cycle routes, addressing safety concerns
through road safety measures, improving cycle parking facilities and ensuring the
wider road network is as cycle-friendly as possible.

3.6

The Strategy has the following six objectives:
1. Make Sutton a more attractive borough for cycling and create a high quality cycle
route network.
2. Make Sutton a safer borough for cycling.
3. Encourage a shift from the car to cycling for shorter journeys.
4. Encourage safe and considerate behaviour by all road users.
5. Create a cycling culture by promoting cycling to a wider range of people.
6. Actively promote cycling within the Council’s Sustainable Transport Strategy.

3.7

Under each of these objectives, the Strategy sets out what the Council is currently
doing and what it proposes to do in order to meet the objective. The Action Plan sets
out a more detailed programme of actions to meet each objective and will be updated
annually.

3.8

The Sustainable Transport Strategy committed the Council to a target of increasing the
cycling modal share to 2.2% by 2017 and 4% by 2025 from a baseline of 1%. The
Strategy sets out a plan for achieving these targets and making best use of the funding
available.

Page 19

Agenda Item 7

4.

Issues

4.1

The draft Strategy was launched for consultation on 21st July and the consultation was
open until 7th September. As part of the consultation, a successful cycling summit and
consultation workshop was held on 23rd July. This event was attended by around 50
people and addressed by the Mayor’s Cycling Commissioner Andrew Gilligan, as well
as Councillor Jill Whitehead and Steer Davies Gleave Consultants.

4.2

As part of the workshop, breakout sessions were held to discuss each of the
objectives, which produced some useful feedback. A summary of the issues that were
raised during the breakout discussions is contained in Appendix A.

4.3

A consultation questionnaire was produced and made available on the Council’s
website and in libraries. A copy of the Questionnaire is attached as Appendix B. There
was a good response to the consultation, with 163 online responses and around 10
paper questionnaires returned, together with a number of more detailed responses
from cycling groups and other stakeholders. A summary of the questionnaire
responses is set out in Appendix C. A schedule setting out the detailed comments
received and the Council’s response, together with the proposed changes to the
Strategy, is set out in Appendix D.

4.4

The Strategy was given strong support in the consultation responses, with a large
majority of respondents supporting the Vision, Objectives and Action Plan.

4.5

The most detailed written response came from ‘Get Sutton Cycling’, the Sutton branch
of the London Cycling Campaign which represents around 100 members in the
borough. They welcomed the Strategy and set out a number of elements that they
liked about it. They also set out some concerns and suggestions for improvements.
Generally they would like to see more ambition in the Strategy to genuinely improve
conditions for cycling in the borough and more detail setting out how the Council
intends to achieve a step-change in provision for cycling. They would also like to see
more urgency given to some of the ‘quick-win’ actions.

4.6

A detailed response was also received from the Sutton branch of the Cyclists’ Touring
Club, which represents around 250 members in the local area. They would like to see
a more robust procedure for monitoring the action plan. They would also like to see a
more comprehensive approach to 20mph limits borough-wide, without the use of traffic
calming features which can be hazardous for cyclists. Both this group and ‘Get Sutton
Cycling’ want to see a stronger commitment to the London Cycling Design Standards.

4.7

Transport for London welcomed the Strategy and the commitment to use the London
Cycling Design Standards, but suggested that the audit of existing routes against
these standards is brought forward. They also encouraged the Council to work closely
with Kingston borough to link in with its Mini-Holland programme and ensure routes
join up.

4.8

The questionnaire written comments covered a wide range of issues, including many
specific suggestions for cycle route improvements. A significant number of comments
related to:





the need for more and secure cycle parking;
new and improved cycle routes including segregated lanes and removal of
obstructive parking in cycle lanes;
better maintenance of cycle routes;
more cycle training, improved cycle safety and enforcement of traffic laws;

Page 20

Agenda Item 7



4.9

A number of changes to the Strategy are proposed in response to these comments, as
set out in the schedule in Appendix D and shown in the revised Strategy in Appendix
E. The main changes relate to:







4.10

further 20mph limits / zones;
a more ambitious programme of measures in the Action Plan.

a greater emphasis on infrastructure improvements, especially for Quietways;
a stronger commitment to the London Cycle Design Standards;
an amendment to the timeframes in the Action Plan;
more detail on how the Council will build support for cycling schemes;
more information on improving driver and cyclist behaviour;
a new paragraph on maintenance of existing cycle routes and facilities.
Once it is finalised and published, it is proposed to launch the Strategy with a public
meeting in spring 2016. An annual monitoring report will be published setting out
progress towards implementing the Strategy.

5. Impacts and Implications
Financial
5.1

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. Actions arising from
the Strategy will be funded from TfL grant funding and other sources.
Legal

5.2

There are no legal implications arising from this report.
Integrated Impact Assessment

5.3

See Appendix F.

6.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix Letter

A
B
C
D

E
F

Title
Summary of Consultation Workshop breakout
discussions (available on Council website)
Copy of Consultation Questionnaire (available on Council
website)
Summary of Questionnaire responses (available on
Council website)
Schedule of detailed consultation responses received and
proposed changes to the Strategy (available on Council
website)
Revised final Strategy showing proposed changes
(attached)
Integrated Impact Assessment (attached)

Page 21

Agenda Item 7

Background Documents
None

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 13 November 2015

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Comments Sought
Finance
Yes

Comments checked by
Christine Little

Legal

Yes

Tony Cooke

Other Officers:

Yes

Warren Shadbolt

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 23

Agenda Item 7

Appendix A
Delegate feedback from the Cycling Delivery Strategy Consultation Workshop
breakout sessions (23/07/15):
Objective 1 - Make Sutton a more attractive borough for cycling and create a
high quality cycle route network
Implement London Cycle Design Standards = quick–wins
Make cross border links (Work with Surrey CC) = Joined-up in general
Improvements to Rose Hill roundabout
Help to realise Waddon Flyover Scheme (LB Croydon)
-nice segregation proposed
A24 Organ Inn to Morden (Surrey CC can help)
Link through Roundshaw playing fields
Park Lane railway bridge improvements
Formalise cycle access on Oaks Track
Correct issues in town centre (Cycle lane and ASL removed from High Street)
Don’t have shared use infrastructure (Cyclists and Peds)

Objective 2 - Make Sutton a safer borough for cycling
20 mph and traffic calming
-Humps/Chicanes can bring cars/ cycles too close
Design- design out danger/ consider vulnerable road users
- Peds/ cycles/ motors
- A217 off road track, standards
Segregation at junctions
- Corridors/ pavements, segregate
Relocating road space
- Demand
- Perception (parking)
- Cost
Missing measures? Teaching people to ride defensively
-

but cyclists shouldn’t have to cycle defensively
Bikeability- come away from kerb where driver looking
Education, for example cyclists lights, be visible – but people should not
have to wear hi-viz – normalise cycling
Enforcement - parking right way for side of road

Agenda Item 7

Page 24

Objective 3 - Encourage a shift from the car to cycling for shorter journeys
Sutton station- Cycle facilities. Secure. Proportion (Carshalton Beeches)
New flats / offices- good cycle parking
Community police- 20 mph motorists’ compliance
Awareness of limits. 70% of motorists break limit speeding
Safety – and volume of HGV’S
Schools, encourage cycling, school allocations- pupils travel further
Cycle shops
Push and pull- political support/ will culture change?
Confidence and habit of cycling
Availability of a bike
Young people
Electric bikes/ scooters
Exercise/ health ( gym)
Signage
Parking in cycle track ( Boundary Rd)
Top 21. Youngsters/ schools/ training/ safety
2. Secure cycle parking at flats, stations and offices/ Planning process
Objective 4 - Encourage safe and considerate behaviour by all road users
1234567-

Stop using phones by motorists
Stop parking in cycle lanes
Stop cyclists wearing headphones
Encourage motorists to go cycling
Encourage cyclists by training to becomes better cyclists
Produce training programme videos
Convert % modal share to numbers e.g. 2000- (1%), 4000 – (2%), 6000- (3%),
8000 - (4%)
8- We need measurable targets
9- Make cycle training attractive
10- Cycle proximity systems for HGV’S
11- CPC Certificate of professional competence
12- Safer urban driving
Top 2Education – All road users
-

Communication
Cycle lanes- no parking made compulsory
Exchanging places

Page 25

-

Agenda Item 7

Measurable targets for cycle training and cycle use

Cycle alert- technology to improve car and cyclist conflict
Safer Urban Driving - encourage better commitment
Objective 5 - Create a cycling culture by promoting cycling to a wider range of
people
1. Identifying key events with an opportunity for change
- Kids football events- Cheam recreational grounds
- Learn from Park Run in Nonsuch
They’ve owned the problem and encouraged participants to walk/cycle
2. Promote the hierarchy – doesn’t feel that this is the current experience
- Continuous cycle routes, for example St Dunstan’s Hill/ Reigate Avenue
- Programme of pulling back stop lines – A217
- Guidance exits
3. Off Road cycling through parks for less confident cycling
- Note links to Surrey possible
4. Bring “the fun” back events
-Creates encouragement to try Utrecht- weekly road closures
5. Eco local events
- “Get back into cycling” at David Weir Centre also adapted bikes
6. Promote cycle training that exists already and ensure offered as part of school
travel plans
7. Importance of perceived safety and pleasant infrastructure (road humps)
8. Feel quite a good understanding already, lack of confidence is an issue

Objective 6 - Actively promote cycling within the Council’s Sustainable
Transport Strategy
1. Education for parents about cycling
More direct engagement on local level, local committee traders/ workplace
residents
- Safety
- School run
- School engagement (Staff not children)
For example EcoLocal promote inclusive cycling at David Weir Centre through
-

Social media
Posters
Print media

Agenda Item 7

Page 26

 Revise comms policy to promote cycling throughout the year, for example
regular social media / tweets microsite
 Publicise cycle incidents/ signage to re-educate motorists and raise
awareness
 Lobby for change to law so that liability for collisions / injuries to cyclists
should lie with drivers unless they can prove otherwise (as in other EU
countries)
 Publish road traffic accident stats showing traffic incidents comparing cycling,
pedestrians and drivers

QUESTIONNAIRE
Sutton Council is consulting local
residents and stakeholders on its
draft Cycling Delivery Strategy
and would like to hear your views.

SECOND FOLD HERE
RESPONSE LICENCE No.
SEA135

Sutton Council has been a great supporter of sustainable
transport over the years, publishing a new Sustainable
Transport Strategy this year and achieving a 75% increase
in cycling during its Smarter Travel Sutton project which
ran from 2006 to 2009.
Sutton Council is also a supporter of the Mayor of London's
Vision for Cycling and has recently been promised funds
by Transport for London for two Quietway routes from
Morden to Sutton and Worcester Park to Croydon.

FIRST FOLD HERE - FOLD UNDER

Sutton's draft Cycling Delivery Strategy is in line with the
Council's vision to encourage more non-car forms of
transport to reduce traffic congestion, improve air quality
and public health, and reduce climate change.

LONDON BOROUGH OF SUTTON
ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOODS
24 DENMARK ROAD
CARSHALTON
SM5 2JG
FAO

Alex Forrest Strategic Planning

Please refer to the draft Strategy on www.sutton.gov.uk then let us know whether you support our
proposals and whether you have any other ideas for improving cycling by completing this Questionnaire.
1

Name ...........................................................................

3

If you are replying on behalf of an organisation, please tell us which one............................................................................

4

Do you support the Council's vision to make cycling a natural choice for people of all ages and backgrounds for
more of their trips in and through the borough?
Strongly support

5
THIRD FOLD HERE

The Strategy provides a
comprehensive statement of
the council's vision, objectives
and proposals for cycling,
and an action plan setting out
how these will be achieved
over the next ten years.

Support

Unsure

2 email ......................................................................................

Oppose

Strongly oppose

Please prioritise the six Objectives that underpin the Cycling Strategy:
(Please rank from 1 to 6 where 1 is the highest priority and 6 is the lowest)
Objective 1 Make Sutton a more attractive borough for cycling and create a high quality
cycle network
Objective 2 Make Sutton a safer borough for cycling

TUCK IN AND POST
Close questionnaire and turn to the back.
Simply fold under along the vertical dotted line
marked FIRST FOLD. Then fold under along
the SECOND FOLD line.Then tuck the third
fold into the back of the second fold and post no stamp needed.

Objective 3 Encourage a shift from the car to cycling for shorter journeys
Objective 4 Encourage safe and considerate behaviour by all road users
Objective 5 Create a cycling culture by promoting cycling to a wider range of people
Objective 6 Actively promote cycling within the Council’s Sustainable Transport Strategy

Priority

6

How far do you support targets to increase the
proportion of Sutton residents’ trips by bicycle
from 1% now to 2.2% by 2017 and 4% by 2025?
Strongly support
Support
Oppose
Strongly oppose

7

Unsure

17 How far do you support the measures being proposed
under Objective 6 to actively promote cycling within
the Councils Sustainable transport Strategy and
maximise the wider opportunities and benefits?
Strongly support
Support
Oppose
Strongly oppose

How far do you support the measures being
proposed under Objective 1 to make Sutton a
more attractive borough for cycling and create
a high quality cycle network?
Strongly support
Support
Oppose
Strongly oppose

8

12 Do you have any other suggestions to encourage
a shift from the car to cycling?

18 Do you have any other suggestions for actively
promoting cycling and the wider benefits of cycling?

Do you have any other suggestions for improving
the cycle network in Sutton?

13 How far do you support the measures being
proposed under Objective 4 to encourage safe
and considerate behaviour by all road users?
Unsure

14 Do you have any other suggestions for encouraging
safe and more considerate behaviour by all road users?

Strongly support
Support
Oppose
Strongly oppose

Several times a month
Several times a year
Never

Everyday
4-6 times a week
1-3 times a week

23 If you do not cycle please give reasons why?
Please tick all that apply

24 If you cycle regularly what is your main journey
purpose?
19 How far do you support the actions in the
Action Plan?
Strongly support
Support
Oppose
Strongly oppose

Unsure

20 Do you have any other suggestions for the Action Plan?

How far do you support the measures being
proposed under Objective 2 to make Sutton a
safer borough for cycling

22 How often do you cycle?

I never learnt to ride a bike
I have a disability
I can’t afford a bike
Cycling is not safe
I prefer to use other forms of transport
Cycling is not for people like me
Other
Not Applicable

Unsure

Strongly support
Support
Oppose
Strongly oppose

9

Unsure

About You

Unsure

Leisure
Shopping
Other
Not applicable

Work
School
College
Social

25 Do you use a bicycle in conjunction with any
other forms of transport? Please tick all that apply
Car
Other
Not applicable

Train
Tram
Bus

26 How many bicycles does your household own?

10 Do you have any other suggestions for improving
cycle safety in the borough?

Strongly support
Support
Oppose
Strongly oppose

27 Age group?

Unsure

16 Do you have any other suggestions for
encouraging a wider range of people to cycle?

3
4
5+

None
1
2

15 How far do you support the measures being proposed
under Objective 5 to create a cycling culture and
promote cycling to a wider range of people?

21 Do you have any other comments about cycling in
Sutton?

45-64
65 plus

16-25
26-44

28 Gender?
Male

Female

Trans.

29 Ethnic origin?

11 How far do you support the measures being
proposed under Objective 3 to encourage a shift
from the car to cycling for shorter journeys?
Strongly support
Support
Oppose
Strongly oppose

Unsure

Black: Afro-Caribbean
White British
Black: African
White European
Mixed race
White other
Asian: Indian / Pakistani / Bangladeshi
Asian: Chinese

30 Postcode (optional)

Page 29

Agenda Item 7

Appendix C
Summary of Cycling Delivery Strategy Consultation Questionnaire Responses
Question 4: Do you support the Council’s Vision to make cycling a natural choice for
people of all ages and backgrounds for more of their trips in and through the
borough?
Table 1 and Chart 1 show that approximately 86% of respondents strongly support the
Council’s vision to make cycling a natural choice for people of all ages and backgrounds for
more of their trips in the borough, while approximately 10% opposed or strongly opposed
this vision.
Option
Strongly Support
Support
Unsure
Oppose
Strongly Oppose
Not answered
Total
Table 1

Number
118
27
7
9
7
1
169

%
70%
16%
4%
5%
4%
1%

Do you support the council's vision?
Oppose
5%
Unsure
4%

Strongly Oppose
4%

Not answered
1%

Support
16%
Strongly Support
70%

Chart 1

Page 30

Agenda Item 7

Question 5: Please prioritise the six objectives that underpin the cycling strategy
(Please rank from 1 to 6 where 1 is the highest priority and 6 is the lowest)
Objective 2 is the most supported objective with 44% of respondents ranking this first. The
order of priorities is summarised in the list below showing the % ranking it first, while Chart 2
shows the full breakdown of the rankings.
1. Objective 2: Make Sutton a safer borough for cycling (44%).
2. Objective 1: Make Sutton a more attractive borough for cycling and create a high quality
cycle network (39%).
3. Objective 4: Encourage safe and considerate behaviour by all road users (31%)
4. Objective 3: Encourage a shift from the car to cycling for shorter journeys (16%)
5. Objective 5: Create a cycling culture by promoting cycling to a wider range of people
(13%).
6. Objective 6: To actively promote cycling within Council’s Sustainable Transport Strategy
(12%).

Priorities of the 6 objectives
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%
Objective 1

Objective 2
1st

Chart 2

2nd

Objective 3
3rd

4th

5th

Objective 4
6th

Objective 5

Not answered/Blank

Objective 6

Page 31

Agenda Item 7

Question 6: How far do you support targets to increase the proportion of Sutton
residents’ trips by bicycle from 1% now to 2.2% by 2017 and 4% by 2025?
Over 80% of the respondents supported these targets while only 8% opposed them, as
shown in Table 3 and Chart 3.
Option
Strongly Support

Number
101

%
60%

Support

38

22%

Unsure

14

8%

Oppose

7

4%

Strongly Oppose

7

4%

Not answered

2

1%

Total

169

Table 3

How far do you support targets?
Strongly Oppose
4%
Oppose
4%

Not answered
1%

Unsure
8%

Support
23%

Strongly Support
60%

Chart 3

Question 7: How far do you support the measures being proposed under Objective 1
to make Sutton a more attractive borough for cycling and create a high quality cycle
network?
83% of the respondents support the proposed measures to make Sutton a more attractive
borough for cycling and create a high quality cycle network.

Page 32

Agenda Item 7

Question 9: How far do you support the measures being proposed under Objective 2
to make Sutton a safer borough for cycling?
83% of the respondents support the proposed measures to make Sutton a safer borough for
cycling.
Question 11: How far do you support the measures being proposed under Objective 3
to encourage a shift from the car to cycling for shorter journeys?
77% of the respondents support the proposed measures targeting a shift from the car to
encourage cycling for shorter journeys.
Question 13: How far do you support the measures being proposed under Objective 4
to encourage safe and considerate behaviour by all road users?
88% of the respondents support the proposed measures aimed at encouraging safe and
considerate behaviour by all road users. This is the highest figure among all the objectives.
Question 15: How far do you support the measures being proposed under Objective 5
to create a cycling culture and promote cycling to a wider range of people?
81% of the respondents support the proposed measures to create a cycling culture and
promote cycling to a wider range of people.
Question 17: How far do you support the measures being proposed under Objective 6
to create a cycling culture and promote cycling to a wider range of people?
74% of the respondents support the proposed measures to actively promote cycling within
the Council’s Sustainable Transport Strategy. This is the lowest figure among all the
objectives but is still far higher than the opposition to these measures.
Table 4 summarises the responses in Questions 7, 9, 11, 13, 15 and 17.
Strongly
Support

Support

Unsure

Oppose

Strongly
Oppose

Not
answered

Objective 1

61%

22%

7%

5%

4%

1%

Objective 2

65%

18%

5%

7%

2%

2%

Objective 3

53%

25%

11%

5%

4%

2%

Objective 4

62%

26%

4%

4%

2%

2%

Objective 5

51%

30%

7%

5%

5%

3%

Objective 6

44%

30%

12%

5%

6%

4%

Table 4

Page 33

Agenda Item 7

Question 19: How far do you support the actions in the Action Plan?
The actions of the Action Plan are supported by approximately 82% of the respondents,
whereas 10% are opposed on these. Table 5 and Chart 5 show the total results.
Option

Number
76

%
45%

46

27%

26

15%

6

4%

10

6%

5

3%

Strongly Support
Support
Unsure
Oppose
Strongly Oppose
Not answered
Total
Table 5

169

How far do you support the actions in the Action Plan?

Oppose
4%

Strongly Oppose
6%

Unsure
15%

Support
27%

Chart 5

Not answered
3%

Strongly Support
45%

Agenda Item 7

Page 34

Question 22: How often do you cycle?
The responses to this question are quite evenly spread. 21% of respondents cycle at least
four times a week and 20% at least once a week. However, only 13% cycle every day. About
one quarter of respondents do not cycle and one fifth cycle occasionally. Table 6 shows the
results in detail.
Option
Every day
4-6 times a week
1-3 times a week
several times a month
several times a year
never
Not answered
Total
Table 6

Number
22
36
34
13
20
43
1
169

%
13%
21%
20%
8%
12%
25%
1%

Question 23: If you do not cycle, please give reasons why?
In this question multiple answers were allowed. 31 people answered that cycling is not safe,
while 24 answered that they prefer to use other forms of transport. The majority of the
respondents answered that is not applicable or there are other reasons that they do not
cycle. It is clear that safety is by far one of the most important factors in order to increase
cycling modal share. Table 7 shows the results in detail.
Option
I never learnt to ride a bike
I have a disability
I can’t afford a bike
Cycling is not safe
I prefer to use other forms of
transport
Cycling is not for people like
me
Other
Not applicable
Total
Table 7

Number of responses
4
5
2
31

% of responses
3%
4%
1%
23%

24

18%

2
33
36
137

1%
24%
26%

Page 35

Agenda Item 7

Question 24: If you cycle regularly what is your main journey purpose?
In terms of journey purpose the dominant reason for those who cycle regularly is work.
Approximately one quarter answered that the purpose is not applicable or other. About one
fifth mainly cycle for leisure journeys. Only 5% go shopping by bike. The detailed results are
shown in Table 8.
Option
Work
School
College
Social
Leisure
Shopping
Other
Not applicable
Not answered
Total
Table 8

Number
53
1
1
6
36
8
4
41
18
168

%
32%
1%
1%
4%
21%
5%
2%
24%
11%

Question 25: Do you use a bicycle in conjunction with any other forms of transport?
In this question multiple answers were allowed. 51 people answered that they combine use
of a bicycle with train, while 41 combine bicycle with car. Only 19 people combine bicycle
with bus. The majority of the respondents answered that is not applicable. Table 9 shows the
detailed results.
Option
Train
Tram
Bus
Car
Other
Not applicable
Total
Table 9

Number of responses
51
9
19
41
2
77
199

% of responses
26%
5%
10%
21%
1%
39%

Page 36

Agenda Item 7

Question 26: How many bicycles does your household own?
The average cycle ownership is 2.66 bicycles per household according to the survey. The
majority (23%) of the households own one bicycle. 35% own 2-3 bicycles while 26% own
over 4 bicycles per household. Table 10 shows the detailed results.
No. of bicycles owned
None
1
2
3
4
5+
Not answered
Total
Table 10

Number
24
39
30
29
23
21
3
169

%
14%
23%
18%
17%
14%
12%
2%

Question 27: Which is your age group?
People answered in the survey were mainly over 26 years old. Only 1% from the age group
of 16 to 25 responded to the questionnaire. This is not representative percentage of this age
group according to the Census 2011. The majority of the respondents are from the age of 45
to 64. Table 11 shows the comparison between the age of survey population and Census
2011.
Age range
16 to 25
26 to 44
45 to 64
65 plus
Not answered
Total
Table 11

Number
2
53
74
39
1
169

%
1%
31%
44%
23%
1%

Question 28: What is your gender?
72% of the respondents were male and 26% female, while 2% did not answer this question.
Question 29: Which of these represents your ethnic group or origin?
In terms of ethnic group and origin the dominant answer is ‘White British’ - 83% of the
respondents are in this ethnic group.

Appendix D - Schedule of Comments received in response to the Draft Cycling Strategy Consultation
Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
Get Sutton Cycling
1.
General

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Disappointed with lack of ambition in practical terms, the limited The Strategy has to strike a balance between showing
proposals in the action plan and the very relaxed timescale.
ambition and being realistic, given the limited budget
and staff resources for cycling. The Action Plan will be
updated annually and new proposals will be added,
and the timescale will also be reviewed and where
possible expedited.
A step-change in the approach the council takes to cycling is The Strategy seeks to establish the foundations for a
required. The Strategy is a step in the right direction, but there step-change, and also to recognise that cycling is for
needs to be more recognition that cycling is for the many and the many. We will consider whether this can be made
not just for the few.
clearer.

3.

General

Political support is paramount. We consider there to be lack of
detail in the strategy on how the case will be made in garnering
public support for the broader vision.

4.
5.

General
Page 5;
Para. 2.2

6.

Page 9;
Para. 2.17

24 aspects of the Strategy that they like are listed.
There are no specific examples in the Draft Strategy of how
reducing car dependency is to be achieved beyond vague
suggestions around ‘improving’ and ‘encouraging’ the use of
‘sustainable transport options’. If motorists are to be
discouraged from using their cars, then both the justification for
this, and the benefits that comes from it, have to be clearly
stated.
The stated targets for increasing cycle mode share (from the
new Sustainable Transport Strategy) “from a baseline of 1% to
2.2% in the short term (2017) and to 4% by 2025” are abstract
and difficult to understand. We would love to see cycling double
in the next eighteen months, but consider that highly unlikely
and unachievable. On the other hand, to take ten years to reach
the target of 4% (already below the mode share of some inner
London boroughs) appears to be unambitious.

7.

Page 12;
Para. 3.6
(new para.

Add
a
new
sentence to para.
1.4 about making
cycling attractive to
the many and not
just the few.
The Foreword from Cllr. Whitehead hopefully Quotes
from
demonstrates the political support. Further quotes will Councillors to be
be added from Cllr. Dombey and an opposition added.
Councillor.
Noted
No change
Reducing car dependency is a more general objective No change
of the Sustainable Transport Strategy which is
covered there. The implementation of the Cycling
Strategy will contribute to this objective by increasing
the attractiveness of cycling as an alternative to the
car.
These targets have been agreed in the new No change
Sustainable Transport Strategy, but will be monitored
and reviewed annually and can be adjusted if it is
considered they are unrealistic or un-ambitious. We
will seek to meet them sooner if possible. While the
percentages are small the low modal share at present
for cycling means these targets will require quite a
substantial increase in the number of people cycling.

In relation to the development of the Quietways, we are Agreed. We will move this to ‘what we will do’.
surprised to read that these appear under the “what we do”
subheading to the first objective, rather than “what we will do”.

Agenda Item 7

General

No change

Page 37

2.

Proposed Change

Move Quietways to
‘what we will do’
section
under

Page 12;
Para. 3.4
(new para.
3.10)

9.

Page 15;
Para. 3.9
(new para.
3.6)

10.

Page 15;
Para. 3.9
(new para.
3.7)

11.

Page 15;
Para. 3.9
(new para.

LBS Officer Response

The development of these routes will be in the future, and we
cannot see how these will be “delivered within the short to
medium term” given the scope and magnitude of the project.
Medium term perhaps.
There is considerable disappointment to read that the
“overarching principle for the Quietways infrastructure is ‘lines
and signs’ rather than major new infrastructure”. This is not how
the Mayor’s Vision for Cycling describes Quietways. New
infrastructure will be required.
There is some concern over the caveat “as far as possible” in
regards to how all new schemes or improvement works should
be designed in accordance with the latest London Cycling
Design Standards. To ensure that ‘as far as possible’ is not
interpreted as meaning ‘too difficult’ the Strategy needs to
qualify and expand on this, and cite likely examples of the
circumstances under which exemption would be justified.
“A full audit of our current cycle network to investigate how
specific infrastructure for cycling and the network as a whole
performs against the LCDS” is welcome, but we would like to
see this process start in the short term rather than in the
medium term as specified. We understand that prior to Cycling
Level of Service (CLoS) assessment being made, there is a
requirement to review the existing conditions, develop analysis
on route density (ideally no more than 400 metre separation),
make a classification of streets against bikeability levels, and
carry out area porosity analysis to identify gateways for routes.
These are important and essential procedures and relatively
simple actions to organise and implement.

Proposed Change

medium
term
opportunities.
Agreed, although the Mayor’s Cycling Commissioner
has referred to Quietways being largely ‘lines and
signs’. We will amend this reference to recognise the
need for some infrastructure improvements as well.

Amend para. 3.4
on Quietways to
reflect need for
some infrastructure
improvements.
For the avoidance of doubt it may be preferable to Remove the words
remove the caveat ‘as far as possible’. TfL require all ‘as far as possible’
cycling schemes that they are funding to be in in para 3.9.
compliance with the LCDS and the Council should
aspire to these standards in any other schemes it
funds. The word ‘should’ provides sufficient get out if
there are situations where it is not possible.
The short term is defined in the Strategy as 2015/16. Amend timeframes
Given that the final Strategy will not be published until to include the year
early 2016 it is recommended changing the definitions 2016/17 in the
of the timeframes so that short term includes 2016/17. short term.
This means this action will start in the short term.
However it is quite a labour and time intensive
exercise so it could take some time and as it is not
funded directly by TfL it will not be a priority, unless
funding can be found to employ consultants to carry
out this work.

Page 38

8.

Comment

Agenda Item 7

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
Get Sutton Cycling
3.10)

Identifying “quick-win, short–term actions” is understandable. Agreed. We will consider how to change this wording Remove reference
However, suggesting that “surface improvements, maintenance to include other ‘quick-wins’ that show more ambition. to
surface
and signage” is amongst them does not seem appropriate for Surface improvements and maintenance are important improvements and

2

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
Get Sutton Cycling
3.8)

Page 18;
Para. 3.10
(new para.
3.13)

13.

Page 18;
Para. 3.11
and 3.15
(new para.
3.17)

14.

Page 18;
Para. 3.13
(new para.
3.21)

LBS Officer Response

Proposed Change

the Strategy. If Sutton was the pro-cycling borough it claims to but ought to be a given, and should be referred to maintenance here
be, such actions would be ongoing and street surfaces and elsewhere in the Strategy.
and add alternative
signage would not be in need of repair.
suggestions
for
short term quickwins.
The development of “implementation-ready ... high-impact It is accepted that the case will need to be made for Add a new para.
schemes” that can be taken forward “within the shortest any cycling scheme and approval sought through the under Objective 6
possible timeframe” on occasions “when funding opportunities appropriate mechanism. We could add a paragraph about how the
arise”, sounds, in theory, to be an extremely useful proposal. In under Objective 6 setting out how the Council will Council will build
practice, though, the process of delivering high-impact schemes seek to gain public and political support for cycling support and gain
is likely to meet with demanding and challenging resistance schemes and overcome resistance from some approval for cycling
from some quarters. The Strategy needs to set out how such quarters. We will start to develop a two-year rolling schemes.
issues will be addressed, to ensure the case has been made, programme of schemes so that we can spend a year
well ahead of receiving any financial commitment.
getting schemes designed and approved prior to
implementation.
The claim that interventions to “deliver packages of measures to The phraseology throughout the Strategy is that of the Strengthen
the
reduce traffic volumes and speeds through residential areas to consultant and in some cases it is too vague or non- wording in para.
create environments suitable for cycling” is included under what committal. We could strengthen this statement to 3.15.
we do, is interesting. The addition of the phrase “over the years” provide more certainty and commitment.
only seems to further emphasise the low priority that has been
given to cycling. A stronger statement than “there are further
opportunities that we wish to explore” is required to give more
confidence that there is true commitment to actually do so.

Page 39

12.

Comment

3

Agreed. A number of examples will be provided of
how such corridor and neighbourhood schemes will
improve conditions for cycling. Further detail could be
provided in a supporting document on designing for
cycling.

Add more detail on
how corridor and
neighbourhood
schemes will
incorporate
measures to
improve conditions
for cycling.

Agenda Item 7

The Strategy needs to state precisely how the incorporation of
measures to benefit “all users” in the corridor safety schemes
will result in a landscape that will feel safe enough to entice
more people to cycle. All of these projects must be taken as
opportunities to attempt to reduce motor traffic volume and
levels, and ideally incorporate cycling infrastructure.

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Agenda Item 7

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
Get Sutton Cycling
15.
Page 18;
3.15
(new para.
3.22)
16.
Page 16;
Para. 3.15
(new para.
3.19)
17.
Page 18;
Para. 3.15
(new para.
3.24)

Proposed Change

There is concern that the Council’s current policy, piecemeal
approach, and method of implementation to 20mph is
inconsistent and ineffective, with the result that many existing
20mph zones do little for cycling.
Contraflow cycling is welcome, but something in addition to lines
and signs may be required.

Noted. Policy on 20mph speed limits is outside the No change
scope of the Cycling Strategy. It was covered briefly in
the Sustainable Transport Strategy and a more
detailed policy is currently being developed.
Noted. Where possible segregated lanes will be No change.
provided.

“Low traffic neighbourhood” is a concept to be greatly
encouraged, but needs careful attention to detail. At the few
locations in Sutton where these arrangements are currently in
place, car parking often obstructs the route for cyclists and
pedestrians.
The requirement for cycle parking is welcome, but development
plans should also review safe routes to the cycle parking and
consider infrastructure changes to facilitate this.

Noted. Any new ‘low traffic zones’ zones will be
carefully designed to prevent obstructive parking.

No change

Page 19;
Para. 3.16
and 3.21
(new paras.
3.25 & 3.29)

19.

Page 19;
Para. 3.18
(new para.
3.27)

We would like the Strategy to include details of funding that has Providing such information is too detailed for this
been secured for each of the junior school expansions, and strategy but could be provided as an Appendix or
what this had actually delivered. Future projects need to focus supporting document.
on securing funding that provides improvements beyond “the
immediate environment around the school”.

20.

Page 21;
Para. 3.26
(new para.

This sections of the Strategy details measures taken to educate Noted. We could add an action to undertake a Consider adding a
cyclists and lorry drivers, but not the “average motorist”. We publicity and educational campaign about cyclists’ new bullet in para.
3.26
about
would like to see an initiative to encourage motorists to give safety targeting all motorists.

4

Noted. Larger developments should be required to No change
provide safe cycle routes within their sites and also to
review cycle routes to the development as part of the
Transport Assessment. Where appropriate the Council
will expect the developer to fund improvements to
cycling infrastructure through a Section 106
Agreement.

Page 40

18.

Consider including
information
on
school
transport
improvements as
an Appendix or
supporting
document.

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
Get Sutton Cycling
3.34)

Page 21;
Para. 3.26
(new para.
3.34)

22.

23.

Page 24;
Para. 3.32
(new para.
3.34)
General

24.

General

LBS Officer Response

space to cyclists.

Proposed Change

targeting
motorists.

all

While we welcome the commitment to training, we question the Noted. We could consider rewording that sentence to
degree to which it is the key to “encouraging and instilling reflect the importance of good design and
positive and safe interactions between cyclists and other road infrastructure.
users”, especially compared to the contribution of good
infrastructure.

Change
the
emphasis of the
first sentence of
para.
3.26
by
replacing the word
‘key’
with
‘important’.
Education, training and marketing are all welcome initiatives. Noted. This section relates to Objective 5 which is No change.
However, the wording of this section needs to be amended in about promoting cycling. Objectives 1 and 2 relate to
recognition of the fact that the major barrier to wider infrastructure and safety.
participation in cycling is poor cycling infrastructure.
The last occasion on which Sutton Council published intentions Noted. This is an old document that was never No change
specifically for cycling in the borough was in a Cycling Action published or widely used.
Plan produced in about 2006/2007. The document was not
published at the time, and has not been promoted since. There
is no reference to it, or details of any progress having been
made on it, in the 2015 draft Cycling Strategy. This gives a lot of
concern that the new Strategy will just end up on a shelf.
The Sustainable Transport Strategy, approved at a meeting of The delay in publishing the Sustainable Transport No change.
the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee in March 2015, Strategy (STS) was due to the purdah period for the
first appeared on the council’s website at the end of July 2015 General Election. Once the Cycling Strategy is
through a link provided on the consultation page for the draft finalised it will be published promptly and given due
Cycling Delivery Strategy. As of early September, a search for publicity alongside the STS.
‘Sustainable Transport Strategy’ at sutton.gov.uk fails to return
the document. As we stated in our response to the consultation
on draft Sustainable Transport Strategy, the document requires
full promotion. Without high visibility, there will be serious
implications on delivery. There is concern that the Council is not
giving sustainable transport sufficient priority.

Page 41

21.

Comment

Agenda Item 7

5

General

27.

General

28.

Add O1.11

29.

General

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Proposed Change

One indicator of how seriously the Council takes cycling, is the
degree to which existing infrastructure is maintained. Currently,
whether it is the routine sweeping of paths, periodic checks on
signage, or major repairs to path surfaces, this is to all intents
and purposes completely lacking.
Sutton needs a comprehensive, high quality, and properly joined
up cycle network, where people do not have to cycle more than
400m to find a parallel route of similar quality. This will mean
using filtered permeability to close rat runs and building
segregated cycle paths on busier roads.
The successful delivery of Sutton’s first two Quietways is highly
important, and there is a need to set a high standard from the
outset. There is an expectation that route alignment will be
direct, with the difference between route length and the straightline distance kept to a minimum. Delivery must be in
accordance with the London Cycling Design Standards, and
there is an expectation that all sections of each route will
achieve a score of at least 60% on the Cycling Level of Service
assessment. The longer term aim for compliance of 70% or
above.

Noted. This is something that should be done
routinely. We could include a paragraph on
maintenance in the Strategy, stating the importance of
this and the need for a more thorough maintenance
regime for cycle routes.
Reference could be made to the need to create a
comprehensive cycle network with the aim that the
majority of residents are no more than 400m from a
cycle route (as with bus routes).

Add a paragraph
on maintenance in
an appropriate
place in the
Strategy.
Add a reference to
the need to create
a comprehensive
cycle route network
in para. 3.7.
Make reference to
CLOS and LCDS in
the section on
Quietways (paras.
3.4-3.10).

Noted. Reference could be made to the principle of
‘Cycling Level of Service’ (CLOS) and the need for
Quietways to be high quality and in accordance with
the LCDS.

Suggest adding review of Space for Cycling ‘ward asks’ to the It is not considered appropriate to include the Ward No change
Action Plan.
Asks in the Action Plan, but specific schemes arising
from them could be added in the future.
Simply creating 20mph zones will not be enough – streets really Noted. A new pilot neighbourhood 20mph zone as No change.
need to look as though they are designed for lower speed, to referred to in the Strategy would be an opportunity to
get lower speed. Designing for lower speed will not be adopt a more comprehensive and holistic approach to
achievable on all streets at the outset, so enforcement will play introducing such zones which would prioritise walking
a part initially. Area-wide, ideally borough-wide, implementation and cycling. It is not considered appropriate to spell
would bring costs down, give a clear message, and set the out such measures in detail in this Strategy but arising
agenda. Meanwhile, a wider application of interventions such as from this and the Sustainable Transport Strategy the
closing roads to through traffic except for people on foot or on a Council may develop some borough street design

6

Page 42

26.

Agenda Item 7

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
Get Sutton Cycling
25.
General

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
Get Sutton Cycling

31.

General

32.

General

33.

General

34.

General

35.

General

Proposed Change

bike, the use of contra-flow lanes, and making space for cycling, guidance which would cover design issues in more
will help design-in lower speeds. All streets need to be fully detail.
accessible by people when they are walking or cycling, so all
one-way streets need contraflow for cyclists.
Identifying locations to establish low traffic neighbourhoods is Noted.
No change.
very much supported. Trial street closures, possibly through the
Play Streets initiative, could help move debate forward.

It is often said that closing roads puts increased pressure on
nearby streets, traffic congestion intensifies, and one street’s
gain is another street’s loss. The reality is, when streets are
closed, traffic adapts and life goes on. The most important
aspect to recognise is that the need to unravel traffic modes is
the key to the delivery of cycling.
To achieve any meaningful shift from the car to bicycle, cycling
must be made at least as easy as driving. Cycling is a true doorto-door form of transport, but when residents have nowhere to
conveniently keep their vehicle at home a lot of the convenience
disappears. One option could be on-street Bikehangars.
Good physical design and high quality infrastructure is the key
to designing out the potential for conflict between people on
bikes and those in motor vehicles. Without dedicated fit-forpurpose infrastructure, cycling for day-to-day journeys will
remain limited to those prepared to do battle with traffic.
It is essential that thorough assessments be made of the
options for segregation on all the busy high-profile routes across
the borough. Continuous liaison with Transport for London is
imperative.
It is not clear why the measure to investigate segregated routes
is included under this particular objective.

7

Noted

No change.

Agreed. Make reference to the need for convenient Add a reference to
cycle parking at home and the Council’s programme this in para.
to install residential cycle parking in public housing 3.20/3.21.
estates, and the potential for Bike-hangars on street.
Noted. This section relates to Objective 5 which is
about promoting safer cycling. Objectives 1 and 2
relate to infrastructure and safety and cover
infrastructure in more detail.

No change.

Noted. This is being carried out as part of our Roads No change.
Task Force work and the assessment of the London
Cycling Campaign’s Ward Asks.
This relates to ensuring safe interactions between No change.
cyclists and heavy traffic, particularly HGVs, on main

Agenda Item 7

General

LBS Officer Response

Page 43

30.

Comment

General

37.

General

38.

General

39.

General

LBS Officer Response

Proposed Change

roads and busy junctions. Whilst it relates to
infrastructure it is appropriate to mention it here.
The role that walking and cycling can play in ensuring that Agreed. The Strategy does not refer to the health Make reference to
people put active travel into their day-to-day routines, and so benefits of cycling, yet this is an important benefit that the health benefits
reduce the risk of an number of illnesses, is being seen as should be promoted.
of cycling,
increasingly important factor.
particularly for
older people, under
Objective 5.
The commissioning of a comprehensive travel survey is very Noted. This will be borne in mind when the travel No change.
welcome. The survey process could be used to inform residents survey is commissioned.
about the bigger vision for cycling in the borough. Targeting the
survey to particular areas of the borough, perhaps to locations
close to the route of a Quietway or an individual ward (e.g.
Beddington South) could be an option to consider.
For this Cycling Strategy to successfully start the process of Noted.
No change.
ultimately delivering a step-change for cycling in the borough, it
will require:
Strong Political commitment locally
A recognition that things will be challenging and that the
case, however difficult, needs to be made
A commitment on action, rather than just words
The borough’s new Sustainable Transport Strategy (June 2015) Noted. These targets have now been agreed in the No change.
committed to a target of increasing cycle mode share from a new Sustainable Transport Strategy so cannot be
baseline of 1% (average 2009/10 – 2010/11) to 2.2% by 2017 changed. However, they could be revised when both
and to 4% by 2025. In other words, a four-fold (300%) increase the STS and the Cycling Delivery Strategy are
in the number of trips by bicycle over about fifteen years (2010- reviewed and progress towards them monitored.
2025). We recommend the 4% target date be brought forward to
2022 (equating to a four-fold increase over twelve years) and
that a target of 6% is set for 2025 (more accurately reflecting,
perhaps, a significant take-up in cycling aligned to the period
during which high-quality infrastructure can be expected to be
more widespread across the borough (2020-2025).

Page 44

36.

Comment

Agenda Item 7

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
Get Sutton Cycling

8

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
Get Sutton Cycling
40.
General

Comment

LBS Officer Response

We would like the Strategy to provide details of how cycle use is
monitored (whether by automatic traffic counters, manual
counts, cordon and screenline counts, national data, surveys,
etc.), and for regular updates on findings to be provided.
The street environment in the borough is generally not
conducive to attracting new people to cycling. Rather than
claiming a lot has been achieved in the past, we recommend
that the Strategy’s focus be directed more on how a new
approach will bring changes.

Noted. A paragraph on how cycle use is monitored Add a new para. on
could be included after para. 4.5 under Monitoring and how cycle use is
Review.
monitored after
para. 4.5.
The focus of the Strategy is intended to be forward Review wording /
looking and setting out a new approach. The Strategy approach of
could be reviewed to ensure this is clearer.
Strategy to ensure
it is forward looking
and clearly sets out
a new approach.

42.

General

The Strategy needs to give more recognition to the many Noted. We could add something about the challenges
challenges that are faced in the delivery of stress-free cycling, of delivery and the need for close co-operation with
give the current propensity for even short journeys to be made TfL and other boroughs under Objective 6.
by car. We would recommend closer liaison with Transport for
London, closer co-operation with other agencies delivering
cycling and with boroughs that are currently delivering their
mini-Holland schemes, and for staff to visit other European
countries to appreciate what can be done and learn from their
lessons.

43.

General

We recommend that an additional benefit resulting from the Agreed. Include this additional bullet point.
delivery of a step change in cycling. ‘Better places for everyone’,
is added to the list detailed in the introduction, and that this be
more strongly promoted throughout the document:
A fitter, healthier and happier population;
Improved air quality and reduced CO2 emissions;
Reduced congestion and enhanced transport efficiency;
Improved and enhanced mobility for those without
access to cars, and better social inclusion;

Add additional
paras. under
Objective 6 about
the challenges
involved in the
delivery process
and how these will
be addressed, and
the need for close
co-operation with
TfL and other
boroughs.
Add this additional
bullet point to the
list in para. 1.6.

Agenda Item 7

General

Page 45

41.

9

Proposed Change

General

45.

General

46.

General

47.

General

48.

General

LBS Officer Response

Encouraging greater use of local shops and facilities to
support the local economy; and
Better places for everyone (as detailed as one of four
important outcomes highlighted for the Mayor’s Vision
for Cycling)
We would like the Strategy to provide clear detail of how it will
be used at Local Area Committee meetings, particularly in
respect of transport and planning related decisions, and
contentious issues including parking.

Proposed Change

It is not considered appropriate to set this out in the No change
Strategy but it will hopefully be used to influence
decision making at a Local Committee and Boroughwide Committee level to ensure a higher priority for
cycling.

We would like a commitment to the production of quarterly It is considered that quarterly updates would be too
updates to compliment the ‘live’ nature of the Strategy.
onerous on scarce staff resources but an annual
update report will be produced.
To give the Strategy immediate relevance, we would like the Noted. It has been agreed that such quotes will be
final version to include supportive quotes from a number of included in the final Strategy.
councillors across all political parties. These could include those
who have shown support for Space for Cycling in their wards,
and it would be helpful to have input from Ruth Dombey, Leader
of the Council, too.

No change

Page 46

44.

Comment

Agenda Item 7

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
Get Sutton Cycling

Include quotes
from Cllr. Dombey
and Cllr. Garrett
(opposition) in the
final strategy.

We would like to see the Strategy clearly state that all A new para. to this effect could be included under Consider including
councillors will work together with the residents in their wards on Objective 6 ‘what we will do’.
a new para. on the
a united front.
role of Councillors
in assisting to
promote the
Strategy under
Objective 6.
At the moment in Sutton we seem to be planning facilities with Noted. The Strategy is intended to instigate a ‘step- No change
the expectation that the current low levels of cycling will change’ in provision and design standards, influenced

10

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
Get Sutton Cycling

50.

General

51.

General

52.

General

53.

54.

continue. In the future, cycling needs to be treated as a grownup form of transport and worthy of delivering the best schemes.
The final Strategy needs to be fully promoted – this is an
absolutely fundamental requirement. We recommend that the
Council ensures that every resident knows about it
A step-change in the approach taken by the Council to deliver
on cycling is a key requirement. The Strategy needs to indicate
that bold decisions will be made, set out how improvements for
cycling can benefit society as a whole, and give some indication
of what its legacy will be in twenty years time.

Proposed Change

by the London Cycling Design Standards.
Once it has been approved the final Strategy will be
fully promoted both within and outside the Council.

No change

A new para. on ‘Implementation’ could be added
either under Objective 6 what we will do, or in Section
4, Making it Happen, covering these issues.

Consider adding a
new para. on
‘Implementation’

There needs to be recognition in the Strategy that a major A reference to the importance of good quality cycling
barrier to wider participation in cycling is lack of infrastructure.
infrastructure to wider cycling participation could be
added to para. 3.7.
A full audit of the current network needs to be identified in the This audit will be carried out as soon as is practicable
Strategy as a short term, as well as medium term objective.
and resources allow. It is intended to amend the
definition of short term to include the financial year
2016/17, when it is hoped to commence this audit.

Add such a
reference to para.
3.7.
No change

General

The Strategy needs to provide a guarantee to undertake regular
checks of existing cycling infrastructure, including the sweeping
of paths, repairs to signage, and an undertaking to maintain and
repair path surfaces and to report that this had been carried out.

General

We would recommend a commitment in the Strategy for the LIP funding should not really be used for training, but
Council to allocate a proportion of the LIP funding allocation for other budgets may be available, and some training
the coming year towards staff training on the London Cycling courses are free, such as the Urban Design London

Add a new bullet
under Objective 6
on inspection and
maintenance of
existing cycle
infrastructure.
No change

11

A new bullet point could be added under Objective 6
setting out an action on inspections and maintenance
of cycle paths and signage, which is an important
demonstration of the Council’s commitment to cycling.

Agenda Item 7

General

LBS Officer Response

Page 47

49.

Comment

General

56.

General

57.

General

LBS Officer Response

Design Standards, Network Analysis, and Cycling Level of
Service assessments, as a priority over the production of many
of the currently proposed cycle schemes that will have impact
on cycling levels.

ones, to which the Council subscribes. Staff involved
in designing and implementing traffic and cycling
schemes will be encouraged to attend such training
courses and be aware of current guidance and
thinking. This is covered in para. 3.7.

If the Council genuinely wants to encourage cycling and Noted. The Council’s new Sustainable Transport
walking, this of necessity implies some discouragement of Strategy sets out the broader approach to promoting
driving.
sustainable transport, which includes seeking to
achieve a modal shift from the car to walking and
cycling. This includes a ‘Road User Hierarchy’ setting
out the relative priority of the modes. The Cycling
Strategy supports this approach.
The ongoing major schools expansion project continues to Generally school expansion projects, which are largely
provide a source of funding for local transport improvements, Council-led, do not provide substantial funds for
and these have generally focused on the immediate transport improvements. Any improvements are
environment around the school. It would be useful to include usually confined to the site and immediate vicinity. For
one or more case studies in the final Strategy, highlighting what new schools the Council can apply for additional
has been achieved.
funding from the Government’s Education Funding
Authority for transport improvements.
Where funding is available for the expansion of a school that is
A new sentence could be added in para. 3.18 under
located on a residential street e.g. Dorchester Primary, we
Objective 3 stating that the Council will seek to
would like to see a commitment in the Strategy for an approach
improve the cycling environment around schools as
towards making all areas outside the school low traffic-volume
part of school expansions and new schools.
‘cycle streets’. For major school developments, situated on busy
roads, like that currently proposed for Hackbridge Primary
School, London Road (A237), the Strategy could reflect the

12

Proposed Change

No change

Page 48

55.

Comment

Agenda Item 7

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
Get Sutton Cycling

No change

Include new
sentence to this
effect in para. 3.18.

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
Get Sutton Cycling

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Proposed Change

opportunities that such projects provide for sustainable transport
enhancements over a wider area.

No change

Noted. The borough’s existing cycle network will be No change
audited at the earliest opportunity, and we welcome
TfL’s offer of assistance with this.

Noted. This approach will be considered.

No change

Noted. The Council is will soon merge its Highways No change
and Transport service with Kingston and this will
enable a closer working relationship with that borough.
We also work closely with other neighbouring
boroughs to ensure cycle routes are joined up.
Noted. These opportunities for linking routes up can No change
be discussed at the borough’s forthcoming Quietways
meeting with TfL.

Agenda Item 7

13

Noted

Page 49

Transport for London (TfL)
58.
General
TfL generally supports the strategy which aims to encourage
cycling throughout the borough and complement Sutton’s
Sustainable Transport Strategy.
59.
Para. 3.9
TfL welcome the borough’s commitment to audit routes using
(new para.
the London Cycling Design Standards (LCDS). However, TfL
3.6)
suggests the borough networks are audited first rather than just
relying on Quietways, to ensure there is a strategy to cover the
whole borough. TfL welcomes further discussions on this and is
able to assist analysing the routes.
60.
Para. 3.9
Sutton is encouraged to follow the LCDS template which uses
(new para.
the step by step process, shown in LCDS Chapter 2. TfL can
3.6)
provide examples of how this has been competed by other
boroughs to produce a robust plan.
61.
Kingston was one of the successful boroughs to win the mini
Holland bid, TfL encourages Sutton to work with the surrounding
boroughs to ensure cycle routes link up through the areas. TfL
believes routes 142 and 141 have the potential to join up with
the mini Holland routes running through Kingston.
62.
Route 142 could be extended to link with the New Malden to
Raynes Park scheme, whilst proposed Queitway 141 could link
with the Cambridge Road / Kingston Road mini Holland
scheme. TfL welcomes further discussions with the council on
how these routes could be connected up to create an improved
south London cycle network.

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Proposed
Change

Q8 Do you have any other suggestions for improving the cycle network in Sutton?
63.
Develop residential cycle parking for public housing, and assist The Council has been working with the Sutton
private housing with residential storage.
Housing Partnership to implement secure cycle
parking in a number of public housing estates, and
requires cycle parking in all new residential
developments. We can also assist with retro-fitting
cycle parking in private developments.
The Quietways are fine but the one from Sutton to Morden is not
very direct, by my calculations its about 25% longer and a bit
more hilly than going the most direct and obvious route through
Angel Hill to Rosehill roundabout.

65.

It would be a start if Sutton could integrate cycling infrastructure
into town centre developments like Hackbridge and Sutton.
Additional dedicated cycle lanes
This is something that will be implemented as part of No change
the Strategy.
Rosehill Roundabout really needs re-thinking, to benefit cars This roundabout is the responsibility of TfL but the No change
and cycles, the "cycle lane" around the co-op shouldn't stop Council will be working with them to try and improve
there but continue up to the high street. Quietway between this area for cyclists. The Quietway between Sutton
Sutton and Morden should be a separate lane.
and Morden will provide an alternative route to this
20mph zone in residential streets and decent/reliable signage roundabout.
showing miles and minutes like on the Cycle highways.
The Council will be seeking to extend the coverage of
20mph zones and limits in the borough.
Signage will be reviewed and improved as part of the
audit of the existing cycle network, and could include
minutes.

67.

14

Page 50

Add a new para.
under Objective 3
about provision of
cycle parking in
existing
residential
developments.
The idea of Quietways is that they follow quieter roads No change
so that less experienced cyclists can use them. In
some cases this may mean that they don’t follow the
most direct route but are intended as more pleasant
and safe routes. More experienced and confident
cyclists can of course still use main roads and where
possible the Council will also implement cycle lanes
and facilities on these routes.
Noted.
No change

64.

66.

Agenda Item 7

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
WRITTEN QUESTIONNAIRE RESPONSES

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
WRITTEN QUESTIONNAIRE RESPONSES

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Q8 Do you have any other suggestions for improving the cycle network in Sutton?
68.
Rosehill Roundabout really needs re-thinking, to benefit cars
and cycles, the "cycle lane" around the co-op shouldn't stop
there but continue up to the high street. Quietway between
Sutton and Morden should be a separate lane.
20mph zone in residential streets and decent/reliable signage
showing miles and minutes like on the Cycle highways.

Proposed
Change

This roundabout is the responsibility of TfL but the No change
Council will be working with them to try and improve
this area for cyclists. The Quietway between Sutton
and Morden will provide an alternative route to this
roundabout.
The Council will be seeking to extend the coverage of
20mph zones and limits in the borough.

70.

71.

Agenda Item 7

15

Page 51

69.

Signage will be reviewed and improved as part of the
audit of the existing cycle network, and could include
minutes.
Find ways of separating out cycle lanes and parked cars by the This is something that will be addressed as part of the No change
side of the road. Have to pull out to avoid the many cars parked audit of existing cycle routes. There is often a conflict
on the designated cycle part of the road.
between parking and cycle lanes, and this issue will
More secure places in town centre/s and by offices et al, for need a more robust solution going forward.
locking bikes up.
The Council has an on-going programme to
implement further cycle parking in town centres and
other destinations and requires new offices to make
provision in accordance with the cycle parking
standards.
More cycle parking spots
As above.
No change
Safe cycling lessons
The Council will continue to provide safe cycling
lessons for adults and children.
Clear and continuous cycle routes though Sutton. Sutton to Noted. The Council will continue to develop and No change
Croydon, Sutton to Wimbledon, Sutton to the Royal Marsden, extend its cycle network, including new and improved
Sutton to Box Hill.
links to neighbouring boroughs and Surrey in
A joint cycle link from Sutton to Box Hill
conjunction with those Councils.

Strategy
Ref.

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Make sure pot holes in roads are fixed.

73.

Fully utilise the X26 route to stop at designated stops within the
borough, e.g. Wallington Plough and Sutton Town Centre, night
bus all week, faster, more reliable and higher capacity
Thameslink and Southern routes.
No easy access from South Sutton to town centre via bike
(island hopping only option).
Determine where short car journeys are frequently made by car
(i.e. town centre) and provide cycle routes to access these
areas!
Segregated cycle lanes like used in Oval/Stockwell.

74.

75.
76.

77.

78.
79.

Noted. This is an on-going maintenance issue, but a Add a paragraph
new para. will be added to the Strategy covering the on maintenance
importance of good maintenance of cycle routes.
in an appropriate
place in the
Strategy.
Not a cycling issue.
No change

The Council will be looking at improving the Brighton No change
Road corridor for cyclists as part of the Strategy as
well as other routes into Sutton town centre and
elsewhere.

The Council will look for opportunities to install
segregated cycle lanes as part of the Strategy.
Bring in 20 mph speed limit borough wide.
The Council does not support a borough-wide 20mph
limit, but will continue to roll out 20mph zones where
there is resident support.
An easy cycling link between Cheam Village and Sutton.
There is an existing London Cycle Network route
The crossroads at the junction of Cheam High St and the A217
following quiet roads and paths between Cheam
is not at all cycle friendly to cross.
village and Sutton. The Council has asked TfL to
review cycle facilities on the A217 and make
improvements, and we will press them to improve this
junction.
This will be addressed through the Strategy.
More places to securely leave a cycle.
At the junction of Demesne Road, the green cycleway pavement These specific issues will be investigated and followed
marking has mostly worn away. Also Wallington's shop parade up.
in Manor Road has become trickier to negotiate on a bike since
the parking bays were altered.

16

No change
No change

No change

No change
No change

Page 52

72.

Proposed
Change

Agenda Item 7

Ref.
No.

Ref.
No.

Strategy
Ref.

Comment

LBS Officer Response

80.

Narrow and busy, i.e. Cheam Common Road, Malden Road.

81.

Some cycle lanes stop with no indication of where to continue.
The cycle routes must not end suddenly!
A version of the 'Boris' bikes in Sutton would be useful.

82.

84.

The existing cycle route via Carshalton is along roads with lots
of parked cars and potholes; for a cyclist it is quite dangerous.

85.

More free cycle training opportunities.
Re-publish cycle maps showing back road 'safe' cycle routes.

86.

Remove parking bays from routes so they are continuous.

87.

Not assigned as sharing like the one between Gander Green
Lane and Tesco on the A217.

88.

Re-visit existing cycle lanes for markings and orphaned
sections. E.g. small and pointless cycle lane before the A217
bridge over the railway at Cheam station.

17

No change
No change

No change

No change

No change

No change
No change

No change

Agenda Item 7

A cycle and pedestrian crossing at the junction with the main
road at the north end of Onslow Gardens.

No change

Page 53

83.

These main roads are recognised as being narrow for
cycling and we will look at them as part of the corridor
studies and schemes that are being developed
through the Local Implementation Plan.
Issues such as this will be picked up as part of the
audit of the existing cycle network.
This has been looked at but it is not considered that it
would be commercially viable in Sutton or outer
London.
This was looked at as part of the Wallington Integrated
Transport Package about 5 years ago but was not
implemented. It could be picked up in a future
programme.
Issues such as this will be picked up as part of the
audit of the existing cycle network. This route will also
become one of the Quietways which would be an
opportunity to improve it.
The Council continues to offer free cycle training to
adults and children.
The Council has recently published a new cycle map
and TfL continues to public detailed cycle maps
showing quiet back street routes.
Issues such as this will be picked up as part of the
audit of the existing cycle network.
The Council has asked TfL to review cycle facilities on
the A217 and make improvements, and we will press
them to improve this cycle track.
The Council has asked TfL to review cycle facilities on
the A217 and make improvements, and we will press
them to improve this cycle track.

Proposed
Change

Strategy
Ref.

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Widening the main road red route from Worcester Park via
Cheam to Sutton / Carshalton and installing cycle lanes to give
direct and safe connections for cyclists.

90.

Make Sutton station much more accessible by bicycle.

91.

Cyclists have no insurance, often have no lights at night and
wear dark clothing too. They disregard the rules of the road, ride
through red lights, ignore give way signs, have no regard for
pedestrians while they hurtle through the streets of London and
generally think they are above the laws of the land.

92.

When resurfacing roads please consider repositioning gullies A new bullet point could be added under Objective 6
and drains. These and poor road surfaces are so dangerous setting out an action on maintenance of cycle paths
and have often caused me to wobble into traffic or swerve.
and roads and the need to take opportunities to
improve cycle facilities and surfaces as part of
planned maintenance programmes.

93.

More blue routes on 20 mph roads.

94.

Extend safe cycle routes to Belmont region and link in with These areas have already been looked at and will be
parks such as Nonsuch and Beddington.
considered again as part of the review and extension
of the cycle network.
To re-mark all the bike lanes that are already laid down in See above comment 29.
Sutton.

95.

The road between Worcester Park and Cheam is No change
recognised as being narrow for cycling and we will
look at it as part of the corridor scheme that is being
developed through the Local Implementation Plan.
The Council has asked TfL to improve cycle facilities
on the A232 and make improvements.
This area has recently been subject to a major No change
integrated transport scheme funded by TfL.
Noted. The Strategy addresses issues of cyclist No change
behaviour and training. The Council will undertake
education and safety campaigns as part of the
Strategy aimed at cyclists and motorists, many of
whom also disregards the rules of the road.

Noted. Blue routes are the Mayor’s Cycle
Superhighways, which do not extend to Sutton.

18

Page 54

89.

Proposed
Change

Agenda Item 7

Ref.
No.

Add a new bullet
under Objective 6
on maintenance
of existing cycle
infrastructure and
highways.
No change

No change

Ref.
No.
96.

Strategy
Ref.

Comment

LBS Officer Response

The consultative document, being merely strategic, contains a
lot of pie-in-the-sky objectives and not many practical details.
The practical things that I want relate to Sutton High Street and
nearby shopping areas. They are as follows:

Proposed
Change

Noted. These specific suggestions will be looked at as No change
part of the Strategy and considered for new schemes,
in consultation with TfL where necessary.

Retention of the slip-path between Cedar Road and the
pedestrian crossing in Brighton Road. I find this very helpful
indeed.
A cycle path along Sutton Court Road, eastwards from the
Sutton Court Road/Grove Road/High Street traffic lights to
Chalkpit Way (so that I can get safely to B & Q from the High
Street and the reverse direction).

Page 55

A cycle path from the northern end of the pedestrianised area of
the High Street at Marshall's Road to the traffic lights at Crown
Road and thence onto the Sutton Green area (so that I can get
safely to the Tesco Superstore on Oldfields Road, via Sutton
Green and Stayton Road and the reverse direction)
A new route for motor traffic between Sutton Station and Grove
Road, so that the High Street pedestrianisation can be
completed southwards to Sutton Station.

Agenda Item 7

19

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Speed limit 5mph for cycles on shared cycle pedestrian areas.
Speed limit 10mph for cycles in 20mph zones.
Removing many speed humps & chicanes which tend force
cycles & cars together and create pinch points.
Remove 20mph speed limits which cause cycles & cars to be in
close proximity for longer than necessary.
Consider left turn on red lights for cycles. Also bypass path for
cycles on roundabouts
Clear pavement to road demarcation for visually impaired.

20

Noted. These specific suggestions will be looked at as No change
part of the Strategy and considered for new schemes,
in consultation with TfL where necessary.

Noted. These issues are included in the Strategy.

No change

Noted. The Council will be working closely with the No change
Police in seeking stronger enforcement of road traffic
laws, particularly speeding, through the Strategy. We
will also consider the need for traffic calming
measures in Foresters Drive.
The Council will be working closely with the Police in No change
seeking stronger enforcement of road traffic laws
through the Strategy. The Council also offers cycle
training and general road safety advice to school
children. Cyclists are entitled to use the highway even
where there is a cycleway, and there is no legal
provision for separate speed limits for cyclists. The
other suggestions will be considered as part of the
Strategy and cycle network audit.

Page 56

Q10 Do you have any other suggestions for improving cycle safety in the borough?
97.
My journey to work has been made less safe by the installation
of pinch points in Sutton Common Road and Stonecot Hill. Work
with TfL to sort out the dangerous Gander Green Lane/Oldfields
Road junction, where cyclists and pedestrians are placed in
danger on every traffic light phase.
98.
I think 20 mph zones and contraflow cycling would be much
appreciated if done well.
99.
Rigorously enforce speed limits and/or introduce traffic calming
measures.
Foresters Drive, south of Mollison Drive, close to where I live is
a particular problem area where a small minority of motor
vehicles exceed the speed limit by a large amount.
100.
Strict enforcement of Highway Code for cyclists particularly
round schools.
Lights & HiVis for cyclists.
Compulsory use of cycle paths in preference to roadway where
they run in parallel.

Proposed
Change

Agenda Item 7

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
WRITTEN QUESTIONNAIRE RESPONSES

Ref.
No.
101.

102.

Strategy
Ref.

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Noted. It is proposed to remove the words ‘as far as
possible’ in relation to the LCDS. The Strategy aims to
introduce a new approach to 20mph zone and street
design that gives a greater priority to cycling.

Remove the
words ‘as far as
possible’ in para.
3.9.

Agenda Item 7

21

Noted, however this is in the borough of Croydon.

Page 57

Speed humps certainly make a major contribution. What does
not work is the almost random speed reduction between
Woodcote and Coulsdon (presumably because of the school)
that sees drivers reducing their speed from around 40MPH to
around 25MPH only when they spot the single speed camera on
that route. This achieves nothing at all by way of enhanced
safety.
It is not good enough to say that the LCDS will be implemented
"as far as possible" - that is a completely meaningless promise.
The current examples of 20 mph zones (e.g. West Street and
adjoining roads in Carshalton) do nothing at all to make West
Street more attractive as a cycling route - to pursue more 20
mph zones sounds good but, on present evidence, will not be
effective.
Contraflow cycle lanes have to be more than the odd sign:
otherwise they are positively dangerous to cyclists.
Every time a piece of road is reviewed or when a new
development is proposed, better road design, in accordance
with the LCDS, would achieve something tangible.

Proposed
Change
No change

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Q12 Do you have any other suggestions for encouraging a shift from the car to cycling?
103.
Working with schools is a noble idea but without improved
infrastructure a total waste of time.
Look at the results of the Smarter Travel Sutton experiment.
104.
Cycling should not replace the car but compliment it.
Ensure cycle parking provision is adequate at local
105.
supermarkets. Look at Tesco Direct at Angel Hill for an example
of how not to do it.
More under-cover cycle parking to cater for inclement weather.
106.
Make it hard for cars to move about quickly in built up areas.
107.

109.

110.

To reduce the pollution levels and encourage a more active
mindset.
Improve Worcester Park High Street to be more cycle friendly.

A need to continue individual marketing projects such as
Smarter Travel Sutton or a Sustrans’ Travel Smart project in
which residents are contacted and information provided to
enable them to cycle more according to their needs. Maps with
the cycle routes, info about local clubs, road safety, cycling
groups for adults, children and those with disabilities, older
people and those recovering from injury or illness, who could be
cycling on referral. Info as to where the nearest cycle shops are.
New residents receiving cycling info when they move to the
area.

22

Noted

No change

Noted

No change

Agreed. Unfortunately this development did not
require planning permission so the Council had no say
over its design.
Agreed.
The introduction of low traffic zones which could
include spot road closures to stop rat-running through
residential areas could form part of the Strategy.
This is a central element of the Strategy.

No change

No change
No change

No change

This area was the subject of an ‘integrated transport No change
package’ two years ago that made some
improvements to the high street. Further measures to
improve it for cyclists could be considered as part of
any future scheme.
The Council no longer has the resources for a large No change
scale personalised travel planning campaign such as
Smarter Travel Sutton. However, within its limited
resources, it continues to promote and provide
information on sustainable transport including cycling.

Page 58

108.

Proposed
Change

Agenda Item 7

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
WRITTEN QUESTIONNAIRE RESPONSES

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
WRITTEN QUESTIONNAIRE RESPONSES

Comment

LBS Officer Response

No change

No change

No change

No change

Agenda Item 7

23

No change

Page 59

Q14 Do you have any other suggestions for encouraging safer and more considerate behaviour by all road users?
111.
I think good quality infrastructure is key and training can help. Noted. The Strategy seeks to address these issues.
People won’t consider cycling until the roads feel safer and
more appealing.
112.
Completely missing the point. If infrastructure was improved and Noted. The Strategy seeks to address these issues.
cycling segregated from heavy and fast traffic then there
wouldn't be conflict points. All the hi-vis, protective equipment
and training in the world don’t help when you get left hooked by
an HGV or car doomed.
The Council will be working closely with the Police in
113.
Ultimately, the only way to improve behaviour is to increase
seeking stronger enforcement of road traffic laws
enforcement action. i.e. by the police and authorities generally.
through the Strategy.
Driver education about cyclists rights to use the road and that The Council will undertake education and safety
114.
cycle paths are not compulsory and the way in which non- campaigns as part of the Strategy aimed at cyclists
strategic roads are funded through taxation rather than VED. and motorists.
Ensure they understand that cyclists use the roads as a right but
drivers use them under licence.
Segregated or improved routes that I would identify on my cycle Noted. The Council intends to review cycle facilities on
115.
would be Brighton Road and the one-way system in town. I
the Brighton Road corridor and the Sutton town centre
know often in central London they have training for cyclists
gyratory and identify any improvements that could be
where they get to sit in a lorry cab and experience what the
made for cycling. The Council has arranged ‘changing
driver can see - I think this would be incredibly useful.
places’ events with HGVs in Sutton town centre in
conjunction with the Police.

Proposed
Change

116.

Strategy
Ref.

Comment

LBS Officer Response

A clear definition of the rules of the road and enforcement so
that they are respected.
Road layouts should not give an unrealistic impression of safe
path for cyclists or pedestrians.

Proposed
Change
The Council will undertake further road safety No change
awareness and educational campaigns as part of the
Strategy and work with the Police on enforcement.

Agenda Item 7

Ref.
No.

The Council will audit all existing cycle routes and
identify any improvements that could be made.

Vehicle driver education/enforcement on pedestrian/cycle
priority on pavement crossovers.
Enforcement of not driving while using a phone.
This will be considered as part of the review of the
Council’s Parking Policy.

Variable speed limits e.g. 20mph at school starting/ending
times. Must work such that it does not come on when not
needed e.g. school holidays or it loses respect.

This could be considered subject to funding.

Traffic lights adjusted to give as smooth as possible passage
through borough to reduce stress & impatience.
Clear road signs & road markings for those unfamiliar with the
area.

Signal timings and phasing are the responsibility of
Transport for London but the Council will seek further
linking of signals to smooth traffic flow where
appropriate.

Unnecessary & out of date signs removed.

This will be reviewed where necessary.

117.

20 mph zone around schools. Stop the insanity of drivers
speeding down residential roads.

118.
119.

Training in schools.
The danger from lorries is a key issue.

This is generally done as part of ‘de-cluttering’
exercises and will be continued.
The Council will implement selective 20mph zones No change
and limits where there is demand and a clear
justification, with a focus on areas around schools.
This will continue.
No change
Noted. See comments above.
No change

24

Page 60

Provision of free parking near small shops positioned such that
it allows clear view at junctions.

Ref.
Strategy
Comment
LBS Officer Response
Proposed
No.
Ref.
Change
Q16 Do you have any other suggestions for encouraging a wider range of people to cycle?
120.
Cycling should be seen as a natural choice for short journeys in Noted. The Council will seek to improve cycling No change
the borough, this will take time but, with the right infrastructure
infrastructure in the borough as funding allows.
and education in place, it could happen.
The Council is also looking at opportunities to
In terms of infrastructure, I have recently moved to the borough
introduce Bike Hangars on-street and has recently
and would like to continue cycling in the same way as I did
introduced a number in public housing developments.
when I was living in Lambeth. However here I cannot securely
park my bike on the street and have no room in my flat for
storing a bicycle - this may be a familiar story to a number of
people living in my development and others in the Sutton
borough. I feel that there should be opportunity for people to
park their bicycles securely on the street outside of their homes,
in the same way people can park their cars.

25

Noted. The Action Plan is a ‘live document’ and will be
updated each year.

No change

The Quietways should include measures to improve
junctions and will be more than just ‘lines and signs’.
Noted. This could form part of the audit of existing
cycle routes, and other work arising from the Mayor’s
Roads Task Force report.

No change

Agenda Item 7

http://www.cyclehoop.com/product/bike-lockers-2/bike-hangar/
Q20 Do you have any other suggestions for the Action Plan?
121.
I think the action plan is quite unambitious. I hope the
opportunity is taken with the Quietways to really improve safety
at the junctions that they go through but if they are "lines and
signs" as mentioned then I can't see them leading to any
increase in cycling. Hopefully with the "quick win" part of the
plan some easy improvements that will really help can be made.
122.
Every junction in the borough should be reviewed and a
comprehensive approach like the new super highways be
designed. The focus should be on separation, and removing
traffic from town centres like Wallington, Carshalton, and
Hackbridge.

Page 61

This could perhaps be facilitated by the use of "Bike Hangars"
as operated by Lambeth Council. These secure units are dotted
all about residential areas in Lambeth, users pay a monthly fee
to store their bikes in the units on the street.

124.

125.

127.

128.

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Sutton - Morden needs cycleway, not just Quietway
Review Rosehill roundabout
fully behind making more shared use signage such as O1.4 for
quick wins - joining up routes without going on road is needed
"O1.8 Identify opportunities for quick-win enhancements..."
needs more measurable outcome for "O1.9 Further Quietways"
I think the idea of Quietways in Outer London is flawed. If
people can't get from any A to any B without making a detour
onto a Quietway that is longer than the drive, then they're not
going to get out of their cars. Especially if it's a short journey.

The action plan is very disappointing. The physical works
proposed contain nothing new. The audit is medium term, i.e. by
2019 - so up to 5 years for an audit? If you wish this policy to be
taken seriously, as opposed to being seen as hot air, something
better is needed in an action plan.
Should include extensive infrastructure, lines and signs
throughout Sutton to the LCDS and close off streets where
possible. Calm streets with lots of cycle parking, facilities, green
walls and plantings, gardens, trees, parks, seating create
spaces where people wish to linger and increases pride and
business to areas.
O4.5 mentions the arterial routes - I would like more emphasis
and more commitment. The Action Plan is too much about quiet
ways and short routes, not enough about commuting.
Listen more and take advice from serious/experienced cyclists
in Sutton (who also drive a vehicle). [Look at Hackbridge road
plan fiasco - Council did not listen].

26

See above.

Proposed
Change
No change

The Quietways are intended as longer distance No change
strategic routes. However, cyclists can use any roads
and the borough has many quieter roads that are
suitable for cycling. As part of the Strategy we will
seek to make all roads more safe and convenient for
cycling and encourage cycling for short journeys.
See above.
No change

Noted. These measures will be considered as part of
any cycling schemes and other major schemes.

No change

Noted. The Action Plan will also focus on commuting
and implement improvements for commuter cyclists.

No change

Noted. The Council liaises closely with local cycling
groups and a number of officers and Councillors are
regular and experienced cyclists.

No change

Page 62

126.

Strategy
Ref.

Agenda Item 7

Ref.
No.
123.

Ref.
Strategy
No.
Ref.
Cyclists’ Touring Club (Cyclism)
129.

General

130.

General

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Whilst the Strategy provides an indication of the Council's
vision, objectives and proposals for cycling, there appears to be
no definitive procedure for monitoring and checking of actions
achieved with targeted dates for each. The document is not
comprehensive. It is not complete.
Many local authorities across the country, including some
London Boroughs, are recognising that the reduction of
congestion will not create a safer environment until speeds are
reduced to 20mph throughout residential areas and near all
schools.

Proposed
Change

The Action Plan will be monitored and progress No change
reported annually. Indicative timings are given.

The Council does not support a borough-wide 20mph No change
limit but will consider further smaller 20mph zones and
limits where there is resident demand and a clear
justification. The Council is currently reviewing its
policy on 20mph speed limits.

Figure 3.2

132.

paragraph

The attempt at a 'Mini-Holland' style improvement at the Heart
of Hackbridge demonstrated how much education is still
required to convey to all road users that roads are safer when
each person takes their decision based on calmly observing the
situation. Consider adding this junction to Figure 3.2.
In paragraph 3.8 we suggest the words 'is suitable for all' would

27

Figure 3.2 will be deleted. However any future bids No change
and schemes could include Hackbridge and the
Council is considering further improvements to that
scheme.
This wording occurs earlier in that para.

No change

Agenda Item 7

131.

Page 63

It is disappointing, even unbelievable, that the need for a
borough-wide 20mph limit does not appear in The Way Forward
in the borough's Sustainable Transport Strategy published
earlier this year. The fifth Objective mentions 20mph zones
which are expensive to introduce whereas a general limit will
cost very little and gradually achieve pleasant surroundings for
all travellers and residents. It is the fear of speeding traffic
which must be reduced first. The introduction of such a 20mph
limit borough-wide, with extensive education for all residents and
all road users, will gradually enable the achievement of all the
Cycling Delivery Strategy Objectives inexpensively, all of which
are essential to make cycling a natural choice for the majority of
local people.

133.

134.

135.

137.

138.

paragraph
3.9
(new para.
3.6)
paragraph
3.9; first
bullet point
(new para.
3.6)
paragraph
3.9; second
bullet point
(new para.
3.6)
paragraph
3.9; fourth
bullet point
(new para.
3.6)
paragraph
3.9; seventh
bullet point
(new para.
3.6)
paragraph
3.9; ninth
bullet point
(new para.
3.6)

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Proposed
Change

be clearer if amended to 'caters for the different kinds of cyclist.'

In paragraph 3.9 the words 'as far as possible' should be
omitted.

The first bullet point must be 'Reduce the speed of motor traffic'.
We then suggest that bullet points should be numbered /
lettered to facilitate referencing and finding again.

We suggest the item at the second bullet point would be clearer
if reworded as follows: 'Directness: Routes must be logical and
continuous and planned holistically as part of a network without
unnecessary obstacles, delays and diversions.'

Agreed. It is recommended that this wording is Remove the
removed.
wording ‘as far as
possible’ from
para. 3.8.
These bullet points are taken directly from the London No change
Cycling Design Standards and cannot therefore be
amended. However, reducing the speed of motor
traffic is an essential part of ‘Safety’.
See above

No change

See above

No change

In the fourth bullet point we suggest omitting 'legible'.

Continuing in paragraph 3.9 in the seventh bullet point, add
'visibility' to emphasise the importance of sightlines, especially
at junctions and where paths cross, and the need for signs to be
easily read at a suitable distance before a decision has to be
made about the direction to take.
Continuing in paragraph 3.9 in the ninth bullet point, this ends
with a colon but needs the statement: ‘liaison between
departments requires improvement.' We suggest both Traffic
Planners and Highways Engineers must be in the same
department and work together. The four bullet points which

28

See above. This point is coved by the bullet on No change
‘Coherence’.

Noted. The need for close working between
departments is covered in this bullet. The Council
generally seeks to introduce measures to reduce the
speed of motor vehicles in roads safety and traffic
schemes. However this list is of specific cycling

No change

Page 64

136.

Strategy
Ref.
3.8
(new para.
3.5)

Agenda Item 7

Ref.
No.

Ref.
No.

Strategy
Ref.

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Proposed
Change

follow the colon at the end of the ninth bullet point must include - infrastructure measures.
first - ‘Reduction of the speed of motor vehicles.'

139.

paragraph
3.10
(new para.
3.13)

141.

paragraph

29

It is the responsibility of TfL to designate cycle
superhighways and at present they do not have any
proposals for any in Sutton borough. However
Quietway 142 to Morden could be extended to link
with Cycle Superhighway 7 at Colliers Wood.
Noted. However, the Council remains of the view that No change
physical traffic calming features are necessary to
achieve meaningful reductions in speeds and the
enable 20mph zones to be ‘self-enforcing’.

See above

No change

Agenda Item 7

paragraph
3.11
(new para.
3.17)

Most of the two former LCN routes that will be No change
converted to Quietways are already on quieter ‘back’
streets and where they are on or cross main roads
these sections will be made safer and more
convenient. The use of the term ‘up-graded’ implies
that there will be some improvements to these routes
but they will remain part of a strategic London-wide
network.

Page 65

140.

First bullet point in paragraph 3.10
We are puzzled that the LCN+ strategic long distance routes
across the borough, parts of which are along busy roads, will be
'upgraded' to Quietways. Changing the name of these we
believe is a 'downgrade' and destroys their strategic importance.
Whilst signed cycle routes help those new to cycling, the
borough has a remarkable number of quiet side roads which do
not need to be signed as part of 'networks'. Care is needed to
ensure assistance for new or timid cyclists riding along network
routes is provided for crossing major roads comfortably.
Super Highways currently do not affect riders within the borough
but journeys East-West and West-East would benefit from Super
Highway style designation of routes. This proposal is missing
from the document.
We disagree with the statement in paragraph 3.11:
'These
interventions, such as traffic calming and 20 mph zones, deliver
packages of measures to reduce traffic volumes and speeds
through residential areas to create environments suitable for
cycling. '
Chicanes and build-outs can be treacherous for cyclists and
humps and cushions redirect cyclists from their chosen line for
positioning correctly at the next turning. We believe TfL will be
unwilling to fund such works. Calming must be achieved, in
accordance with the DfT recommendations, simply with signs
and education. The word 'zone' must be replaced with 'limit' for
the safety of vulnerable road users and the residents.
In paragraph 3.15, first bullet point, we strongly recommend the

Strategy
Ref.
3.15
(new para.
3.22)

Comment

Proposed
Change

Add a sentence
to para. 3.16
specifying the
need for both
short and longer
term cycle
parking.
Add the words’
for pupils and
staff’ at the end of
the first sentence.
Amend the
wording to read ‘
We will adopt
TfL’s
No change

exchange of the word 'zone/zones' with the word 'limit/limits' as
explained above.

paragraph
3.16
(new para.
3.25)

The requirement in paragraph 3.16 to review cycle parking
needs is welcome. However, there are two types of need i.e.
short term parking and secure storage are essential both at new
developments and at existing accommodation. We ask that
this should be specified more clearly.

Agreed. A sentence could be added to make clear that
there is a need for both short and longer term cycle
parking in new developments. This will also be made
clearer in the Cycle Parking Standards section of the
new draft Local Plan.

143.

paragraph
3.17
(new para.
3.26)
paragraph
3.21
(new para.
3.29)

As regards paragraph 3.17 School Travel Plans, we suggest
insertion of the words 'for pupils and staff'' at the end of the first
sentence.

Agreed

At the end of the third bullet point under paragraph 3.21 we ask
that the statement should read 'We will adopt TfL's cycle parking
standards to ensure that supply always meets demand' i.e. omit
'review the case for'.
Please add to the fourth bullet point: 'ensuring stands are to TfL
standards not the pattern purchased for Sutton High Street nor
'M' stands which can present a trip hazard.'

TfL’s cycle parking standards reflect cycling levels in
central / inner London, which are much higher than in
Sutton so it is not considered appropriate to introduce

145.

146.

paragraph
3.25
(new para.
3.33)

The research described in paragraph 3.25 is being undertaken
nationally. Sutton will benefit when results are published and
should not be using limited funds duplicating this work.

147.

paragraph

In paragraph 3.26 we believe the first sentence should refer to

30

Page 66

LBS Officer Response

142.

144.

Agenda Item 7

Ref.
No.

This issue will be addressed in the Council’s Cycle
Parking Standards in the revised Local Plan and also
possible future streetscape design guidance for the
borough. The council’s preferred stand is the TfL type
of Sheffield stand.
Agreed. The Council is not carrying out this research Change wording
so the wording should be changed to reflect this.
to reflect the fact
that the Council is
not carrying out
this research
directly.
This Strategy is about Cycling so needs to refer Change wording

Ref.
No.

148.

149.

Strategy
Ref.
3.26; first
sentence
(new para.
3.34)

paragraph
3.26; fourth
bullet point
(new para.
3.34)
general

Comment

LBS Officer Response

'all road users' not be restricted to 'cyclists and other road
users'. Grammatically, 'good physical design and high quality
infrastructure' should be followed by 'both have roles to play'

Proposed
Change
specifically to cyclists’ interaction with other road to ‘both have
users.
roles to play’.
Agreed – change wording to read more correctly.

With reference to the statement in the fourth bullet point, we
would stress that all junctions are problems. The term 'any
locations' does not make this clear.

Agreed. The wording ‘particularly junctions’ could be
added.

Add the words
‘particularly
junctions’ after
‘any locations’.

Add a bullet point to the effect that training of all drivers is
needed to ensure they slow when passing cyclists and leave
greater space than many do at present. The borough should
work with the driving schools who teach throughout our area.

Page 67

Agreed. We will consider adding a bullet to this effect, Add a new bullet
although it is more difficult to reach all drivers.
stating that the
Council will seek
to work with the
police and driving
schools and
undertake road
safety campaigns
targeting all
drivers about
cyclist safety.
In paragraph 3.28 the point should be made - in order to This para. is about ‘what we do’ so it is not appropriate No change
encourage not discourage cycling - that doctors have proved to make this point here.
that cyclists breathe out pollution whereas it generally remains
in the lungs of motor drivers.
Noted. The Council considers it is useful to have a No change
In paragraph 3.31, first bullet point, the reference to the Cycling
specific borough cycle map, but also distributes and
in Sutton guide is not helpful as this guide is disappointingly
promotes the TfL maps.
incomplete. The comprehensive TfL Local Cycling Guides are
excellent and preferable.

150.

151.

The second bullet point should refer to the 'Living Wandle'
project. 'Cycling for sport' such as racing must not be

The Living Wandle project has now finished. It is Change the word
agreed that cycling for sport as in racing is ‘sport’ to ‘leisure’

31

Agenda Item 7

152.

paragraph
3.28
(new para.
3.36)
paragraph
3.31; first
bullet point
(new para.
3.39)
paragraph
3.31;

153.

154.

Strategy
Ref.
second
bullet point
(new para.
3.39)
paragraph
3.32; sixth
bullet point
(new para.
3.40)

ID
Respondent
No.
Natural England
155.

LBS Officer Response

encouraged along the Wandle trail. Please amend to 'leisure'
and add 'utility' or 'commuting'.

Modify the note in the sixth bullet point of paragraph 3.32 that
renovated cycles should be given to a deserving new owner to
the effect that gifts which have been earned by working on
secondhand bicycles are likely to be respected whereas a
machine 'given' might not.

Conflict with pedestrians described in the seventh bullet point
will be reduced if fewer 'shared use' footways are introduced
across the borough. Lowering the speed of motor traffic is by far
the most effective way in which to discourage pavement cycling.
Some traffic calming measures such as severe humps make
riders prefer the footway. The borough's practice of installing
traffic calming measures such as humps and chicanes
increases difficulty, even hazards, for cyclists without slowing
most motor vehicles. Slowing must be achieved by signs,
extensive education and enforcement. No more humps and
chicanes are required - as per DfT instructions.

Comment

Proposed
Change
inappropriate along the Wandle trail. The word ‘sport’ in the second
will be changed to ‘leisure’.
bullet of para.
3.31.
Agreed. The wording will be changed accordingly.

Change the
wording in the
sixth bullet to the
effect that bikes
will be given to
people who have
worked on them,
not just to anyone
on a low income.
Noted. The Council has implemented a limited number No change
of shared use paths, including through parks, where
there is no alternative. They can work effectively
where flows of pedestrians and / or cyclists are low
and will be only used in these locations. Traffic
calming features will, in future, be designed to be as
cycle-friendly as possible, in accordance with the
LCDS and DfT guidance.

Page 68

paragraph
3.32;
seventh
bullet point
(new para.
3.40)

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Proposed
Change

Given that the Wandle Trail passes through the borough it Noted. Reference is made to the Get Active Wandle Make reference
would be crucial to use this strategy to help promote this link project in the Action Plan but there appears to be no to the Wandle

32

Agenda Item 7

Ref.
No.

Resident by letter
156.

trail and plans to
improve it under
Objective 1 in
Section 3.

I was hoping the Strategy would include something to address
the failure of what seems to be an increasing number of cyclists
to respect the rights and interests of both pedestrians and
drivers. The use of pavements by adult cyclists has been very
noticeable for a long time. This increasing practice represents a
serious risk to all pedestrians but most especially the elderly,
disable and children.

Noted. The Strategy contains an objective on
Encouraging Safe and Considerate Behaviour by all
Road Users which addresses cyclists’ behaviour.
However, there is no specific reference to cycling on
the footway. We could add a reference to this.

Add a reference
under Objective 4
in para. 3.26 to
the need to
encourage better
cyclist behaviour
particularly with
regard to
pedestrians and
cycling on
footways.

LBS Officer Response

Proposed
Change

33

Noted. TfL have a scheme to improve this junction
which will include better provision for cyclists.

No change

Agenda Item 7

ID
Respondent
Comment
No.
Questionnaire respondent
157.
Q8 Do you have any other suggestions for improving the cycle
network in Sutton?

Page 69

and its use as well as to make provision for potential mention of the Wandle Trail cycle route, which forms
improvements to the route itself as this is a key strategic route in part of a National and International cycle route, in the
this part of London for walking, running and cycling.
Strategy. Reference should be made to the Wandle
Trail and plans for it in the Strategy.
Greening the routes along cycle routes will also provide an
opportunity for increasing the borough’s Green Infrastructure
(GI) provision and thus improving the green chains and network
of links for biodiversity to spread through in London. The
benefits of a good network of GI are manifold but primarily they
will provide for increased resilience to adverse weather
conditions and also improve the health and wellbeing of the local
residents.

158.

159.

Respondent

Comment

LBS Officer Response

An alternative to using Fiveways + Stafford Road
Q12 Do you have any other suggestions for encouraging a shift Noted. The Strategy includes proposals for additional
from the car to cycling?
cycle parking facilities and we will continue to work
with schools and developers on this.
More places to lock up bikes in Wallington town centre. All
schools to have.
Oblige all new buildings + developments to provide them
Q14 Do you have any other suggestions for encouraging safer
and more considerate behaviour by all road users?

Noted. The Strategy contains an objective on
Encouraging Safe and Considerate Behaviour by all
Road Users.

Proposed
Change
No change

Agenda Item 7

ID
No.

No change

More prosecutions for dangerous driving related to cyclists +
publicity about it.

161.

162.

Change the law to be like the NL!
Q16 Do you have any other suggestions for encouraging a Noted
wider range of people to cycle?
This would happen naturally if it was safer.
Q18 Do you have any suggestions for actively promoting cycling Cycling proficiency has been replaced by ‘Bikeability’
and the wider benefits of cycling?
which is an equivalent training programme which the
Council provides to schools.
Bring back ‘cycling proficiency’ in all schools.

Q20 Do you have any other suggestions for the Action Plan?
Make neighbouring boroughs (like Croydon) safer too.
More off-road cycle paths and tracks. One through Roundshaw

34

No change

No change

Noted. The Council will continue to work with No change
neighbouring boroughs to achieve a joined-up cycle
network. Croydon was a ‘Biking Borough’ and has
recently implemented a range of cycling schemes.

Page 70

160.

ID
No.

Respondent

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Downs
163.

Proposed
Change

More off-road paths and track will be developed,
possibly including one through Roundshaw Downs.
Noted. These issues will be addressed through the No change
Strategy.

Q21 Do you have any comments about cycling in Sutton?
I have cycled my whole life but feel unsafe taking my children on
the roads in Croydon and Sutton.
Off-road paths are best.

Questionnaire respondent
164.
Q8 Do you have any other suggestions for improving the cycle
network in Sutton?

166.

35

Agenda Item 7

167.

Page 71

165.

Noted. There was a proposal to remove these parking No change
spaces several years ago but it was rejected. Future
cycle lanes will be designed so as to prevent
Cycle lane on Park Lane has parking spaces on which are obstructive parking.
always in use. Cycle lanes are rarely suitable for longer distance
routes as they are full of obstacles and do not go anywhere.
Q10 Do you have any other suggestions for improving cycle
Noted. Cycle lanes on the pavement will only be No change
safety in the borough?
considered where safe and protected provision for
cyclists cannot be made on the carriageway.
Cycle lanes on the pavement especially on major roads and
junctions.
Q12 Do you have any other suggestions for encouraging a shift Noted. It is not considered that the ‘Boris Bike’ No change
from the car to cycling?
scheme would be viable in Sutton. TfL’s Quietways
network will provide safer routes across London, in
Expansion of Boris Bike network to Sutton and other parts of addition to the Cycle Superhighways for longer
London. Safe routes between Sutton and East London. Places distance commuting.
to lock up bikes on every destination, not just lamp posts.
The Strategy aims to expand cycle parking provision.
Q14 Do you have any other suggestions for encouraging safer
Noted. The Strategy contains an objective on No change
and more considerate behaviour by all road users?
Encouraging Safe and Considerate Behaviour by all

168.

169.

170.

Respondent

Comment

LBS Officer Response

Proposed
Change

Road Users.
Reminding drivers of motor vehicles to keep safe distance away
from cyclists when behind them and when overtaking.
Q16 Do you have any other suggestions for encouraging a Noted. Greater levels of segregation will be No change
wider range of people to cycle?
considered for future schemes where there is space.
Segregation of cycle lanes with physical barriers-low walls on
kerb stores
Q18 Do you have any suggestions for actively promoting cycling Noted. This is something that is already done.
and the wider benefits of cycling?
Identify accident hot spots for cyclists and alter the road layout in
these locations.
Q21 Do you have any comments about cycling in Sutton?

36

No change

No change

Page 72

The Wandle Trail is good for cycling but there are not enough
routes of this quality.

Noted. The Strategy aims to create a more extensive
network of safer off-road cycle routes.

Agenda Item 7

ID
No.

Page 73

London Borough of Sutton

Cycling Delivery Strategy

November 2015

Agenda Item 7

Page 74

Agenda Item 7

Contents
Foreword

1

1 Introduction
Delivering a step-change in cycling

2

Context and Delivery

3

2 Context
Policy
Cycling in the London Borough of Sutton

6
11

3 Our Plan for Cycling
Objective 1
Make Sutton a more attractive borough for
cycling and create a high quality cycle network

12

Objective 2
Make Sutton a safer borough for cycling

17

Objective 3
Encourage a shift from the car to cycling
for shorter journeys

19

Objective 4
Encourage safe and considerate behaviour
by all road users.

21

Objective 5
Create a cycling culture by promoting cycling
to a wider range of people.

23

Objective 6
Actively promote cycling within the
Council's Sustainable Transport Strategy

26

4 Making it Happen: Action Plan

28

Funding

28

Timeframes

28

Monitoring and review

28

Action Plan

30

Page 75

Agenda Item 7

Foreword
The Council is pleased to launch this
Cycling Delivery Strategy for Sutton
which complements our new Sustainable
Transport Strategy and sets out our
approach to encouraging cycling in the
borough over the next few years.
Sutton has a long history of promoting cycling, from developing a
comprehensive cycle route network in the 1990s to encouraging greater
cycle usage through the Smarter Travel Sutton initiative in the late 2000s.
This strategy sets out how the Council is responding to the renewed focus
on cycling in London being promoted by the Mayor in his Vision for Cycling,
and by the All Party Parliamentary Cycling Group's Get Britain Cycling report.
Over 50% of car journeys in Sutton are less than 3 miles (5km) - a distance
that could easily be undertaken by bicycle by most people. The benefits of
cycling are well documented, including the benefits to air quality, climate
change, public health and well-being, productivity, travel cost savings,
congestion and traffic noise and the local economy.
Through this strategy we aim to make cycling the mode of choice for short
local journeys, by improving the quality and legibility of cycle routes,
addressing safety concerns through road safety measures, improving cycle
parking facilities, and ensuring the wider road network is as cycle-friendly
as possible.
The Council looks forward to working with stakeholders and residents in
implementing this strategy and working towards a more sustainable and
cycle-friendly Sutton.

Councillor Jill Whitehead
Chair of Environment and Neighbourhood Committee

Cycling Strategy

1

Page 76

Agenda Item 7

1 Introduction
Our vision is to make cycling a natural choice for
people of all ages, backgrounds, and ethnicities,
for more of their trips in and through the borough.
1.1
The London Borough of Sutton has a good track record in taking
positive action on cycling. We published our first Sustainable Transport
Strategy in 1999, and between 2006 and 2009 we were proud to be at the
forefront of active travel through the Smarter Travel Sutton project. The project
aimed to promote travel by walking, cycling and public transport instead of the
car, and delivered a 75% increase in cycling over the course of the project.
1.2
These earlier successes are foundations on which we can build.
We must look forward and set out a plan for delivering a step-change in
cycling starting now, and extending into the next 10 years and beyond.

‘Getting Sutton Cycling is vitally important for the future of our
borough.
With more and more cars on our roads, traffic and parking problems
are increasing and the quality of the air we breathe is
deteriorating. We can't carry on like this.
Cycling can substantially reduce these risks while strengthening
our local economy, making our town centres more accessible and
promoting healthier communities.
The London Borough of Sutton's cycling strategy is a statement of
intent to make cycling in the borough safer, create space for
cycling and give the education and encouragement that people
need to get out of their cars and onto their bikes.
Taken alongside our Sustainable Transport Strategy, it should not
be left on a shelf to get dusty, but should be a live document that
guides current and future decision making and adapts as
circumstances change to encourage sustainable transport in our
borough.
It’s time for us all to get pedalling’.
Councillor Ruth Dombey, Leader of the Council.

2

Cycling Strategy

Page 77

Agenda Item 7

Delivering a step-change in cycling
1.3
In March 2013 the Greater London Authority published the Mayor's
Vision for Cycling in London, widely reported as a 'game changer' for cycling
in the capital. In his foreword, Transport for London's then Commissioner,
Sir Peter Hendy, stated that TfL is committed to funding and delivering the
ambitions set out in the Vision, noting that implementation of the Vision is not
just about cycle routes but about realising the "huge health and economic
benefits that greater cycling can bring".
1.4
Now is an exciting time for cycling in London. There is now, like
seldom before, the political will, ambition and funding to get more people
cycling, more safely and more often. Londoners want to try cycling or to cycle
more, and are demanding better networks, and so ensuring that funding for
cycling is used in the best possible way.
1.5
The Council fully supports the Mayor's Vision for Cycling, and we are
keen to help deliver our own part of the cycling revolution in outer London, in
order to make cycling an attractive mode of transport for the many, not just
the few.
1.6
We are ambitious about increasing cycling in the borough and we
are committed to taking the practical, innovative steps that will allow us, with
the help of our stakeholders and support of our residents, to deliver a stepchange in cycling and fully realise the benefits of increased levels of cycling,
including:


A fitter, healthier and happier population;



Improved air quality and reduced CO2 emissions;



Reduced congestion and enhanced transport efficiency;



Improved and enhanced mobility for those without access to cars,
and better social inclusion; and



Encouraging greater use of local shops and facilities to support
the local economy.



Creating better streets and places for everyone.

Context and Objectives
1.7
Our new Sustainable Transport Strategy (2015) committed to a
target of increasing cycle mode share to 4% by 2025. This Cycling Delivery
Strategy is a daughter-document of the Sustainable Transport Strategy, and
its purpose is therefore to set out a plan for achieving the cycling mode
share target and making best use of the funding available.

Cycling Strategy

3

Agenda Item 7

Page 78

1.8 This Cycling Delivery Strategy has six objectives:
1 Make Sutton a more attractive borough for cycling and create
a high quality cycle route network
2 Make Sutton a safer borough for cycling
3 Encourage a shift from the car to cycling for shorter journeys
4 Encourage safe and considerate behaviour by all road users
5 Create a cycling culture by promoting cycling to a wider
range of people
6 Actively promote cycling within the Council's Sustainable
Transport Strategy
1.9 These objectives are designed to provide a tangible plan for the
delivery of the Sustainable Transport Strategy's objectives, providing further
detail as to how aspirations for cycling will be achieved. The links between
the Sustainable Transport Strategy objectives and the Cycling Delivery Strategy
objectives are shown in Table 1.1 overleaf.
1.10 This Strategy is a live document and will be reviewed and updated at
regular intervals by the Council to ensure the forward Action Plan remains
relevant, and fully aligned with our vision and aims. We envisage that the
Strategy will grow in size expand as we develop further guidance, standards
and best practice principles to enable and support its delivery.

"We want a borough where cycling is a natural choice for
people of all ages, backgrounds, and ethnicities, for more
of their trips in and through the borough. We are excited
about this new cycling strategy and hope that it will help
pave the way to making Sutton one of the most attractive
places in London to cycle." Councillor Manuel Abellan, Cycling Champion

4

Cycling Strategy

Cycling Strategy Objectives

1 Make Sutton a more attractive borough
for cycling and create a high quality
cycle network

2 Make Sutton a safer borough for cycling

3 Encourage a shift from the car to cycling
for shorter journeys

5 Create a cycling culture by promoting
cycling to a wider range of people

5



4 Encourage safe and considerate behaviour
by all road users



6 Enhancing transport accessibility for all and improving
the public realm and street design.

5 Improving the safety and security of road users,
particularly pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users.

4 Reducing the harmful effects of transport on health and
the environment and its contribution to climate change.

3 Enabling smarter travel choices, particularly by improving and encouraging
walking, cycling and public transport.

2 Reducing car use and the need to travel through the appropriate location of
new development, travel planning and awareness campaigns.

1 Ensuring that the transport network supports the local economy and meets
the current and future needs of the borough in a sustainable way.

Page 79
Agenda Item 7

Table 1.1: Sustainable Transport Strategy and Cycling Delivery Strategy Objectives

Sustainable Transport Strategy Objectives

  

   
   


  

 

6 Actively promote cycling within the Council's
Sustainable Transport Strategy

Cycling Strategy

5

Page 80

Agenda Item 7

2 Context
Policy
2.1 This section outlines key aspects of policies relevant to this Draft
Strategy at national, regional and local levels.

National
National Planning Policy Framework (DCLG 2012)
2.2
Sustainable development is at the heart of current government planning
guidance. As such, encouraging cycling and reducing car dependency are
important goals for Local Authorities when they are developing planning policy
and assessing applications for new developments.
Draft Cycling Delivery Plan (DfT 2014)
2.3 In 2014 the Department for Transport (DfT) published a Draft Cycling
Delivery Plan, a 10 year plan for cycling in England, designed to
communicate the government's "vision for cycling and walking and the role
everyone - government, the wider public sector, stakeholders, business and
individuals - has to play in the vision." The Plan responds to the All Party
Parliamentary Cycling Group's (APPCG) 'Get Britain Cycling' report, which
included 18 recommendations to government. The final plan was expected to
be published in autumn 2015.
2.4 The DfT’s Draft Cycling Delivery Plan includes actions that must be
taken in order to achieve the vision of "walking and cycling becoming the
natural choice for shorter journeys - or as part of a longer journey regardless of age, gender, fitness level or income." It is structured around
four broad themes, outlined as the 'building blocks' for achieving more walking
and cycling in England:


Vision, leadership and ambition



Funding



Infrastructure and planning



Safety and perceptions of safety.

Regional
Mayor's Vision for Cycling (GLA 2013)
2.5 The Mayor's Vision for Cycling in London is an important influence on
this Strategy as this is about local delivery of its city-wide vision. The Vision
contains four important outcomes, all of which have relevance to the London
Borough of Sutton:

6

Cycling Strategy

6

Page 81



A Tube network for the bike: London will have a network of
direct, joined up cycle tracks, made up of the proposed
Quietways and Cycle Superhighways;



Safer streets for the bike: measures will be taken to improve
cyclist safety at key junctions and around large vehicles;



More people travelling by bike: cycling will be normalised, open
to anyone, wearing whatever, regardless of their previous
cycling experience;



Better places for everyone: moving towards a 'village in a city'
with more trees, better pedestrian environment and less traffic.

Agenda Item 7

London Cycling Design Standards (TfL 2014)
2.6
The London Cycling Design Standards (LCDS) set out best practice
design for cyclists in line with the Mayor's Vision for Cycling. To meet the
standards, any newly designed cycle facility should adhere to the following
outcomes: Safety; Directness; Comfort; Coherence; Attractiveness;
Adaptability. The standards also include a set of guiding principles:


Cycling is now mass transport and must be treated as such;



Facilities must be designed to accommodate a large number
of cyclists;



Bicycles should be treated as vehicles, not pedestrians;



Cyclists need separate space from volume motor traffic;



Separation can be achieved using low traffic streets;



Routes must be direct, logical and intuitive;



Provision must be consistent and planned as part of a network;



Reallocating road space can influence mode choice.

South London Sub-Regional Transport Plan (TfL 2014 Update)
2.7
The South London Sub-Regional Transport Plan is an overarching
document produced by TfL to draw together the committed transport
schemes made in the TfL Business Plan and in boroughs' Local
Implementation Plans. It brings together developments in the last 12 months
as well as future opportunities. The Plan identifies key challenges and priority
work areas for the South London Sub-Region. The key challenges are:

7



Improving air quality;



Transforming the role of walking and cycling;



Meeting CO2 targets;



Reducing public transport crowding;
Cycling Strategy

7

Page 82

Agenda Item 7



Improving access to and within key places;



Improving connectivity along identified corridors;



Reducing highway congestion.

2.8 Tfl’s Priority work areas for the South London sub-region include
implementing the South London Cycling Charter (2012) Mayor’s Vision for
Cycling and developing options for enhancing cycling across south London,
as well as implementing the Quietways and mini-Hollands programmes.
South London Cycling Charter (South London Partnership 2012)
2.9 This document sets out a collaborative vision for promoting new and
increased travel by bicycle across south London. It sets out potential cycle
investment schemes in south London, including improvements to LCN 75
through the London Borough of Sutton to enhance orbital connectivity, better
integrating modes of transport, e.g. through improved cycle parking at
stations and fostering cycling to town centres to help them thrive.

Borough
Core Planning Strategy (LBS 2009)
2.10 Sutton's Core Planning Strategy (CPS) sets out our long term spatial
strategy and core development policies, creating a framework to realise the
Council’s vision to "create a sustainable suburb in London". The CPS contains
key strategic objectives, of which one is directly relevant to this Strategy:
 To reduce car dependence, congestion and the impacts of air pollution

on the borough's environment and improve health and wellbeing.

2.11 Within the Core Planning Strategy there are two core policies which
specifically aim to meet this objective. They are:

Core Policy 9: Enabling Smarter Choices - an Area Based
Approach. This policy focuses on improving sustainable transport options
and integration in and around each of the borough's town centres and
strategic industrial areas.

Core Policy 10: Transport - Strategic and Borough-wide
proposals. Sutton Council will seek to improve public transport in the
borough working in partnership with central government, Transport for
London and others. This policy includes improving walking and cycling
facilities across the borough.


The Council is currently producing a new Local Plan which will be consulted
on in 2016.

8

Cycling Strategy

8

Page 83

Agenda Item 7

Local Implementation Plan 2011-2031 (LBS 2010)
2.12 All London boroughs have a statutory duty to complete a Local
Implementation Plan (LIP) which details a borough's policies and spending
programme for delivering the Mayor's Transport Strategy (MTS). Promoting
active modes and modal shift, including cycling, is an important aspect of
Sutton's Local Implementation Plan. Sutton's Local Implementation Plan sets
out six strategic transport objectives for the borough.
Sustainable Transport Strategy (LBS 2015)
2.13 Sutton's Sustainable Transport Strategy (STS)
sets out the following Transport Vision for the borough:

Transport policy and provision within the borough should contribute
to a more sustainable future, a better and safer environment,
economic prosperity, improved quality of life and greater equality.
2.14 The STS identifies key transport challenges for the borough. Those
which are particularly relevant to cycling include:


High car ownership and car dependency;



Traffic congestion;



Parking stress;



Traffic dominance and poor pedestrian environment in town centres;



Relatively low levels of walking, cycling and public transport use
despite the short distance of many journeys.

2.15 In order to address those challenges, the STS sets out a series of
objectives. The following are particularly pertinent to this Draft Strategy:
Objective 3: Enabling smarter travel choices, particularly by
improving and encouraging walking, cycling and public transport;



Objective 4: Reducing the harmful effects of transport on health
and the environment and its contribution to climate change;



Objective 5: Improving the safety and security of road users,
particularly pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users.



2.16 The STS includes a target to increase cycling mode share from a
baseline of 1% to 2.2% in the short term (by 2017) and to 4% by 2025.
2.17 The STS also defines a road user hierarchy, which sets out how road
users and associated transport schemes should be prioritised within Sutton.
The hierarchy prioritises consideration of pedestrians and cyclists above local
and non-local motorised traffic, as shown in Figure 2.1.

9

Cycling Strategy

9

Page 84

Agenda Item 7

Figure 2.1: Road User Hierarchy

Consider First

Children, Elderly People
People with Sensory or Mobility Impairments
Other Pedestrians
Cyclists
Public Transport
Local Business Collection and Deliveries
Local Motor Traffic

Consider Last

Non - Local Motor Traffic

One Planet Sutton
2.18 Sutton has committed to becoming a one planet borough by 2025.
If everyone in the world lived as we do in Sutton, we would need almost three planets' worth of
resources to maintain our lifestyle (our ecological footprint). We need to change this and reduce
our footprint down to a one planet level.
We will be working to deliver this vision using the five One Planet Sutton themes below:


Cutting Carbon Emissions



Cutting Waste



Valuing Our Natural Environment



Supporting Healthy Communities



Supporting the Local Economy

2.19 The Cutting Carbon Emissions theme includes sustainable transport targets. This is one
of the key commitments under the council's 'One Planet Sutton' programme. These targets are
focussed around being as environmentally friendly and fuel efficient as possible, with associated
targets (monitored and revised each year) to:
ST 1.1 A Priority:
Increase the percentage of Council staff commuting by sustainable
transport from a baseline of 42% in 2011, to 52.5% in 2017.


10

Cycling Strategy

10

Page 85

Agenda Item 7

 ST 1.2 A Priority:
Increase the percentage of children travelling to school by sustainable
transport from 76% (2009) to 80% in 2017.

ST 1.3 A Priority:
Increase the use of sustainable transport from a 2009/10 - 2011/12
average baseline of: 1% cycling to 2.2% cycling, 28% walking to 29.6%
walking, 16% public transport to 17.6% by 2017.


 ST 1.4 A Priority:
Reduction in Nitrogen Oxide (NO2) annual mean concentrations and
annual exceedances, and reduction in small particulate matter (PM10)
annual mean concentrations across all monitoring sites. Sutton has
the lowest level of NO2 (which largely comes from diesel engines) of
all the London Boroughs.
 ZCB 1.3 Priority:
Annual reduction in Council-generated CO2 emissions
(this includes transport emissions).

2.20 Increasing levels of cycling in the borough will contribute substantially
towards the One Planet Sutton sustainable transport targets.

Cycling in the London Borough of Sutton
2.21 Sutton has relatively low levels of cycling at present, with only 1% of
all journeys made by bicycle. This compares to an Outer London average of
2%, while the same figure for Inner London is 4%. 1.5% of journeys to work
are made by bicycle, which is around the same as the Outer London average.
2.22 The car is the dominant mode of transport in the borough. Over three
quarters (77%) of households own at least one car, compared to the Outer
London average of 69% and the London-wide average of 58%.
For comparison with the journey to work figure above, 33.1% of such
journeys are made by car, with 12.9% by train. The Outer London average for
car journeys to work is 24.8%.
2.23 There is a low number of recorded collisions involving cyclists on the
borough's roads, albeit overall levels of cycling are also low. Over the three years
from 2011 to 2013, there was one pedal cycle fatality within the borough (2011) .
Over the same period there were 149 recorded collisions involving cyclists.
There were five 'serious' casualties, six in 2012 and two in 2013.

11

Cycling Strategy

11

Page 86

Agenda Item 7

3

Our Plan for Cycling
3.1
This section outlines our current programme for encouraging cycling
in the London Borough of Sutton, as well as the opportunities we will take to
increase cycling in the medium and long term. We have structured our overall
plan for cycling according to our cycling objectives.

Objective 1 Make Sutton a more attractive borough for
cycling and create a high quality cycle route network
What we do
3.2
The existing network of on- and off-road cycle routes in the London
borough of Sutton is shown in Figure 3.1. The majority of the current network
is on-road, particularly those routes which provide east-west and north-south
links. Off-road routes are primarily those within parks and through green
spaces.
3.3
Funding from the borough's annual Local Implementation Plan grant
from TfL is used to investigate and implement improvements to the existing
cycle network and create new routes. There are a number of proposed
improvements and expansions to the existing cycle network in the borough
which will improve east-west and north-south connections, as well as
wayfinding along those routes.
3.4
There are several opportunities to enhance and extend the current
cycle network and deliver better, more visible and continuous routes for
cyclists. In the longer term the aim will be to create a comprehensive network
so that the majority of borough residents live within 400m of a cycle route.
Good quality cycling infrastructure is recognised as an important factor in
achieving wider participation in cycling.
3.5
We will continue to improve and link existing routes, create further routes,
and ensure that the network caters for different kinds of cyclists and different
kinds of trips. Not all cyclists will have the confidence to negotiate main roads
and major junctions, and it is important that we deliver a network that is suitable
for all. This could include further leisure routes around parks and alongside
rivers as well as good quality on-road cycle facilities.
3.6
All new schemes or improvement works should, as far as possible,
be designed and delivered in accordance with the TfL’s latest London Cycling
Design Standards (LCDS), with clear adherence to the guiding principles,
delivering the 'good design outcomes' of:
Safety: Good infrastructure should help to make cycling safer and
address negative perceptions about safety, particularly when it
comes to moving through junctions;



12

Cycling Strategy

12

13

Quietway
141

Quietway
142

NCN Route 20

Avenue Verte

Figure 3.1. Existing Cycle Network in London Borough of Sutton

NCN Route 20

Quietway
141

Not to Scale

November 2015

This map is based on Ordnance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller
of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100008655X 2015

N

Avenue Verte

National Cycle Route 20
and Avenue Verte

Proposed Quietway on
Existing Cycle Route

Proposed
Cycle Route

Existing
Cycle Route

Sutton
Cycle Route
Network

Page 87
Agenda Item 7

Objective 1

Cycling Strategy

13

Page 88

Agenda Item 7

 Directness: Routes must be logical, continuous and planned
holistically as part of a network without unnecessary obstacles,
delays and diversions;

Comfort: Riding surfaces for cycling, and transitions from one
area to another, should be fit for purpose, smooth, well constructed
and well maintained;



 Coherence: Infrastructure should be legible, intuitive, consistent,
joined-up and inclusive. It should be understandable by all users;

Infrastructure should not be ugly or add
unnecessarily to street clutter. Well designed cycling infrastructure
should enhance the urban realm;

 Attractiveness:

 Adaptability: Cycling infrastructure should be designed to
accommodate users of all types of cycle, and an increasing number
of users over time.

Short to Medium term opportunities
3.7
We will conduct a full audit of our current cycle network to investigate
how specific infrastructure for cycling and the network as a whole performs
against the LCDS and the Cycling Level of Service assessment (CLoS).
We will assess the network using the six LCDS 'good design outcomes' of
safety, directness, comfort, coherence, attractiveness and adaptability. The
CLoS has been developed by TfL as part of the LCDS in order to set a common
standard for the performance of cycling infrastructure and frame discussion
about design options so that schemes are appealing for existing cyclists and
can entice new cyclists onto the network. It is focussed on ‘rideability’.
3.8
We will identify quick-win, short-term actions such as surface
improvements and maintenance improved cycle markings, priority and signage.
In addition, we will use this audit to identify locations and links at which more
focused, longer-term interventions are required to improve the quality of the
network. We are keen to invite local stakeholders to support us in these
audits so that we achieve a comprehensive user-perspective and maximise
the opportunities for collaborative working. However, there may be specific
local circumstances where the LCDS cannot be met, and the standards allow
some flexibility to reflect this.
3.9
We will identify opportunities for quick-win enhancements and extensions
to the cycle network that could be delivered as part of routine or planned
highway maintenance works, and other transport and regeneration schemes.
This will require early and continued engagement with our colleagues responsible
for highway maintenance and transport improvements, from scheme conception
to implementation. We will help to ensure that all transport and regeneration
projects deliver improvements for cyclists through identifying opportunities for:

14

Cycling Strategy

Page 89

Agenda Item 7

Junction improvements (including Advanced Stop Lines (ASLs)
and advisory cycle lanes as a minimum);


Protected space for cyclists (light-touch segregation or full
segregation may be appropriate on some routes);




The rationalisation of car parking and loading bays; and



More cycle parking.

Quietways
3.10 Quietways are one of the major programmes announced in the
Mayor's Vision for Cycling. Quietways are defined as a cross-London network of
high-quality guided routes on low-trafficked back streets. The new Quietways
build on the former London Cycle Network (LCN), but aim to offer more direct
routes, and links to other networks as appropriate. The overarching principle
for the Quietways infrastructure is 'lines and signs' small-scale interventions
rather than major new infrastructure, identifying the best, most direct but in
some places least known routes, making these visible and appealing to all kinds
of cyclists. However, there may be a need for more significant infrastructure
improvements at certain locations such as major road crossings and junctions.
3.11 Sutton has two proposed Quietway routes confirmed by TfL: Route
141, from Croydon to Worcester Park, following the route of the former LCN
75 for most of its length, and Route 142, from Sutton to Morden. These
routes are shown in yellow in Figure 3.1.
3.12 Indicative timescales for delivery of the two Quietway routes have
now been confirmed, and it is anticipated that they will be delivered within
the short to medium term. We will continue to work with TfL to determine the
best routes for the Quietways and to support their delivery.
Longer-term opportunities
3.13 Ultimately, we want to deliver more quality space for cycling in the
borough, protecting and segregating this space where there is opportunity to
do so. Our longer-term opportunities for delivering more space for cycling are:
Quietways: TfL has confirmed that two of the borough's former
LCN routes will be upgraded to Quietways in the near future. We
would welcome the opportunity to identify further Quietway routes
within the borough in order to provide direct, high-quality and
navigable routes for cyclists. We are clear however that any further
Quietways should be seen as a real opportunity to build upon our
current network, providing new routes or addressing quality or
alignment issues where required, and should not simply be an
opportunity to reinvigorate the former LCN.


15

Cycling Strategy

15

Agenda Item 7

Page 90

 Wandle Trail: The Wandle Trail cycling and walking route passes
through the borough, forming part of National Cycle Route 20 and the
Avenue Verte long distance route between London and Paris. There is
scope for further enhancements to this key strategic route and to
promote its wider use, as part of the development of the Wandle Valley
Regional Park.
 Major cycling schemes: We developed outline-level proposals for a

number of major cycling schemes as part of our Mini-Holland bid. We
will review these proposals against assessment criteria that prioritise
cost-effectiveness / impact on cycling levels and develop the bestperforming proposals to feasibility stage designs. We want to develop
an implementation-ready list of high-impact schemes so that when
funding opportunities arise we are clear about what we want to take
forward, and can take those schemes forward within the shortest possible
timeframe.
3.14 There are opportunities to seek additional funding for cycling and we will
work with TfL and other key stakeholders to ensure that our enthusiasm for
delivering a step-change in cycling provision is communicated.
Maintenance and Cleansing
3.15 In order to make cycling a comfortable and convenient mode of
transport it is important that cycle routes are adequately maintained and
cleaned. Within budgetary constraints the Council will try to ensure that cycle
routes/tracks are regularly inspected and maintained. This includes regular
sweeping to remove debris and broken glass; and regular cutting back of
overgrowing vegetation. Cyclists can assist in this by reporting on issues to the
Council and voluntary/ community groups could assist in the task.
3.16 The Council will also ensure that opportunities are taken as part of
planned highway maintainance work to improve the surface, markings and
provision for cyclists.

16

Cycling Strategy

16

Page 91

Agenda Item 7

Objective 2
Ojective 2 Make Sutton a safer borough for cycling
What we do
3.17 The Council is working to create safer environments for everyone in
residential areas, Over the years and we have introduced a number of areabased interventions within neighbourhoods. These interventions, such as
traffic calming and 20mph zones, deliver packages of measures to reduce
traffic volumes and speeds through residential areas to create environments
suitable for cycling.
3.18 We are also working to create safer environments for everyone on
main road corridors. In recent years we have incorporated measures for all
road users in our corridor safety schemes.
3.19 We are reviewing the existing one-way streets in the borough and in
recent years we have introduced contra-flow cycling where it is safe to do so.
What we will do
3.20 It is not only the formal cycle network that should offer quality spaces
for cycling. We want to make sure that all streets help new and existing
cyclists feel safe and welcome.
3.21 Our existing work to implement a programme of corridor and
neighbourhood schemes aimed at making streets safer for all road users will
help us achieve this objective by incorporating measures such as:


Cycle lanes, segregated where possible;



Advanced stop lines at junctions;



Cycle-friendly traffic calming;



Slower traffic speeds.

In addition we will seek to improve provision for cyclists on all roads
as opportunities arise.
3.22 We believe that 20mph zones are most effective when they are
complemented by physical traffic calming measures, and we will continue to identify
areas in which a 20mph limit plus associated physical measures is appropriate.
However, there is an opportunity to learn from the implementation of more
extensive 20mph limits in inner London boroughs, and identify how they could
be effectively applied in certain locations. We will identify one pilot location for
a 20mph neighbourhood zone, subject to funding being made available, and,
if the pilot is a success, identify further locations subject to resident support
and a funding source being found.
3.23 There is an opportunity to enhance links between neighbourhoods
and make the highway network more accessible by bike by introducing or

17

Cycling Strategy

17

Agenda Item 7

Page 92

upgrading contra-flow cycle lanes on one-way streets. We will continue to
work with local stakeholders and residents to identify locations where
improvements are needed and links through which better access for cyclists
could be provided.
3.24 We will also work with local stakeholders to identify opportunities for
further 'low traffic zones' where through-access by car is restricted and low
traffic neighbourhoods are created, which maintain cycle and pedestrian
access.

18

Cycling Strategy

18

Page 93

Agenda Item 7

Objective 3
Objective 3 Encourage a shift from the car to cycling for
shorter journeys
What we do
3.25 The Council requires cycle parking to be provided as part of new
developments to enable employees, residents and customers of the
development to cycle, and to store their bicycle securely on arrival. The
minimum quantities of cycle parking provided by land use type are outlined
in Sutton's Site Development Policies Development Plan Document.
This includes provision for short term visitor parking and long term staff use.
Travel plans for new developments must include an action to review the need
for additional cycle parking at regular intervals, and to increase provision if
further capacity is required.
3.26 The Council works with all schools in the borough to develop a
School Travel Plan for pupils and staff. School Travel Plans aim to promote
safe and sustainable travel to schools. The School Travel Plan programme is
linked to and supported by the Safer Routes to School project, which designs
and implements quick-win, local infrastructural measures to make routes to
school safer. Most schools have cycle parking provision within their grounds.
3.27 We install cycle stands around the borough outside shops and other
locations where there is public demand. We work also with the rail companies to
install cycle parking at stations. In the last year the Council has also installed a
number of secure cycle shelters in social housing estates of flats which do not
have adequate secure storage for bicycles. This followed an extensive survey
of residents in these estates. A bikehangar at The Quad youth centre has also
been installed.
What we will do
3.28 We want to deliver improvements that mean it is easy to make
journeys by bike and therefore achieve a modal shift from the car to cycling.
Many of the trips that could be made by bike are trips within the borough,
meaning that our area of focus should be on making it easy to cycle for short,
everyday trips to destinations such as town centres, stations and schools.
 New major developments within the borough present an opportunity to
secure funding for improvements to the local transport infrastructure,
including improved provision for cyclists.
 We will identify suitable locations in town centres for improved
infrastructure such as contra-flow cycle lanes on one-way streets to
ensure that town centres are easily accessible and permeable by bike.

19

Cycling Strategy

19

Page 94

Agenda Item 7

 Cycle parking and on-site provision for cyclists (including showers
and changing facilities where appropriate) will be required for all new
developments, in line with the current council’s minimum standards.
We will review the case for adopting TfL's cycle parking standards
Through a Travel Plan we will require developers to review usage of
cycle parking and increase provision where necessary to ensure that
supply always meets demand.

We will undertake a review of cycle parking across the borough to
determine where there is a shortfall in supply, issues around quality,
or potential to pre-empt demand. Where further stands or improvements
to existing stands are required we will work to address the need.


 We will continue to work with station operators to ensure that it is
as simple as possible to make bike-rail journeys. This will include
reviewing with operators the supply and demand for cycle parking at
stations in the borough, and cycle access to stations.
 The

schools expansion project presents a further opportunity to
secure funding to encourage cycling to school, making sure that
good quality facilities for cycling are there from the outset. We will
work with new schools and schools undergoing major expansions to
ensure that safe cycling routes to schools are implemented
identified, as well as secure, well-sited and covered cycle parking.
 We will continue to install secure cycle shelters / bikehangars in
social housing estates and work with private housing developments
to provide secure cycle parking retrospectively.

20

Cycling Strategy

20

Page 95

Agenda Item 7

Objective 4
Objective 4 Encourage safe and considerate behaviour by all
road users
What we do
3.30 Bikeability is the national cycle training scheme, giving trainees the
skills and confidence to cycle on today's roads. The Council currently offers
free Bikeability training to all those who live, work or study in the borough,
with approximately 1,500 children trained through their primary school each
year. The Bikeability programme is currently funded through the Transport for
London Local Implementation Plan and Borough Cycling Programme grants.
3.31 To help facilitate positive and safe interactions between cyclists and
drivers in the borough, Sutton's fleet drivers receive Safer Urban Driver (SUD)
training. SUD training includes a classroom module followed by a practical
session in which drivers receive on-road cycle training. This helps drivers to
better understand cyclist behaviour and the risks faced by cyclists when
cycling on-road. SUD training is also offered to fleet drivers based at
businesses located in the borough, and to those who regularly drive through
the borough as part of their route. The SUD programme is funded through the
Borough Cycling Programme.
3.32 From September 2015, HGVs without cycle safety equipment will be
have been banned from London as a result of the 'Safer Lorry Scheme'.
Vehicles of more than 3.5 tonnes travelling on any road within Greater London
(except motorways) must be fitted with side guards to protect cyclists from
being dragged under the wheels in the event of a collision, along with Class V
and Class VI mirrors giving the driver a better view of cyclists and pedestrians
around their vehicle.
3.33 We are researching currently trialling the technology currently available
a new detection device on Council fleet vehicles to highlight the presence of
cyclists in the vicinity of HGVs. This requires cyclists to also have an equivalent
device.
What we will do
3.34 Training is key important to encourage and instill positive and safe
interactions between cyclists and other road users, but good physical design and
high quality infrastructure also has a role both have roles to play in designing
out the potential for conflict. As referenced previously, we are committed to
designing and delivering new schemes in accordance with the latest London
Cycling Design Standards (LCDS). We will:
continue with our existing training programmes for new cyclists
and drivers, including Bikeability and the Safer Urban Driving (SUD)
training schemes.


21

Cycling Strategy

21

Page 96

Agenda Item 7

deliver more Level 3 Bikeability training, which teaches skills for
cycling in more complex road-environments. Level 3 is particularly
suited to cycling in urban environments. We are keen to offer Level 3
training to both children at secondary school (or those making the
transition to secondary school, where there is a need for children to
learn more advanced skills before the transition is made) and adults.


 investigate and trial new technology to highlight the presence of
cyclists in the vicinity of HGVs.

identify any locations, particularly junctions, on heavily trafficked
arterial routes within the borough at which segregation is the most
viable option for ensuring safe interactions between cyclists and
traffic, and identify what kind of segregation is required. We will work
with TfL to recommend and deliver segregated routes where those
routes are on the Transport for London Route Network (TLRN).


 undertake road safety awareness and publicity campaigns aimed at
all road users, in particular to raise awareness of cyclists’ safety
amongst motorists. As part of this we will work closely with the police
and local driving schools.

undertake a publicity campaign to encourage safer and more
considerate behaviour amongst cyclists, particularly in relation to
pedestrians. This will include discouraging cycling on footways.


22

Cycling Strategy

22

Page 97

Agenda Item 7

Objective 5
Objective 5 Create a cycling culture by promoting cycling to
a wider range of people
What we do
Education and Training
3.35 The Council is currently delivering a project in conjunction with its
Youth Centres to help young people learn basic bike maintenance skills.
The aim of this project is to encourage young people to get involved in cycling.
Those attending the basic course who demonstrate a particular enthusiasm
and aptitude for the skills taught will be invited to take part in the Cytech
course: the internationally recognised training and accreditation scheme for
bicycle technicians. This project is currently funded through Local Implementation
Plan funding, but opportunities to secure match-funding from other Council
departments are being explored.
3.36 The Pollution Control team is leading on a project in Beddington Lane
with funding from the Mayor's Air Quality Fund to encourage the businesses
and employees based in the Beddington Lane industrial area to take positive
action on local air quality issues. This includes an awareness raising initiative
to highlight how individuals contribute to air quality issues, and the action that
they can take to minimise their exposure to poor air quality. One of the final
phases of the project will involve the distribution of information
to local businesses showing local cycle routes and cycle parking locations, as
well as information about mobile applications that support or encourage cycling.
3.37 The Clean Air 4 Schools programme is another example of a Mayor's
Air Quality Fund project being delivered in the borough. The project involves
an intensive air quality education project in local schools (the project is being
delivered in partnership with the London Borough of Croydon), through which
primary school children learn about air quality issues, and the actions they
can take as individuals to reduce local pollution issues. This will include the
promotion of active travel modes.
3.38 Sutton The Council is also currently seeking funding from TfL to
provide a range of transport interventions for Beddington Lane (including
cycling) as part of the Beddington Project. Beddington Lane is one of the
borough's two premier major industrial areas.
Marketing
3.39 The London Borough of Sutton Council delivers a comprehensive
programme of travel awareness initiatives that aim to encourage people to walk
or cycle through 'soft' awareness raising measures. These initiatives include:

23

Cycling Strategy

23

Agenda Item 7

Page 98

 Cycling roadshow events in town centres and workplaces to support

existing cyclists and to generate interest in cycling amongst those who
don't cycle, or those who want to cycle more regularly. The roadshow
events include Dr Bike sessions (basic bike maintenance), bike security
marking (supported by the Metropolitan Police) and the distribution
of the Cycling in Sutton guide (including a map of local cycle routes).
 The Get Active Wandle project, a project supported and matchfunded by Sutton's Public Health team as well as the London Boroughs
of Croydon, Merton and Wandsworth. The project has been initiated
by Sport England, and aims to encourage cycling for sport leisure along
the River Wandle and in the proposed Wandle Valley Regional Park.

What we will do
3.40 We want to present a clear case for cycling to those who work, live,
study in or travel through the borough, and to make information about cycling in
the borough accessible, engaging and convincing. To encourage more cyclists
on to the network and to encourage existing cyclists to cycle more, we will:
Continue with our current education, training and marketing (travel
awareness) projects, including Dr Bike sessions, Bikeability and
cycling roadshows at workplaces;


Develop an events calendar for cycling, with the aim of delivering
events that help to instil and cultivate a cycling culture within the
borough. Events could include a led cycle ride of Sutton's parks,
car-free event days in town centres, workplace cycle challenges
and cycle races in partnership with British Cycling;


Review our existing cycle maps with reference to the quality of the
cycle network and ensure our maps are available to a wider audience
by putting them online;


 Consider the marketing opportunities associated with all new
improvements or additions to the cycle network: for example, maps
highlighting new or extended routes could be distributed to all
residents near the route prior to or immediately after launch;

Gain better insight into the barriers to cycling for vulnerable and
harder to reach groups such as women, the elderly, ethnic minorities
and the less affluent through commissioning a comprehensive
residents' travel survey focussing on cycling, and develop an associated
action plan to increase cycling rates amongst these groups;


 Seek to re-introduce the establishment of a bicycle recycling and

maintenance scheme in the borough as a social enterprise which
renovates old and unwanted bikes and gives them away to those on
low incomes, while also providing provides cycle maintenance training

24

Cycling Strategy

24

Page 99

Agenda Item 7

to young people. Bikes could be given to those working on them and
to the unemployed and low paid;
 Promote safe and considerate cycling to reduce the conflict with
pedestrians, especially by discouraging cycling on the footway, and
foster consideration for other road users;
 Ensure the borough's cycle network is accessible to all types of
bikes and cyclists, including those with disabilities and users of
mobility scooters, and is designed to avoid conflict with those with
visual or physical impairments;

Promote the health benefits of cycling through the Public Health
Team and Clinical Commisioning Group to encourage cycling for
exercise and well-being. This will focus paticularly on those who would
benefit from gentle exercise such as the elderly and those with
cardio-vascular illness.


25

Cycling Strategy

25

Agenda Item 7

Page 100

Objective 6
Objective 6 Actively promote cycling within the Council's
Sustainable Transport Strategy
What we do
3.41 The responsibility for the planning and delivery of cycling projects sits
within various different Council departments. This is to be expected, given the
different themes under which cycling sits and the different benefits associated
with cycling. There are many different ways in which increased cycling can
be facilitated and many reasons why increased cycling is important.
3.42 Sutton does have cross-departmental working and cross-referencing of
policies. Public health and Pollution Control and Smarter Travel and the
Transportation Section have identified opportunities for cross-departmental
working.
3.43 The Council hosts a Cycle Forum meeting four times a year to work
with external stakeholders to better understand their suggestions for cycling
in the borough and to ensure that the available funding is being used in the
best possible way.
3.44 We consult with London Cycling Campaign and Cyclists’ Touring Club
local representatives on all new highway and transport schemes.
What we will do
3.45 We want to make the planning and delivery of cycling projects a more
collaborative process so that we identify opportunities to maximise funding,
quality and synergies at an early stage, thereby delivering better projects
which have greater and more wide-ranging outcomes. To do this, we will:
 establish an internal Cycling Advisory Group within the Council,
bringing together those from across the Council who have an
involvement in cycling projects. It is clear that there are links between
cycling projects and wider outcomes such as air quality and public
health, and we propose convening a forum through which ideas and
progress on cycling and related projects can be discussed. This
group will be championed by an elected member;
 ensure that all officers involved with the commissioning and designing

of highways, transport and public realm schemes are fully aware of
current cycling design standards and best practice, and where
appropriate a cycle audit of new schemes is undertaken to assess
the impact on and maximise the benefits for cyclists;

 work with external stakeholder groups to identify further opportunities

for collaborative working and the exchange of ideas. This could involve

26

Cycling Strategy

26

Page 101

Agenda Item 7

moving the quarterly Cycle Forum Meeting to the evening so more
people could attend;
identify alternative funding options for local projects and support
organisations or residents in the preparation of bids for projects to
encourage cycling where projects must be community-led.


 work closely with residents and stakeholders through local committees

and the Environment and Neighbourhood committee to gain support
for cycling schemes and promote the wider benefits of cycling;

work closely withTfL, neighbouring boroughs and other key
stakeholders to ensure a joined up approach and maximise funding
opportunities and synergies;


aim to ensure that the Strategy achieves a step-change in cycling
infrastructure and participation in the borough in order to deliver the
Council’s Cycling Vision and leave a long-tem legacy for future
generations.


27

Cycling Strategy

27

Page 102

Agenda Item 7

4

Making it happen: Action Plan
4.1
This section includes the action plan for achieving our aims and
objectives, delivering our vision and achieving a cycling mode share of
2.2% by 2017 and 4% by 2025. The action plan is structured according to
our objectives, and includes our short term committed programme for cycling,
as well as the actions we will take forward in response to the identified
opportunities in the medium and longer-term.

Funding
4.2
The action plan includes a column to identify the committed or potential
funding source for each action. The majority of actions will be funded by TfL and
the Council, but we are keen to explore alternative sources of funding where
there is potential to do so, for example working in partnership with developers,
businesses, train operating companies and central government departments;
indeed, we see this as an important step in helping to maximise investment in
cycling and deliver our programme. All the proposals and actions in the
Strategy are subject to funding.
4.3
Our aim is to achieve a modal shift to increase the number of those
cycling (also walking and using public transport) and so reduce the dependence
on car borne methods of transport. As the dependence on the use of the car
is greater in Outer London, we will seek funding from TfL and others that allows
improvements in cycling that support public sustainable transport improvements
generally.

Timeframes
4.4
The action plan identifies a timeframe for the implementation of each
action in terms of short, medium and long term. These timeframes are defined
as follows:


Short term: 2015/16 - 2016/7



Medium term: 2017/18 - 2018/19



Long term: 2019/20 - 2024/25

Monitoring and review
4.5
Implementation of this strategy will be monitored on a regular basis,
with the support of internal and external stakeholders. This The Strategy will be
considered a 'live' document and should will be subject to regular review.
4.6
The Council will also monitor cycle usage in order to track progress
towards meeting the targets. This includes regular cycle counts and residents’
travel surveys as well as using data from external sources.

28

Cycling Strategy

28

Work with TfL to plan and deliver
Worcester Park to Croydon Quietway route
Work with TfL to plan and deliver
Sutton to Morden Quietway route
Deliver a cycleway between
North Cheam and Worcester Park.
Sign the Pyl Brook path as shared use to link up
existing cycle routes.
Improvements to NCN 20 and Avenue Verte route
Clarify details and aims of the scheme with TfL and
local stakeholders, and progress as appropriate.
Audit network and infrastructure using LCDS good
design outcomes to identify links and junctions at
which provision for cycling could be improved.
Quick-win enhancements to network, including
junction improvements, protected space for cyclists,
rationalisation of car parking and loading bays
and more cycle parking.
Work with TfL to support implementation and delivery
of initial Quietways within London Borough of Sutton,
and identify additional routes to be considered for
following phase of Quietways delivery.

Quietway 141:
Worcester Park to Croydon

Quietway 142: Sutton to Morden

Extension of the cycleway from
Boscombe Road to Green Lane

Convert Pyl Brook path to shared
use for cyclists and pedestrians

Improve the cycleway through Oaks
Park to Woodmansterne Road

Green Wrythe Lane pedestrian
and cycle facilities

Audit of existing network and
infrastructure

Identify opportunities for quick-win
enhancements and extensions to
the cycle network (informed by
audit)

Further Quietways

01.1

01.2

01.3

01.4

01.5

01.6

01.7

01.8

01.9

Action

Item

TfL
TfL LIP
2015/16
S106
TfL LIP
2015/16
TfL LIP
2015/16
LBS

LBS
TfL

TfL
LBS
LBS
LBS
LBS
LBS

LBS, with
support from
stakeholders
LBS

TfL

TfL

TfL
LBS

LBS
TfL

Funding
Source

Action
Owner



















Medium

Short

Timeframe



Long

Make Sutton a more attractive borough and create a high quality cycle route network

Ref

Objective 1

Table 4.1 Action Plan

Page 103
Agenda Item 7

Cycling Strategy

29

30

Cycling Strategy

01.10

Ref

Item

LBS

LBS

Develop prioritised schemes to feasibility stage
designs and identify suitable funding opportunities
for implementation.

Action
Owner

Review Mini-Holland planned schemes to prioritise
schemes that will deliver a substantial impact on
cycling levels.

Action

TfL
LBS
S106
CIL
Other

LBS

Funding
Source
Short





Medium

Timeframe



Long

Make Sutton a more attractive borough and create a high quality cycle route network

Additional major cycling schemes

Objective 1

Agenda Item 7

Page 104

TfL
LIP
2015/16
LBS
TfL

LBS
TfL

LBS

LBS

LBS

Deliver contra-flow lane to improve permeability.

Identify additional locations where contra-flow cycle
lanes are appropriate, or require improvements, and
deliver more and improved contra-flow cycle lanes to
enhance cycle access in residential areas.
Identify locations where it is appropriate to create
reduced or traffic free environments in residential
areas, which favour cycling.

Contra-flow cycle lanes

Filtered permeability

02.3

02.4

LBS
TfL

LBS

Identify location for pilot 20mph neighbourhood zone
and develop consultation and delivery plan.
Implement as appropriate and review effectiveness.

Contra-flow cycle lane in the one
way section of Manor Lane, Sutton

TfL

LBS

Continue to implement 20mph zones / limits,
subject to funding.

02.2

Funding
Source

Action
Owner

Action

20mph zones / limits

Item

Make Sutton a safer borough for cycling

02.1

Ref

Objective 2













Medium

Short

Timeframe
Long

Page 105
Agenda Item 7

Cycling Strategy

31

32

Cycling Strategy

Cycle parking

Town centre cycling
improvements

School travel plans

03.2

03.3

Item

LBS/TfL
S106/CIL
LBS/TfL
S106/CIL
LBS
TfL

TfL

LBS
LBS
LBS

LBS

Work with developers to secure additional or
improved provision for cyclists within town centres.
Internal collaboration to ensure cycling infrastructure
schemes are on the CIL list
All London Borough of Sutton schools to continue to
be supported in the development, review and update
of their travel plans. School travel plans should
include actions to encourage and facilitate cycling
to school.
Continue with Safer Routes to School programme to
improve cycling provision on routes to schools.

S106
CIL

LBS

Require secure cycle parking and provision for
cyclists as part of new developments, including
residential developments. Review minimum cycle
parking quantities associated with new
developments and consider case for adopting
TfL's cycle parking standards and developing
borough-specific cycle parking design guidance.
LBS

TfL

LBS

Review current provision and quality of cycle parking
across borough and identify where improved or
additional cycle parking is required through the
Borough Cycling Programme.

Identify suitable infrastructure improvements such as
contra-flow cycle lanes and implement contra-flows.

Funding
Source

Action
Owner

Action

Encourage a shift from the car for shorter journeys

03.1

Ref

Objective 3









Short













Medium

Timeframe





Long

Agenda Item 7

Page 106

Secure developer contributions as part of planning
process for schools expansion for enhanced and
extended cycle network, and provision of facilities for
cyclists at schools.
Work with TfL to deliver Cycle to School Partnership
programme in London Borough of Sutton, subject to
confirmation of funding secured and delivery
timescales.
Continue to work in partnership with station operators
to support cycling to stations and bike-rail journeys,
including a review of cycle parking at stations and
work to identify required improvements on key routes
to stations.

Cycle to School Partnership

Cycling to stations

03.4

03.5

Action

School travel plans

Item

Encourage a shift from the car for shorter journeys

03.3

Ref

Objective 3
Funding
Source
S106
CIL

TfL

Rail and
Station
Operators

Action
Owner
LBS

LBS

LBS/
Rail and
Station
Operators





Short







Medium

Timeframe
Long

Page 107
Agenda Item 7

Cycling Strategy

33

34

Cycling Strategy

Continue to deliver programme of cycle training for
adults and children, and extend Level 3 / intensive
offer.
Continue SUD training.
Implement Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) in
accordance with TfL Safer Lorries Scheme.
Investigate technology to assist safety of cyclists
Identify locations on heavily trafficked arterial routes
within the borough where segregation is appropriate,
and work with local residents and stakeholders to
propose and implement solutions. Where these
locations are on TLRN (TfL routes) we will work with
TfL on the recommendation and implementation of
improvements.

Safer Urban Driving (SUD)
training

Safer Lorry Scheme

Technology to assist safety

Segregated routes

04.2

04.3

04.3

04.4

Action

Bikeability cycle training

Item

Funding
Source
LBS

TfL
Tfl
TfL
TfL
LBS
S106
CIL

Action
Owner
LBS

LBS
LBS
LBS
LBS
TfL

Encourage safe and considerate behaviour by all road users

04.1

Ref

Objective 4













Medium

Short

Timeframe





Long

Agenda Item 7

Page 108

Deliver this project in 2015/16 and investigate
opportunities for match-funding and continuation in
future years.
Deliver this project in 2015/16 (will include design
and distribution of information about air quality and
cycling to businesses in Beddington Lane).
Deliver this project in 2015/16 and investigate
opportunities for match-funding and continuation in
future years.
Work with major employers to encourage employees
to cycle to work. This will include workplace events
such as Dr Bike and cycle training opportunities.
Deliver town centre cycling events - Dr Bike, bike
marking.
Deliver this project in 2015/16 with the London
Boroughs of Merton, Croydon and Wandsworth as
part of the proposed Wandle Valley Regional Park.
Develop a calendar of events to promote cycling and
instil a cycling culture within the borough. Events
could include led cycle rides through the borough,
car free event days, workplace cycle/active travel
challenges and cycle races in partnership with British
Cycling.
Make cycling maps available online.

Bike maintenance for young
people (Cytech qualification)

Beddington Lane air quality /
cycling business engagement
project

Clean Air 4 Schools

Travel awareness initiatives

Cycling Events

Get Active Wandle project

Develop cycling events
calendar/programme of travel
awareness events

Cycle route maps

05.1

O5.2

O5.3

O5.4

05.5

O5.6

O5.7

O5.8

Action

Item



TfL (Mayor's
Air Quality
Fund)
TfL

TfL
Sport
England
LBS
TfL
LBS
S106
CIL
Other

LBS

LBS

LBS
LBS

LBS

LBS



TfL (Mayor's
Air Quality
Fund)

LBS











TfL

LBS

Short

Funding
Source

Action
Owner

Create a cycling culture by promoting cycling to a wider range of people

Ref

Objective 5



Medium

Timeframe
Long

Page 109
Agenda Item 7

Cycling Strategy

35

36
Action

Set-up internal Cycling Advisory Group to identify
opportunities for collaborative working, particularly
between transport and pollution control (air quality),
and public health.
Engage with external stakeholders (eg. Get Sutton
Cycling/London Cycling Campaign CTC / Cyclism to
identify how a more collaborative approach to cycling
projects could be achieved. This will include a
commitment to meet at least quarterly.
Commission a comprehensive residents' travel survey
with a focus on cycling to ascertain current cycling
levels and propensity to cycle

Item

Improve working with internal
stakeholders

Working with external
stakeholders

Commission a travel survey

06.1

06.2

06.3

Funding
Source
LBS

LBS

LBS

Action
Owner
LBS

Cycling Strategy

LBS, with
support of
external
stakeholders
LBS







Short

Medium

Timeframe

Actively promote cycling within the Council's Sustainable Transport Strategy

Ref

Objective 6

Long

Agenda Item 7

Page 110

Page 111

Agenda Item 7

Glossary
DCLG

Department for Communities and Local Government

DfT

Department for Transport

GLA

Grater London Authority

LBS

London Borough of Sutton

TfL

Transport for London

LCDS

London Cycling Design Standards

CLoS

Cycling Level of Service

CPS

Core Planning Strategy

LIP

Local Implementation Plan

STS

Sustainable Transport Strategy

MTS

Mayor’s Transport Strategy

LCN

London Cycle Network

CIL

Community Infrastructure Levy

SUD

Safer Urban Driving

HGV

Heavy Goods Vehicle

TLRN

Transport for London Road Network

Cycling Strategy

37

Agenda Item 7

Page 112

Eleanor Purser Executive Head
Environment, Housing and Regeneration
Strategic Planning
London Borough of Sutton
24 Denmark Road
Carshalton SM5 2JG
November 2015
Produced with the assistance of Steer Davies Cleave Consultants
Printed on recycled paper - this paper can be recycled

Page 113

Agenda Item 7

APPENDIX F – CYCLING STRATEGY INTEGRATED
IMPACT ASSESSMENT
SECTION 1: AIMS AND DEMOGRAPHICS
A. IS THIS A NEW POLICY OR A REVIEW OF AN EXISTING POLICY OR SERVICE?

It is a new strategy which brings together existing cycling policies and sets out a new
approach and direction.

B. WHAT ARE THE AIMS AND PURPOSE OF THIS PROPOSAL?

The aim is to meet the Council’s targets to increase levels by improving cycling infrastructure
and provision, and promoting cycling to a wider range of people.
C. WHICH OF THE GEOGRAPHIC AREAS DOES THIS PROPOSAL AFFECT?

All of borough

SECTION 2: EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY
A. WHICH STAKEHOLDER GROUP OR GROUPS DOES THIS PROPOSAL AFFECT? (E.G. STAFF AT

LBS, RESIDENTS, THIRD AND VOLUNTARY SECTOR)

All borough residents, employees, visitors and staff

B. WHOSE NEEDS IS THE PROPOSAL DESIGNED TO MEET?

All borough residents, employees, visitors and staff

C. WHAT EVIDENCE HAS BEEN COLLECTED TO INFORM THIS PROPOSAL?

Data on a number of transport indicators has been collected. Residents’ views have also
been collected through a questionnaire-based consultation.

D. WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED INFORMATION, FOR EXAMPLE THROUGH CONSULTATION WITH
STAKEHOLDERS, HAS BEEN GATHERED ON THIS PROPOSAL?

VERSION JUNE 2014

Agenda Item 7

Page 114

(Indicate the type of information gathered and ensure you address ethnicity, disability,
gender, age, religion and sexual orientation. You can also include people with caring
responsibilities. Attach a summary or refer to where the evidence is held.)
The questionnaire included a question about the age and gender of respondents. This
data is available in the consultation summary report. The strategy addresses the
needs of the disabled. Data on ethnicity, religion and sexual orientation was not
considered relevant to this Strategy.
E. IN WHAT WAYS MIGHT THE PROPOSAL IMPACT POSITIVELY OR NEGATIVELY ON SOME GROUPS
OF PEOPLE?

Ethnicity – no impact.
Disability – positive impact - the Strategy will consider the needs of disabled cyclists.
Gender – positive impact – the Strategy will consider the needs of all genders of cyclists.
Age – positive impact – the Strategy will consider the needs of all ages of cyclists, particularly
focussing on younger and older people.
Religion – no impact.
Sexual orientation – no impact.

F. WHAT WILL BE DONE TO PROMOTE EQUALITY OF OPPORTUNITY AS PART OF THIS PROPOSAL?

The Strategy seeks to improve the accessibility and attractiveness of cycling as a low cost
mode of transport which will assist in promoting equality of opportunity for all.

SECTION 3: HEALTH AND WELL BEING
Please note: Data from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment can be used to fill in this section
of the form, which can be accessed here: http://www.suttonjsna.org.uk/
A. IN WHAT WAY COULD THIS PROPOSAL POSITIVELY OR NEGATIVELY IMPACT ON THE PHYSICAL
AND/OR MENTAL WELLBEING OF RESIDENTS? IF THERE IS A NEGATIVE IMPACT WHAT ACTION
WILL BE TAKEN TO MITIGATE THIS? WHAT EVIDENCE HAS BEEN OR WILL BE COLLECTED?

The Strategy is intended to have a positive impact on physical health through encouraging
more cycling as an active and healthy mode of transport. Cycling can also have a positive
impact on mental health. The percentage of trips made by cycling will be monitored.
The Strategy should also lead to an improvement in air quality through the reduction of
vehicle related emissions, and a reduction in noise levels from motor vehicles which can have
a negative impact on mental health.

B. IN WHAT WAY COULD THIS PROPOSAL HAVE A POSITIVE OR NEGATIVE IMPACT ON AN
INDIVIDUAL’S OPPORTUNITY TO IMPROVE THEIR OWN HEALTH AND WELLBEING? IF THERE IS A
NEGATIVE IMPACT WHAT ACTION WILL BE TAKEN TO MITIGATE THIS? WHAT EVIDENCE HAS OR
WILL BE COLLECTED?

VERSION JUNE 2014

Page 115

Agenda Item 7

As above.

C. IN

WHAT WAY COULD THIS PROPOSAL POSITIVELY OR NEGATIVELY IMPACT
DISPROPORTIONALLY ON THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING OF ONE OR MORE DIFFERENT
COMMUNITIES? IF THERE IS A NEGATIVE IMPACT WHAT ACTION WILL BE TAKEN TO MITIGATE
THIS?

There should be a positive impact on the health and well-being of all communities if the
Strategy is successful in meeting its targets to increase cycling levels and encourage a wider
range of people to cycle.

SECTION 4: LOCAL ECONOMY
IS THIS SECTION RELEVANT TO YOUR PROPOSAL? (CIRCLE)

YES

A. WILL THIS PROPOSAL AFFECT THE LOCAL JOB MARKET, LOCAL BUSINESS OR LOCAL INWARD
INVESTMENT TO THE BOROUGH?
Improvements to cycling facilities and the environment, and a reduction in traffic congestion,
should make the borough more attractive to business and inward investment and improve
access to employment. Encouraging cycling can help support the local economy by
encouraging and facilitating short journeys to local shops and services.

B. DOES THIS PROPOSAL IMPACT UPON EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR RESIDENTS IN
SUTTON?
As above – there should be a positive impact.

C. DOES THIS PROPOSAL PROVIDE OPPORTUNITIES FOR THE THIRD SECTOR ORGANISATIONS AND
OR LOCAL BUSINESSES IN SUTTON?

Not directly.

VERSION JUNE 2014

Agenda Item 7

Page 116

SECTION 5: SUSTAINABILITY
IS THIS SECTION RELEVANT TO YOUR PROPOSAL? (CIRCLE)

YES

A. IS THIS PROPOSAL SUSTAINABLE MEDIUM OR LONG TERM FOR IMPROVING SERVICES IN
SUTTON?
Yes - the over-riding aim of the strategy is to make the borough’s transport system more
sustainable.
B. IS THIS PROPOSAL A COST – EFFECTIVE USE OF RESOURCES?

Yes. A large proportion of the work to implement the Strategy will be carried out by existing
staff. Investment in cycling provides good value for money.
.
C. IF APPLICABLE; DOES THIS PROPOSAL HAVE ANY IMPACT ON THE ENVIRONMENT AND ONE
PLANET LIVING PRINCIPLES IN SUTTON?
Yes – it encourages carbon neutral modes of transport and seeks to improve air quality.
The objectives and targets in the Strategy are consistent with the One Planet Living Strategy.

SECTION 6: ACTIONS AND PUBLICATION
A. PLEASE RATE THE OVERALL IMPACT IDENTIFIED THROUGH THIS ASSESSMENT WITH THE LEVEL
OF ACTION THAT NEEDS TO BE TAKEN (DELETE AS APPROPRIATE):

1. No major change required (when the assessment has not identified any potential for
discrimination or adverse impact and all opportunities to advance equality have been
taken.)

B. WHAT ACTIONS ARE GOING TO BE TAKEN AS A RESULT OF THIS IIA TO ADDRESS NEGATIVE
IMPACTS OR PREVIOUSLY MET UNIDENTIFIED NEEDS?

No negative impacts identified.

C. WHAT DATA MONITORING OR EVALUATION ACTIVITY HAS BEEN PUT INTO PLACE TO MONITOR
THE IMPACT OF THIS PROPOSAL?

VERSION JUNE 2014

Page 117

Agenda Item 7

Data will be gathered, monitored and reported on annually in order to assess progress
towards meeting the targets.

D. SIGN- OFF

(Your completed IIA must be signed off by a Head of Service)

VERSION JUNE 2014

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 119

Agenda Item 8

Report to:

Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee

Report title:

Development and Extension of Russettings

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director, Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough-wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Councillor Jill Whitehead

Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:

Date: 26 November 2015

Annette Madden, Executive Head of Business Services 020 8770 6412
Virginia Morris, Registration Services Manager 020 8770 6750


A Smart Council

Open

Signed:

Date:

16 November 2015

1.

Summary

1.1

This report provides details of proposed options for the future of Russettings, the Councils
Register Office.

2.

Recommendations

That the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee:
2.1

Approves the option to build an extension to increase capacity to allow a 100 seater
marriage/conference room which will bring in additional revenue to the Council.

3.

Background

3.1

Sutton Register Office offers a range of additional discretionary services such as the nationality
checking service, a better standard of marriages (de commissioned marriage rooms) and non
statutory ceremonies. Although Sutton have a statutory marriage room (this is a statutory
requirement and must be provided) which has a fixed charge of £46, the Council could
significantly increase revenue if larger upgraded marriage ceremonies and function rooms were
offered for internal and external meetings, conferences and training events.

4.

Issues

4.1

The largest marriage room at Russettings currently offers a maximum seating capacity of 27
guests. To attract larger wedding parties and ultimately more visitors (and therefore more

Agenda Item 8

Page 120

income) the Council would need a ceremony room which seats 100 guests. Alterations to the
internal layout could provide another ceremony room seating up to 35 guests and have the
added benefit of the main reception at the front of the house. The large ceremony room would
have bi- folding doors to the garden providing additional options for functions and concealed IT
equipment fitted during the build to provide for capacity for conference and meeting facilities.
4.2

Russettings will primarily be used as a wedding venue. The use of the venue for conferences
and events would dovetail with marriages to ensure full use of the facilities. This central venue
would provide Sutton with a showcase setting to host partner and business events, award
ceremonies, public/committee meetings etc.

5.

Options Considered
Option 1 – Extension and development of Russettings

5.1

This option looks at the provision of a ceremony room seating up to 100 guests and one which
would provide a competitive alternative to marriages in venues out of the Borough. Currently
Sutton has only two licensed venues which can accommodate parties of more than 60 guests,
The Grange and the Holiday Inn which means larges parties must go out of Borough. In Merton
which is a borough of similar population, twice as many ceremonies are held in their
decommissioned marriage rooms at Morden Park house. The capacity of their rooms is 6, 30,
40 and 100.

5.2

The cost benefit analysis in Appendix A shows the potential additional revenue for ceremonies,
new revenue for conferences and meetings and also savings which could be achieved by not
having to book meetings from outside the authority’s meeting room stock. This is estimated to
be £117k per annum. It is considered that there is demand for a larger capacity room as there
are always enquiries about this and effectively the service has to turn away business and for
potential clients to go to Merton or other neighbouring boroughs that do have the capacity.
There is nothing that serves local Sutton residents and this is also a growing population.
Investment in the venue together with opening up the garden (for private and exclusive use) will
mean that this will be unique in the area and therefore a premium could be charged for this. The
income projections also do not include potential revenue from other aspects such as catering,
flowers or music.

5.3

Located 10 minutes walk from Civic and even closer to main transport hubs, Russettings is
ideally placed to attract groups for celebratory and corporate events. The building plans provide
for easy access to the secluded garden via bi folding doors which will provide a unique
experience and the next best thing to an outdoor ceremony which is currently not permitted by
law.

5.4

The building works are expected to take a maximum of 55 weeks from instruction to completion
and will need to be carefully planned around activity at Russettings to avoid any disruptions to
services.

Page 121

Agenda Item 8

Option 2 – Do nothing
5.5

The service could continue as is however, there are savings attributed to the service of £61,400
that need to be achieved by 2017/18. It is unlikely these savings can be made through
efficiencies or keeping the current operation as it is. Also neighbouring boroughs Kingston and
Merton are improving their facilities which will impact on our ability to be competitive and
maintain market share for fee paying services.
Option 3 – Sale of Russettings

5.6

The Council could put forward a proposal to sell 25 Worcester Road with an estimated disposal
value of between £900,000 and £1,100,000. The impact of this would be a requirement to locate
the statutory services at another LBS building close to Sutton centre and transport links, such as
the Civic Offices. This option would inevitably reduce income revenue from marriage and other
ceremonies unless the facilities and aesthetics of the new locality were of an appropriate
standard.

5.7

The current running costs of the service are as follows:
Running Costs (annual budget)

£405,000

Less Income achieved

£367,000

Net direct running cost

£38,000

Central support cost

£67,000

Net running cost
5.8

£105,000

The net saving of having no service at all would be £38k pa as per the above table. However,
the authority is required by law to provide for statutory marriages (which has a fixed charge of
£46) and the registration of births, deaths and stillbirths, which has to be provided without
charge. If the service were moved out of Russettings (say to the Civic offices) it is unlikely much
income would be generated from marriages or ceremonies due to the venue and there would
still be a requirement for staff to perform the registration of births (3,200), deaths (1,600) and
stillbirths (20) at no charge. We estimate the annual running costs to be £190k including income
but excluding support costs. It would therefore actually increase our net running costs if we
moved the service to the Civic offices. There was a previous discussion with Merton a couple of
years ago about a shared service using just their venue, but eventually Merton decided they
didn’t want to progress this as an option.
Recommended Option

5.9

Option 1 would provide the facilities which would enable the business to build on its success
even though it has a limited capacity. It is already a well established business with a sound
financial history and an annual footfall of approximately 18,000. The offer would provide a
unique experience that would suit a wider clientele who require improved and larger facilities for

Agenda Item 8

Page 122

ceremonies and other events, but who still wish to have a traditional and dignified setting for
special events.
6.

6.1

Impacts and Implications
Financial
Capital costs for the project are £405k for the building work and £10k for ICT equipment and a
marketing launch for the new facilities. The project estimates additional revenue of £87,260
annually through the hiring of the 100 seater ceremony /conference room. In 2014/15 Sutton
spent £78k on booking costs for the Holiday Inn, Strawberry Lodge and The Salvation Army
Hall. Therefore in addition to the increased revenue, an estimated minimum saving of £30k has
been included by reducing the booking of external venues. The service will also be restructured
to enable the Council to contain additional activity resulting from the new facilities within existing
staffing costs.

6.2

A capital bid has already been approved for the 2016/17 capital programme of £270k for
building works to Russettings (Corporate Operational Buildings reference: R152). The balance
of £145k is proposed to be funded from the invest to save reserve.

6.3

There are risks in terms of whether the income will materialise through lack of demand or
through the proposed pricing levels and structure. The experience of the service in having to
turn down a large number of enquiries and the significant Sutton population is a judgement that
leads to suggesting there will be the demand. The income / savings estimates are not
considered to be overly optimistic with the forecasts still being projected to be well below that
which Merton is achieving at the moment. In the past month Sutton has completed the legal
paperwork for 45 marriages of which 31 are taking place outside the borough. The amount of
£10k for ICT and marketing will be used to launch the facilities. The ongoing ceremonial
marketing will largely be self funding through the hosting of regular wedding fayres.
Legal
Option 1 – Extension and development of Russettings

6.4

The fee for a Register Office Ceremony is set by Central Government and cannot be varied
locally. This fee is currently £46 and does not cover the full cost of providing a ceremony.

6.5

The Council is only entitled to set fair and reasonable charges to recover the costs for providing
an enhanced ceremony. The extension and development of the property is likely to require
planning permission and building regulation approval from the local planning authority. The
Council should make its application and secure the necessary consents prior to carrying out any
work to the property.

6.6

In addition there may be other specific legal implications for the property. Issues such as
(without limitation) covenants on title, easements burdening the land and rights of third parties,
may complicate or prohibit any development. Such issues will need to be identified as a result of
a detailed analysis of the title deeds and documents prior to carrying out any works to the
property.

Page 123

6.7

Agenda Item 8

Whilst the works are being carried out the Council must continue to provide a Register Office
where ceremonies can still be offered at the statutory fee
Option 2 – Do nothing

6.8

No legal implications.
Option 3 – Sale of Russettings

6.9

Should the Council dispose of the property, under section 123 of the Local Government Act
1972 the Council has the power to dispose of land or property in any manner it wishes.

6.10 Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires the Council not to dispose of land or
property for a consideration less than the best that can be reasonably be obtained, unless the
Secretary of State consents to the disposal.
6.11 There may be specific legal implications for the property. Issues such as (without limitation)
covenants on title, easements burdening the land and rights of third parties, may complicate or
prohibit any sale. Such issues will need to be identified as a result of a detailed analysis of the
title deeds and documents prior to selling the property.
6.12 Should the Council dispose of the property, the Council must continue to provide a Register
Office where ceremonies can still be offered at the statutory fee. This room must be able to
accommodate, as a minimum, the Superintendent Registrar, the Registrar, the couple and 2
witnesses.
Other
6.13 A Travel Assessment will be completed as part of the project to ensure parking considerations
are taken into account. Russettings is within a 5 minute walk from Sutton Station therefore
providing excellent transport links which users will be encouraged to use. There are currently 12
parking spaces in the grounds of Russettings. Orchard Hill use two of these during the week but
they are available for public use at weekends. Worcester Road has a CPZ with 48 parking bays
for public use. There would be an additional cost to make any changes to the number of
available bays. However the register office is situated near the end of the CPZ so access is
available to free parking within easy walking distance. Parking considerations will also form part
of the planning application process. A survey of guests attending the five weddings on Saturday
31 October indicated that the average car occupancy was 3.5 persons. Anecdotal evidence and
observation suggests that full car occupancy is common at celebratory events where one
person from a group will be the nominated driver.
Integrated Impact Assessment
6.14 Extending Russettings will provide an improved venue that will benefit the residents of Sutton.
As mentioned above, a Travel Assessment will also be completed to ensure minimum
disruption.

Agenda Item 8

7.

Page 124

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
A

Title
Cost Benefit Analysis

Background Documents
Russettings Business Case
Order of Costs estimate

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal

Date: 12 November 2015

Comments Sought
Yes
Yes

Comments checked by
Sue Hogg
Rowenna Warburton

Page 125

Agenda Item 8

APPENDIX A
Cost Benefit Analysis
The cost benefit analysis estimates the minimum potential income if the building was developed. The
mix of conferences and ceremonies would enable maximum use of this new facility as larger
ceremonies are traditionally held at weekends and conferences/training events during the week.
Ceremony Income Analysis
Current rooms available

Charge

1x 6 seater room

£75 Mon-Fri £125 Sat £380 Sun

1 x 30 seater room

£140 Mon-Fri £150 Sat £380 Sun

1 x 40 seater room

£185 Mon-Fri £205 Sat £380 Sunday

1x 100 seater room

£360 Mon-Fri £380 Sat £480 Sunday

Sutton

1 x 10 seater room
1 x 27 seater room

£85 Mon-Fri £150 Sat
£135 Mon-Fri £150 Sat
Both rooms Sunday £330

Kingston

2 x 100 seater rooms (new location for
registration services opening mid
October.

£164 Mon -Thurs
£189 Friday
£224 Sat
No prices available for Sun

Wandsworth

1x 25 seater room

£100 Mon-Fri
£135 Sat
N/A Sun

1x 50 seater room

£150 Mon-Fri
£195 Sat
£220 Sun

Merton

Comparisons with Merton Register Office who have a room of similar capacity to this proposal
indicates a significant return on a larger room. See chart below. In the comparison it should be noted
that although Merton have three smaller rooms only one ceremony is held at a given time. The
number of rooms provide greater customer choice but no increased income.
The proposal would provide two rooms in Sutton with a capacity of 40 and 100.

Page 126

Agenda Item 8

Comparison between Merton and Sutton Room usage
450
400

387

350

No. Weddings

300

260

250

212
Merton

200

Sutton
150
100
50

0
0
Up to 40

Up to 100
Room Capacity

Comparison of the smaller room data between Merton and Sutton suggests that an indicative figure
for the larger room take up would be approximately 144 additional ceremonies.
In 2014/15 Merton held 212 ceremonies in their larger rooms seating 40 or more guests
and 387 ceremonies were held in their smaller rooms. In 2014/15 Sutton held 260 ceremonies in their
rooms which equate to the size of Merton’s smaller rooms (67%of Merton’s total).
Analysing the percentages of the smaller room business it could be expected that 67% of the larger
room business would provide approximately 142 additional ceremonies.
The Sutton Ceremony revenue calculations are based on one wedding a day but it is possible that
there could be more than one held. It should be noted that exclusive garden use is an optional extra
which is costed according to time. (The additional time allocated preventing another ceremony taking
place). However the room would also be offered without exclusive garden use giving the customer a
choice. Fees payable without exclusive garden use being Friday £380 Saturday £420 and Sunday
£450. Comparison of costs between venues is very difficult - e.g. Merton register office shares its
photographic space with people playing football and walking dogs in the park. The facility at
Russettings would provide a more personal and private setting.

Page 127

Agenda Item 8

Sutton Ceremony Revenue
Description

Calculation

Notes

Income Per Year

3 new room
weddings Friday, Saturday,
Sunday, including exclusive
garden for 1 hour reception)
for 20 weeks a year (MaySept)

60 weddings @
£575 per unit =
£34,500

Assuming one
wedding a day
May September

£34,500

3 additional new
room weddings Friday
Saturday, Sunday (without
garden reception) for 28
weeks a year (Oct-April)

28 Friday
weddings @
£380 per unit =
£10,640

Assuming one
wedding a day
October to April

£35,000

28 Saturday
weddings @
£420 per unit =
£11,760
28 Sunday
weddings @
£450 per unit =
£12,600
TOTAL Weddings

144 additional
weddings per
year

Additional
revenue from
food and drink
is not included

£69,500

Conference Income
Sutton could make considerable savings from using Russettings for internal meetings rather than
external hire. The facility is ideally situated to attract business from outside the borough, due to its
excellent transport links and quiet location. The table below shows the authority’s spend at the top
three external venues over the last 3 years:
Current hire spend by Sutton for top 3 venues
2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

Salvation Army

£14,799

£16,639

£22,661

Holiday Inn

£12,228

£16,381

£10,365

Strawberry Lodge

£23,896

£34,923

£45,202

Total

£50,923

£67,943

£78,228

Page 128

Agenda Item 8

The chart below shows room charges for groups of 100 at the above noted venues. A proposed
charging structure for Russettings which matches the lowest charge has also been included. However
these venues also have a range of other rooms with varying capacities and facilities.
The Salvation Army has 3 rooms available for bookings with capacities of 15, (£110) 25 (£120) and
100 (£165).Strawberry lodge has 4 rooms available with capacities of 20 (£175), 25 (£175), 35 (£175),
100 (£215). Holiday Inn rooms with capacity of 100 (£800) per day or £30 per person.

Cost Comparison of Venue Room Charges
900
800
800
700
600
600
Strawberry Lodge

500

Salvation Army

400

Holiday Inn
300
215
200

165

Proposed charges LBS
Hire

190
130

100

100

100
0
Full day

Half day

Sutton Conference Revenue
Description
2 all day events over 48 weeks Mondays, Tuesdays, Wednesdays
and Thursdays available (2 days
occupied per week) = 96 days (96
bookings per year)

Revenue
2 x 48 = 96
bookings @ £165
for main hall
booking = £15,840
48 hires x £40 for
small room =
£1,920

Notes

Income per year

Room Hire
Only
£17,760

Page 129

Agenda Item 8

Internal bookings amount we could save through not
having to book external venues
(based on a proportion of current
spend)

£30,000

Total

£47,760

Total additional ceremony and conference revenue - £87,260 plus potential room external
booking savings of £30k

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 131

Agenda Item 9

Report to:

Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee

Report title:

Review of Environment, Housing and Regeneration Fees and Charges
for 2016/17

Report from:

Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director of Environment, Housing and
Regeneration

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough-wide

Chair of Committee

Councillor Jill Whitehead

Author /Contact
Number(s):

Matt Clubb, Executive Head of Environment Commissioning
0208 770 6116

Corporate Plan Priorities:

 A Green Council
 A Fair Council
 A Smart Council
Open

Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Date: 26 November 2015

Date:

16 November 2015

1.

Summary

1.1

This report seeks to gain approval following a review of fees and charges for various
Environment, Housing and Regeneration services. The report provides details of the existing
charges and proposed increases for these services.

2.

Recommendations

That the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee:
2.1

Agrees the proposal to increase the charges for Commercial (Trade) Waste, Bulky Waste,
Parks (including Biodiversity), Cemeteries, Highways and Transport, Regulatory Services,
Sports and Leisure Management, Registration Service and Libraries.

3.

Background

3.1

The Environment, Housing and Regeneration Directorate review the charges applied to its
services on an annual basis. New charges are implemented in April of the following year. The
services covered within this annual review are Commercial (Trade) Waste, Bulky Waste, Parks,
(including Biodiversity), Cemeteries, Highways and Transport, Regulatory Services, Sports and
Leisure Management, Registration Service and Libraries.

Page 132

Agenda Item 9

3.2

Councils have had significant reductions in their funding from government grants. At the same
time the Council has faced increasing demand for services due to demographic pressures and
the consequences of other national government policies such as welfare reform. The London
Borough of Sutton is no different from other Councils. The Council faces further funding and
grant reductions from national government over the medium term with a funding gap of £31m
projected by 2018/19.

4.

Issues

4.1

Given these financial challenges, a review of all Environment, Housing and Regeneration fees
and charges has been conducted. The main aim of this review was to:
1. Ensure that all costs associated with the provision of services are fully recovered
2. Ensure any known increases in contract costs, inflation and other costs are recovered
from service users
3. Address the base income budget position for individual services.

4.2

The following services have inflated their fees and charges by an average of 2% which is in line
with the predicted levels of inflation.
o
o
o

Regulatory services
Highways & Transport
Parks and Cemeteries

The following services are proposing charges either below or above inflation; the rationale for
changes is listed in the sections below.
4.3

Bulky Waste including fridges (Appendix 1)
The charges in this area have not been increased for a number of years. It is therefore
proposed to increase these charges from £25 to £30 for the first three items and from £5 to £6
for any subsequent items. This increase will allow The Vine Project to cover the costs
associated with collecting these items.

4.4

Commercial (Trade) Waste (Appendix 2)
An increase in charges for this service is not proposed. These charges are currently above
market rate. Any further increases are likely to result in the cancellation of contracts and will
restrict the ability of the service to meet income targets for 2016/17.

4.5

4.6

Registration Services (Appendix 3)
The fees and charges in this area have been increased between 4% and 8%. It is anticipated
that the additional income from these changes will equate to between an additional £8,000
based on current demand and support the achievement of current income targets.
Sports & Leisure Management (Appendix 4)
Sports and Leisure Management (SLM) operate and manage Westcroft, Cheam, David Weir
and Phoenix Leisure Centres on behalf of the council and are able to increase core prices in line
with CPI. While there are some variations to this the overall average increase in prices is
1.89%.

Page 133

4.7

4.8

4.9

5

Agenda Item 9

Biodiversity (Appendix 5)
A review of the biodiversity charges has been conducted in order to achieve cost recovery of the
service. This review has resulted in changes to holiday activities with sessions for 4-7 year olds
increasing from £3.70 to £6.00 as well as the removal of services due no bookings being made
in the past 2 years and therefore no longer required. There is no capacity within the current
service to increase the number of bookings therefore an increase in the charge is the only way
to increase revenue. The estimated income generation from undertaking these increases in
price and estimating for a drop in bookings, is in the region of £10,000 above that estimated for
15/16. This will enable the service recover its costs.
Life Centre (Appendix 6)
The fees and charges in this area have been amended to reflect competitor and market rates.
This has a resulted in a decrease on pricing for room bookings of between 20-30% as well as
an increase of up to 4% for other activities. It is anticipated that the additional income from these
changes will equate to between an additional £4k and £6k increase and support the
achievement of current income targets.
Library Service (Appendix 7)
An increase in charges for this service is not proposed. Many are already above market rate,
such as public photocopying, and further increases will restrict the ability of the service to meet
income targets for 2016/17.
Options Considered

5.1

An annual review was carried out across all services and has resulted in proposed increases of
varying amounts to individual services. In reviewing these charges the options considered was
to 1) not increase charges 2) increase by inflation only and 3) increase above inflation.

6

Impacts and Implications

6.1

Financial
The above inflationary increases arising from this proposal (which assumes no drop-off in
service uptake) will contribute just over £22k. This will ensure the 2016/17 fees income budget
recovers some of the unachieved 2015/16 budgeted income.

6.2

Legal
The Environment, Housing and Regeneration Directorate have reviewed its charges against
relevant legislation to ensure that any fees and charges remain compliant with the relevant
statutes governing Local Authority activities.

Agenda Item 9

7

Page 134

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix
1

Title
Bulky Waste – Proposed 2016/17

2

Commercial Waste – Proposed 2016/17

3

Registration Services – Proposed 2016/17

4

Sports & Leisure Management – Proposed 2016/17

5

Bio-Diversity – Proposed 2016/17

6

Life Centre – Proposed 2016/17

7

Library Service – Proposed 2016/17

Background Documents
None.

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal

Date: 16 November 2015

Comments Sought
Yes
Yes

Comments checked by
Akin Akintola
Claire Williams

Page 135
Bulky Waste
Service

Agenda Item 9

Appendix 1
Current (2015/16)

Proposed
(2016/17)

£25
£5

£30
£6

£20

£25

Bulky Waste
First 3 items
Additional item

Fridges
Per item

Page 136

Agenda Item 9

Trade Waste
Service

Appendix 2
Current
(2015/16)

Proposed
(2016/17)

£36.00
£34.00
£32.00
£28.00
£24.00
£16.00
£6.00
£3.10

£36.00
£34.00
£32.00
£28.00
£24.00
£16.00
£6.00
£3.10

£27.00
£25.00
£24.00
£21.00
£18.00
£13.00
£5.00
£3.00

£27.00
£25.00
£24.00
£21.00
£18.00
£13.00
£5.00
£3.00

£13.50
£13.00
£11.50
£11.00
£9.00
£6.00
£2.00

£13.50
£13.00
£11.50
£11.00
£9.00
£6.00
£2.00

£13.50
£13.00
£11.50
£11.00
£9.00
£6.00
£2.00

£13.50
£13.00
£11.50
£11.00
£9.00
£6.00
£2.00

£4.60
£4.60
£4.60
£4.60

£4.60
£4.60
£4.60
£4.60

£13.50
£13.00
£11.50
£11.00
£9.00
£6.00
£2.00
£2.00

£13.50
£13.00
£11.50
£11.00
£9.00
£6.00
£2.00
£2.00

Trade Heavy
1280 Euro
1100 Euro
940 Cham/Pal
660 Euro
360 Wheelie Bin
240 Wheelie Bin
Blue Sacks 52 litre
Blue Sacks 26 Litre

Trade Light
1280 Euro
1100 Euro
940 Cham/Pal
660 Euro
360 Wheelie Bin
240 Wheelie Bin
Blue Sacks 52 litre
Blue Sacks 26 Litre

Collection Only
1280 Euro
1100 Euro
940 Cham/Pal
660 Euro
360 Wheelie Bin
240 Wheelie Bin
Blue Sacks 52 litre

Charities
1280 Euro
1100 Euro
940 Cham/Pal
660 Euro
360 Wheelie Bin
240 Wheelie Bin
Blue Sacks 52 litre

Domestic (Hire Only)
1280 Euro
1100 Euro
940 Cham/Pal
660 Euro

Recycling
1280 Euro
1100 Euro
940 Cham/Pal
660 Euro
360 Wheelie Bin
240 Wheelie Bin
Blue Sacks 52 litre
Blue Sacks 26 Litre

Page 137
Registration Service
Service

Agenda Item 9

Appendix 3
Current (2015/16)

Proposed
(2016/17)

Nationality Checking Service
Adult
Child

£55
£40

£60
£45

Marriage Service (Outside Venue)
Mon-Thurs
Fri
Sat
Sun/Bank Holiday

£260
£260
£330
£380

£275
£275
£350
£395

Marriage Service (In House - Non Statutory Rooms)
Mon-Thurs --In house
Fri -In House
Sat –In house
Sun –In house

£85 - £150
£85 - £150
£175
£330

£90-£160
£90-£160
£190
£350

Baby Naming/Renewal of Vows (Outside Venue)
Mon-Thurs
£260
£275
Fri
£260
£275
Sat
£330
£350
Sun/BH O/V
£380
£395
Baby Naming/Renewal of Vows (In house - Non Statutory Rooms)
Mon-Thurs
Fri
Sat
Sun/BH O/V

£150
£150
£175
£330

£160
£160
£190
£350

Agenda Item 9

Page 138

Leisure

Appendix 4
Service

Actual Charges
(2015/16)

Proposed Charges
(2016/17)

£11.65
£33.00
£54.00
£11.65

£12.50
£35.00
£53.50
£12.50

£30.80
£13.30

£32.00
£13.50

£13.20
£42.95
£429.50
£30.60
£306.00
£40.00
£20.00
£20.00

£13.20
£42.95
£429.50
£30.60
£306.00
£40.00
£20.00
£20.00

£3.20
£2.50

£1.60
£1.60

£3.00
£2.40

£3.05
£2.45

£3.40
£2.45
£1.00
£1.00
£2.45

£3.45
£2.50
£1.00
£1.00
£2.50

£5.10
£4.30
£5.85
£5.65

£5.20
£4.40
£5.95
£5.75

£5.65
£5.10

£5.75
£5.10

£6.80
£4.40
£12.20
£8.70
£6.80
£4.45
£12.20
£8.70

£6.90
£4.50
£12.50
£8.70
£7.00
£4.60
£12.50
£8.80

Pay & Play
Junior in borough
Adult in borough
Adult out of borough
Club / concessionary

Inductions
Adult - Basic
Adult - Concessionary

Pre Paid
Junior DD
Adult DD
Adult Annual
Adult Concess DD
Adult Annual Concess
Joining Fee
Junior Joining Fee
Concessionary Joining fee

Creche
P&P #
P&P Concessionary ##

Play World
P&P
P&P Concessionary

Swimming
Adult P&P
Adult P&P concession
Junior P&P
Junior P&P concession
60+ Resident

Fitness Room
Adult P&P O/P
Adult P&P O/P Conc
Adult P&P Peak
Adult P&P Peak Conc

Group Exercise
Adult P&P
Adult P&P Conc

Racquets - Badminton
Junior P&P O/P
Junior P&P O/P Conc.
Junior P&P Peak
Junior P&P Peak Conc.
Adult P&P O/P
Adult P&P O/P Conc
Adult P&P Peak
Adult P&P Peak Conc

Page 139

Agenda Item 9

Biodiversity

Appendix 5
Service

Actual Charges
Proposed
(2015/16)
Charges (2016/17)

Teaching sessions at Ecology Centre
Up to 15 children 2 hours
Up to 15 children full day
16 – 35 children 2 hours
16 – 35 children full day
DIY sessions 2 hours
Sessions for community groups 1 hour (per
person) (min charge £35)
Teaching Training 2 hours (per person) (min
charge £175)
Visit to Schools
1 hour
Half day
Full day
Teaching sessions at all other nature reserves
Up to 35 children 2 hours
Up to 35 children full day
Holiday Activities
2 hour session 4 -7 yr old (per child)
2 hour session 8 -12 yr old (per child)
Whole day (10. 30 – 3) 8 – 12yr (per child)
Other
Family events (per person)
Guided walks (per person)
Workshops (per person)

£85.00
£150.00
£135.00
£240.00
£55.00
£3.80

£115.00
£180.00
£165.00
£270.00
£85.00
£5.00

£27.00

Delete offer

£55.00
£160.00
£265.00

Delete offer
Delete offer
Delete offer

£110.00
£200.00

£150.00
£230.00

£3.70
£5.25
£12.70 Delete offer
£3.70
£4.50
£15.00

£6.00
£5.50

£6.00
£5.00
£18.00

Page 140

Agenda Item 9
Life Centre
Service

Meeting room (Per Hour)
Meeting room (Half Day)
Meeting room (Full Day)
2 Combined rooms (Per Hour)
2 combined rooms (Half Day)
2 combined rooms (Full Day)
3 rooms (Per Hour)
3 rooms (Half Day)
3 rooms (Full Day)
All rooms (Per Hour)
All rooms (Half Day)
All rooms (Full Day)
Street Area (Per Hour)
Street Area (Half Day)
Street Area F/D
Transport zone (Per Hour)
Media Zone (Per Hour)
Apartment (Per Hour)
Transport zone (Half Day)
Media Zone (Half Day)
Apartment (Half Day)
Transport zone (Full Day)
Media zone (Full Day)
Apartment zone (Full Day)
360 room (Per Hour)
360 room (Half Day)
360 Room (Full Day)
Muga
School Tours (per pupil)
Independent schools
LEA Schools
Sutton LEA

Appendix 6
Actual Charges
(2015/16)
£25.00
£75.00
£100.00
£50.00
£150.00
£200.00
£75.00
£225.00
£300.00
£100.00
£300.00
£400.00
£55.00
£165.00
£250.00
£25.00
£25.00
£25.00
£75.00
£75.00
£75.00
£100.00
£100.00
£100.00
£40.00
£125.00
£185.00
£40.00

Proposed
Charges
(2016/17)
£26.00
Delete offer
£104.00
£40.00
Delete offer
£160.00
£55.00
Delete offer
£220.00
Delete offer
Delete offer
Delete offer
£60.00
Delete offer
£250.00
£26.00
£26.00
£26.00
Delete offer
Delete offer
Delete offer
£104.00
£104.00
£104.00
£41.00
Delete offer
£185.00
£41.00

£9.00
£7.50
£4.50

£9.20
£7.65
£4.60

Page 141

Agenda Item 9

Library Charges
Service

Appendix 7
Actual Fees (2015/16)

Proposed Fees (2016/17)

£0.25 for first week, £0.30 for second week
onwards
£0.10
£6

£0.25 for first week, £0.30 for second
week onwards
£0.10
£6

£5

£5

at cost

at cost

£1.30
£4.00

£1.30
£4.00

£13.00

£13.00

£3.00
£1.00

£3.00
£1.00

£2.00
£3.00

£2.00
£3.00

Overdue items
Books – adult / day
Books – child / day
Maximum overdue charge per
item
Maximum amount in fines before
service withdrawn
British Library books

Reservations
In house
External

British Library Loans
Per Book

Lost Tickets
Adult
Child

Spoken Word
Single CD (Adult/ 3wks)
Set of CD (Adult/ 3wks)

Music CDs & DVDs
Single CD/DVD ( 3wks)
Set of CD/DVD (3wks)
Games – per item per week
PC hire – per hour

£2.00
£2.00
£3.00
£3.00
Not hired now
Not hired now
£1.00 per hr after the first hour. Free for
£1.00 per hr after the first hour. Free
children under 16, full time students, customers
for children under 16, full time
in receipt of income or pension benefits,
students, customers in receipt of
unemployed customers
income or pension benefits,
unemployed customers

Printing
Per page (B&W)
Per page (colour)

£0.20
£1.20

£0.20
£1.20

£0.00
£0.00
2nd class + £0.50

£0.00
£0.00
2nd class + £0.50

Notifications
SMS
Email
Post

Europa Gallery Hire Per day Non Commercial Groups
SCOLA side entrance (1)
SCOLA side ‘C’ shape (2)
Central area 4 corners (3)
Holiday Inn side (4)
Stall hire

£18
£30
£80
£18
Per day – non commercial - £20.00
Commercial - £45

£18.00
£30.00
£80.00
£18.00
Per day – non commercial - £20.00
Commercial - £45
£0.00

Europa Gallery Hire Per Week Non Commercial groups
SCOLA side entrance (1)
SCOLA side ‘C’ shape (2)
Central area 4 corners (3)
Holiday Inn side (4)
Whole Gallery (5)
Stall hire

£70
£115
£200
£70
£320
Per week – non-commercial £80
Commercial £180

£70.00
£115.00
£200.00
£70.00
£320.00
Per week – non-commercial £80
Commercial £180

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 143

Agenda Item 10

Report to:

Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee

Report title:

Review of Waste and Recycling Policies

Report from:

Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director of Environment Housing and
Regeneration

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough-wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Councillor Jill Whitehead

Corporate Plan Priorities:

Open/Exempt:

Date: 26 November 2015

Josie Falco - Head of Recycling and Waste
0208 770 6885




A Green Council
A Smart Council
A Fair Council

Open

Signed:

Date:

12 November 2015

1.

Summary

1.1

Following an efficiency review undertaken by the London Waste and Recycling Board (LWARB)
of the service, a review of the existing waste and recycling policies has been carried out.
LWARB recommended that the development and application of revised policies would lead to
efficiencies in the service, potential savings and contribute to elevating material up the waste
hierarchy. This report details the outcome of the review, the benefits of adopting revised policies
and seeks approval for the introduction of an amended suite of policies.

2.

Recommendations

That the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee:
2.1

Approve the waste and recycling policies 2016 listed at 4.4 of this report and detailed in
Appendix A from April 2016.

3.

Background

3.1

The London Borough of Sutton last reviewed its waste and recycling policies in 2008. Since this
time changes to collection services have occurred.

3.2

LWARB, in partnership with London Boroughs, waste authorities and other stakeholders has an
Efficiencies Review Fund (ERF) specifically developed to assist in identifying where efficiencies

Agenda Item 10

Page 144

can be made in waste and recycling services. In 2014, Sutton was awarded support to review
its waste and recycling service.
4.

Issues

4.1

The scope of work for the review included the scrutiny of Sutton’s current waste policies and the
efficiency of the collection of material from the kerbside. Comparisons were made to other
London Boroughs to determine whether a refresh of policy measures in Sutton would produce
efficiencies, decrease residual waste and increase recycling performance.

4.2

At present 8% (4,000 properties) of households present more than one brown wheeled bin for
collection. Whilst it is recognised that larger families may require increased residual waste
capacity (which is offered through a larger bin) properties should not have additional containers.
LWARB calculated that these additional bins equate to an additional 100 tonnes of recyclable
materials per year being placed into the residual waste stream, but more significantly it results in
the waste collection service being less efficient.

4.3

4.4

A recent composition analysis of residual waste indicates that in the region of 10,000 tonnes of
recycled material still remains in our residual waste stream. Contamination of the recycling bins
(particularly in communal recycling) remains high with 5% of recycling rejected by our disposal
contractor in 2014/15. In addition, a study published by the Waste and Resources Action
Programme (WRAP) identifies a correlation between high residual capacity and lower recycling
rates.
Sutton’s existing policies require updating to ensure compliance as Health and Safety guidance.
As a result a review of the following policies has been carried out (the proposed policies can be
found at Appendix A) with a summary table of the changes as Appendix B.
Standard Container Policy - This Policy defines the look, number and standard size of the bin(s)
that each household will have for each collection service.
Exemption of Wheeled Bin Policy - This Policy defines the reasons a property would be
exempted from the use of wheeled bins.
Exceptions Policy – This Policy defines exceptions to policies, recognising there may be
circumstances where special arrangements are required.
Contamination Policy - This Policy defines what material can and cannot be placed in each of
the containers provided.
Side Waste Policy - This Policy defines restrictions regarding the collection of side waste and
when is it accepted.
Use of Container Policy - This Policy defines how residents should present their containers for
collection.
Access Policy - This Policy details access issues.
Flats and Communal Property Policy – This Policy details the collection of waste and recycling
from flats and other communal properties.

Page 145

Agenda Item 10

5

Benefits of changes

5.1

These Policies have been amended to reflect the recommendations from LWARB. They ensure
continued compliance with Health and Safety requirements and provide the opportunity to
realise efficiencies within the service.

5.2

In addition, these proposed Policies will assist Sutton to increase its recycling rate and reduce
carbon generated as a result of our waste collection operations. A summary of the benefits can
be found in the policy document.

5.3

The services reviewed are part of the South London Waste Partnership (SLWP) joint
procurement, due for contract commencement in April 2017. Adoption of these policies from
April 2016 will enable efficiencies to be realised prior to contract commencement.

6

Implementation of policies

6.1

The adoption of these Policies from April 2016 will involve changes to the service that residents
receive. To ensure the changes are communicated effectively, it is intended to incorporate
these into the forthcoming recycling campaign and work closely with colleagues in the customer
contact centre about service changes.

7

Options considered

7.1

The service considered retaining its existing Policies; however, this would prevent the
realisation of the benefits identified in Section 5 of this report.

8

Impacts and Implications
Financial

8.1

Financial and environmental benefits will result from the introduction of the recommended
Policies. The level of needs to be quantified, however, we would seek to remove one full
collection round which could deliver in the region of £150,000 saving. This will not result in any
redundancies.
Legal

8.2

The duties and requirements of the local authority as a waste collection and waste disposal
authority are contained in the Environmental Protection Act 1990 and the Waste (England and
Wales) Regulations 2011

8.3

There are no specific legal implications arising from this report
One Planet Sutton

8.4

There are three current One Planet Sutton targets relating to household waste:



Reduce waste from households by 5% (equivalent to 4000 tonnes) by 2017.
Increasing the borough wide recycling rate to 40% in 2017.

Page 146

Agenda Item 10



8.5

Achieving the Mayor of London's Emissions Performance standard in 2017 of -0.154
tonnes of carbon dioxide emissions per tonne of waste managed.

The updated policies will have a positive impact in assisting the Council in achieving all of
these targets through restricting residual waste capacity, which will encourage residents to
waste less and recycle more.
IAA

8.6

An integrated impact assessment has been completed, which identifies that all households will
be affected by the updated recycling and waste policies. The implementation of the updated
policies will mean that all residents have access to the same level of service from the Council.
However, by providing mitigation measures such as offering additional green recycling bins to
those residents whose residual waste capacity is reduced will mean this impact is minor.

8.7

The policy will have a positive impact on those residents that are elderly, have a disability, live in
homes with a lack of space and have large households by ensuring they receive a service that
meets their needs.

9

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
A
B

Title
Recommended Waste & Recycling Policies
Changes to Policies

Background Documents
Waste & Recycling Policies in 2008
WRAP July 2015 Factors influencing Recycling performance
LWARB – Efficiency Review for the London Borough of Sutton (Phase 1)

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal

Date: 12 November 2015

Comments Sought
Yes
Yes

Comments checked by
Akin Akintola
Fiona Thomsen

AgendaAppendix
Item 10 A

Page 147

2015

Recycling & Waste Policies

1 April 2016
4/1/2015

Agenda Item 10

Page 148

Contents

Recycling & Waste Service Charter

3

Summary Table

4

Policy One: Standard Container

5

Policy Two: Exemption of Wheeled Bin

6

Policy Three: Exceptions

7

Policy Four: Contamination

8

Policy Five: Side Waste

9

Policy Six: Use of Container

10

Policy Seven: Access

11

Policy Eight: Flats and Communal Property

12

2

Page 149

Agenda Item 10

Recycling and Waste Service Charter
The London Borough of Sutton is committed to delivering a high quality recycling and waste
collection service.
We will:
o

Provide a recycling and waste service that is value for money

o

Provide a service that helps residents to reduce landfill waste and recycle more

o

Ensure everyone is able to access our services by providing those with specific needs
with a tailored service

o

Collect all correctly presented materials on the stated collection day and return
containers safety to their place they were presented

o

Speak to residents in a polite and respectful manner

o

Ensure that any spillage caused by the crew is cleared up by the end of the working day

o

Respond to resident concerns and inform them about how and when we will resolve
them

o

Ensure that crews advise residents by leaving a card, sticker or bin hanger why their
container was not emptied

o

Advertise any changes to collections well in advance

Our target response times are:
o

Return to collect a missed collection within 2 working days (Monday to Saturday) when it
has been reported within 2 days of being missed

o

To deliver or replace collection receptacles within 20 working days

We expect residents to:
o

Place their recycling and waste containers out on the correct day with the correct material
in them by 6am on collection day

o

Consider where they park their vehicle on collection day; vehicles blocking access make
collections very difficult

o

Contact us if they require help or are unsure which material goes in which container

3

Page 150

Agenda Item 10

Recycling and Waste Policy Summary Table

Standard Container
Policy
Exemption of Wheeled
bin Policy
Exceptions Policy
Contamination Policy
Side Waste Policy
Use of container Policy
Access Policy
Flats & Communal
Collections Policy



















Legal
requireme
nt/Health
& Safety

Equality &
Diversity






Reduced
Residual
Waste

Increased
Recycling

Reduce
Disposal
Cost

Recommended Policy

Efficiency
of Service

The table below summarises the Recycling and Waste Policies and the benefits gained from
their implementation.

4















Page 151

Agenda Item 10

Policy One - Standard Container
The London Borough of Sutton will only empty the official recycling and waste containers
issued by the Council to that individual address for household waste. Details of the standard
containers are below:
Residual Waste Container

Mixed Dry Recycling
Container

Garden Waste (subscription
only) Container:

o

One 140 litre wheeled bin supplied by the Council

o

Brown body with brown lid

o
o

Embossed with the London Borough of Sutton logo
240 litre wheeled bin(s) supplied by the Council

o

Residents can order more than one bin

o

Green body with green lid

o
o

Embossed with the London Borough of Sutton logo
140 or 240 litre wheeled bin(s) supplied by the
Council to subscribers of the garden waste service.

o

Residents can order more than one bin

o

Embossed with the London Borough of Sutton logo

o

Green body with brown lid

Please note that exceptions to this policy are dealt with in Policy Two (Exemption of Wheeled
Bin), Policy Three (Exceptions) and Policy Eight (Flats and Communal Property).
Containers remain the property of the London Borough of Sutton.
We will:
o Levy a charge for the supply and/or replacement of brown (residual waste) wheeled bins
which have been lost, stolen or needed by new developments.
o

Supply a standard sized container to replace any lost, stolen or damaged residual waste
wheeled bins unless there has been a prior agreement for additional capacity

o

Replace the mixed dry recycling and garden waste containers with the same container
that was lost, stolen or damaged

o

Replace containers that have been damaged during the collection process free of charge

o

Advise residents to include wheeled bins on their household insurance.

Residents are responsible for:
o Ensuring containers are only used to store recycling and waste before collection
o Seeking permission from the Council before removing containers from the property to
which they were issued.
o Ensuring that containers are kept safe and secure
Reason for policy:
Non-authorised containers may not conform to BS 840 and there is a risk of them falling off of
the vehicle bin lift during emptying. This would pose a health and safety risk to staff and
members of the public.
5

Agenda Item 10

Page 152
Policy Two - Exemption from Wheeled Bin Policy

All properties within the borough will be deemed suitable for a standard recycling and
residual waste bins as outlined in Policy One (Standard Bin) unless they meet the criteria
below to qualify for an exemption.
A property may be exempt from using a wheeled bin if:
o

The front door opens directly onto the pavement

o

The front garden does not have available space of at least 1m 2 including any space
taken up by plants and landscaping

o

There are more than 2 steps to gain access to the public highway and there is no space
to store it at the boundary of the property

AND ALSO
o

There is no alternative means of bringing the bin to the boundary for collection

o

There is no rear garden suitable for the storage of a bin or access to the property from
an access road or public highway

If the property only has room for the storage of one wheeled bin – the default bin would be a
140 litre brown bin for residual waste.
Recycling and garden waste exemptions:
A property will be exempt from using a wheeled bin for the collection of recycling or garden
waste only if it is already exempt from the use of the residual waste wheeled bin.
Operational exemptions:
In certain circumstances the Council may deem for operational reasons (i.e. Health and
Safety) that a property cannot have a wheeled bin for the storage of their recycling and
residual waste.1
We will:
o
Provide clear sacks for the mixed dry recycling service
o

Provide subscribers of the garden waste service compostable sacks

Residents in exempt properties will be responsible for:
o
Purchasing black sacks for residual waste
o

Presenting their recycling in clear sacks, residual waste in black sacks and garden
waste in compostable waste sacks.

o

Supplying accurate information when requesting an exemption from Policy One
(Standard Bin) policy

Reason for policy:
This policy defines the reasons a property would be exempt from the use of wheeled bins

1lLifting

bins over steps, pulling bins up steep inclines and pulling out over long distances are deemed higher risk
of manual handling injuries and these actions must be risk assessed.

6

Page 153

Agenda Item 10

Policy Three – Exceptions Policy
Special arrangements or changes to the core recycling and waste collection arrangements
will be made available in the circumstances detailed below:
Assisted collections:
Assisted collections will be made available to residents who on assessment are deemed to
be unable to use the core recycling and waste collection service without assistance from the
Council (i.e. collection of the recycling and residual waste containers inside the property
boundary).
Each case will be treated on its own merits. Examples of issues requiring assisted collections
include:
o Disability
o Age
o Illness or infirmity (may require temporary arrangements)
Additional residual waste capacity (Large 240 litre bin or 4 black sacks):
Any applications received for additional capacity will be assessed against the following
criteria:
o The size of the household (must be above 5 people in a household to be entitled to a
larger wheeled bin)
o The household is recycling all materials collected by the council’s recycling service
and is continued to be made during the issue of the additional capacity
o Medical reasons (see information below)
Where additional residual waste capacity is approved and it is later found that a resident is
not fully using the recycling services available, the Council reserves the right to withdraw the
additional capacity.
Medical assistance bins for residual waste:
Additional capacity for residual waste is available for medical reasons.
Each case will be assessed individually around the medical condition of the resident, the
waste that the condition produces and the needs of the resident and what service would best
suit these needs.
Reason for policy:
Ensure everyone is able to access our services by providing those with specific needs with a
tailored service

7

Agenda Item 10

Page 154
Policy Four - Contamination Policy

The Council will only empty recycling and residual waste containers that contain the correct
materials.
Mixed dry recycling service:
Containers used to store mixed dry recycling should not contain any non-recyclable waste,
garden waste, or any materials not listed as acceptable in our recycling collection scheme.
Materials that are suitable for recycling through the Council’s kerbside service can be found
on the Council’s website (www.sutton.gov.uk/recycling).
Residual waste:
Containers used to store residual waste shall only contain those items that cannot be
recycled using the Council’s recycling services or the Household Recycling Centre (including
garden waste). Those materials suitable for recycling can be found on the Council’s website
(www.sutton.gov.uk/wasteandrecycling).
Garden Waste:
Containers used to store garden waste shall only contain garden waste. The list of
acceptable garden waste can be found on the Council website (www.sutton.gov.uk/ggw) or
on the leaflet provided with the garden waste bin
Procedure for contaminated containers:
If any container is found at the point of collection to be contaminated such that its collection
may contaminate the entire load, the collection crew will not empty the container. They will
also leave a sticker, hanger or letter for the residents to advise them of the problem.
If a container is left because of contamination the resident may:
o

Remove the contamination and re-present the uncontaminated container on the next due
collection day

o

Make their own arrangements for the proper and legal disposal of the wheeled bin waste

If a household continually contaminates their recycling container on four occasions or more
the Council reserves the right to remove the recycling container from the property.
Reason for Policy:
This policy defines what can and cannot be presented for collection in each of the containers
provided and the process for managing contaminated bins. An improvement in the materials
placed out for recycling will enable the Council to reach its One Planet Sutton recycling
target.

8

Page 155

Agenda Item 10

Policy Five - Side Waste Policy
Side waste is defined as residual or garden waste put out for collection, which is:
o

Not contained within the standard container issued to the residence for that service

o

Not in line with the Council’s 2 sacks per collection policy for properties exempted from
bins (or 4 for a property exempted and approved for additional capacity)

The process for managing side waste depends on the type of waste is set out below
Residual waste
No side waste will be collected by the residual waste collection service except:
o

At the Council’s discretion following holidays and festivals some side waste may be
accepted (this will be included on the Council’s website with revised collection days)

Should side waste be found next to a brown wheeled bin it will be stickered by the crew at the
time of collection.
Residents that have additional refuse that will not fit into the residual bin can purchase official
blue sacks from the civic offices. A maximum of 2 blue sacks can be presented alongside
their residual waste container and these will be taken on the next scheduled collection day.
Garden waste:
No side waste will be collected for the garden waste collection service
Mixed dry recycling:
Recycling side waste will be accepted alongside the standard recycling container as long as
it is presented in a suitable container such as a clear sack or cardboard box, which allows the
contents to be scrutinised for contaminants.
Reason for policy:
Explanation of what side waste is, when it would be, and when it would not be collected.

9

Agenda Item 10

Page 156
Policy Six - Use of Container Policy

The Council will only collect waste that is presented correctly.
Closed (or smiley) wheeled bin lid:
To ensure that wheeled bins and lids are not damaged during the collection and lifting
process, and to comply with Health and Safety Executive best practice guidelines that lids
should be fully closed.
Where a wheeled bin is presented for collection with an open lid, the crew will take out the
top sack and label it as “side waste”, empty the bin, leave the sack next to the bin and advise
the resident that the bin lid was too open for the bin to be emptied.
Time of collection:
Containers must be presented for collection by 6am on the day of collection and no earlier
than 8pm of the evening before collection day.
Placement of containers for collection:
Residents should:
o Present their containers at the boundary of their property nearest to the Public Highway
(or in another location only with prior agreement given by the Council)
o

Make sure wheeled bin handles are facing outwards

Point of Collection:
Where possible the Council will endeavour to collect from the boundary of properties nearest
to the Public Highway however the Council reserves the right to request an alternative
collection point should any of the following apply:
o There is a danger posed to the crew (e.g. uncontrolled dogs)
o There is a danger posed to the collection vehicle (e.g. overhanging cables or trees)
Bins not presented for collection (Not-Outs):
The Council will not return to empty a container that has been reported by the crew as “notout” or not presented on the boundary of the property for collection. (Not-Outs do not apply
for Assisted Collections).
Missed collections:
The Council will only return to collect missed collections that have been reported within 2
working days (Monday to Saturday) of the day of scheduled collection (with the exception of
Assisted Collections).
Missed bins can be reported on the Council’s Website at any time or alternatively can be
reported to the call centre (Monday to Friday 9am to 5pm.)
The Council will endeavour to collect any missed collection within 2 working days from when
the report is received.
In certain circumstances where returning to collect is operational difficult the Council may
arrange with the resident to collect additional materials on the next schedule day of collect.)
Storage of containers:
Containers must not be stored on the pavement or on the Public Highway during collection
intervals.
Reason for policy:
This policy ensures waste presented for collection can be collected safely.
10

Page 157

Agenda Item 10

Policy Seven - Access Policy
Recycling and residual waste bin stores must be accessible and the surrounding area
provide a safe environment for the waste crews on the scheduled collection day to ensure the
Council is able to collect recycling and residual waste.
Blocked access:
Should a collection fail due to blocked access the Council will return on the collection day to
re-attempt collection.
If re-attempted collection fails on the day of collection the Council will monitor the blockage
and attempt collection (if resources permit) during the collection interval.
Private road/ private accesses:
Where possible, the Council will endeavour to collect from the boundary of properties via
private roads/accesses however the Council reserves the right to request an alternative
collection point where a private road/access is deemed to be unsafe for a collection vehicle to
attend, for example due to narrow access, unkempt verges/trees or road surfaces.
Where a collection on private property has been requested the Council will not be held
responsible for the deterioration of any road surfaces, earth banks or verges and shall be
indemnified against any resultant claim.
Where road surfaces are constructed to a non-highway standard that may not support a
refuse collection vehicle the Council may insist on an alternative collection point.
Electronic gates:
Electronic closing gates must comply with the Health and Safety Executive’s 2010 safety
advice alert.
Distance bins should be pulled out by crews:
The distance that crews “pull out” containers should be minimised, where possible. Distances
of more than 10 metres will require an individual risk assessment undertaken to assess the
manual handling risk and whether an alternative collection method is required. (Risks such
as uneven/broken surfaces, kerb edges, slopes, speed humps must be assessed and taken
into account).
Excessively Heavy Bins:
Bins that are deemed too heavy to be safely lifted by the lifting mechanism on the rear of the
vehicle will not be emptied and a sticker, hanger or leaflet will be left to notify the resident.
Pets:
Residents are requested to ensure that all pets are controlled in such a manner that when a
collection is enacted they cannot injure an operative or escape from the property.
Minimising difficult vehicle manoeuvres:
Recycling and residual waste containers should be placed in locations that minimise the need
for difficult vehicle manoeuvres. (Reversing is considered a difficult manoeuvre by the HSE.)
Reason for policy:
This policy ensures the service compliance with the best practise guidelines from the Health
and Safety Executive.

11

Agenda Item 10

Page 158
Policy Eight - Flats and Communal Property Policy

The Council will endeavour to collect recycling and residual waste from flats and communal
properties providing those managing the property comply with the following guidelines.
Container solutions:
The most optimum container solution for flats and communal properties will be assessed on
an individual basis.
The Council prefers that communal properties use communal bins rather than individual bins
and when determining a solution this preference will be taken into consideration.
The Council will endeavour to offer the full range of recycling services to communal
properties however this may be restricted by the available space.
Policy Four (Contamination) also applies to flats and communal properties.
Palladin bins:
The Council is unable to service Palladin containers after the 1 December 2015 as they do
not conform to the lifting equipment on the back of LBS refuse collection vehicles.
Supply, maintenance and repair of containers:
The supply, ongoing maintenance and repair of residual waste and recycling containers for
newly built or refurbished developments is the responsibility of the Management Agent,
Resident Association or Facility Management company (i.e. controlling agents).
Communal bins should be inspected on a regular basis by the controlling agents to ensure
that they are fit for purpose. Communal bins have a limited lifespan and when they are
considered beyond repair they should be replaced.
When a damaged bin is identified on collection day the crew will apply a sticker to the bin
requesting it is repaired. The bin will only be emptied if it is considered safe to do so.
Bin stores:
Bin stores should be well lit and the entrance should be wide enough for the bins to easily
pass through.
Vehicular access to the bin store should allow the collection vehicles to drive as close as
possible to the bin storage area. Please also see Policy Seven (Access) as again this also
applies to communal locations.
The Council recommends that bin stores are locked.
On the day of collection bin stores should be cleared of any bulky items or obstructions
(including bags of waste not contained in the bins) so that the crews have access to move
the containers safely in and out of the bin stores. Please see Policy Five (Side Waste) as this
also applies to communal properties.
Ramps and Drop Kerbs:
Ramps and drop kerbs should be installed to allow bulk containers to be safely wheeled to
the rear of the collection vehicle.
Reason for policy:
Flats and communal properties have different needs than houses and therefore this policy
details how the Council will approach the collection of waste and recycling from flats and
communal properties.
12

Recommended
Policy
Policy One
Standard
Container Policy

Element

Residual waste
container
Mixed dry recycling
container
Garden waste

New Existing
Policy Policy

The application of the collection of one bin per household



No change
For new chargeable service



No change
The criteria for exemptions have not changed however it has not historically been
detailed in a policy document.






No change
Historically residents could use the capacity in their residual bin for any items they
wanted to dispose of. The new policy changes this to capacity only for nonrecyclables waste (including garden waste).

Page 159

Policy Two
Exemption from
Wheeled bin Policy
Policy Three
Exceptions Policy
Policy Four
Contamination
Policy





Levy a charge

Summary of changes

If residents continuously contaminate their recycling bin we can remove their
recycling bin away (no additional residual capacity will be given).
Policy Five
Side Waste Policy
Policy Six
Use of container
Policy





Policy Eight
Flats & Communal
Collections Policy



The only significant change is the closed bin lid policy – which is a recommendation
from the HSE to reduce the likelihood of injury to operatives.

The access policy now reflects the Health and Safety Executives’ guidelines for risk
assessing the manual handling issues associated with crews pulling bins over long
distances.

No change

Agenda Item 10

Policy Seven
Access Policy

No change

This page is intentionally left blank

